
SACRE
3.45 pm THURSDAY, 22ND MARCH, 2018

CONFERENCE ROOM 1
This Agenda has been prepared by the 

Democratic Services Department. Any member of the public requiring information should 
contact the department on (01685 725284) or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be found 
on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

AGENDA

1. Apologies for absence 

2. Declaration of Interests 
Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct

Note:

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and

(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


3. Minutes of Previous Meetings 
To receive Minutes of the Meeting held 24 October 
2017.

5 - 10

4. Matters Arising 11 - 36

5. Presentation on Religious Education at Afon Taf 
High School 

6. The Role of SACRE 
To receive a Presentation on this matter. 37 - 58

7. Spring RE News Bulletin and Information Briefings 
To receive an update 

8. Curriculum Development Update 
To consider the attached. 59 - 114

9. Monitoring Collective Worship and RE 
To consider the attached. 115 - 148

10. WASACRE 
 To receive and note Draft Minutes from WASACRE 

Meeting held 10 November 2017

 To consider possible nominations from Merthyr 
Tydfil SACRE Members to join the WASACRE 
Executive Committee

 To note the dates of future WASACRE Meetings and 
confirm representation at:

 Spring – Swansea – Friday 9 March 2018 at the 
Civic Centre

 Summer – Anglesey – Friday 6 July (Venue TBC)
 Autumn 2018 – Vale of Glamorgan (TBC)

149 - 162

11. Correspondence - WASACRE - Minute Clerk 
To consider the attached. 163 - 164

12. Summer SACRE Meeting 
To confirm the date of the Summer SACRE 
Meeting as Wednesday 20 June 2018.



13. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair 
 

COMPOSITION: Councillors E Galsworthy (Chair) 
D Hughes (Vice-Chair)

Councillors C Davies and I Thomas

A  Jones, S Bernard Henderson, L McCarthy, H Price, 
J Jones, K Thomas, M Carrington, L Draper, D O'Keefe, 
A Pitt, A Star, Rev. M Prevett, J Brill and P Webber

together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF MEETING

SACRE MEETING
TUESDAY, 24TH OCTOBER, 2017

PRESENT: Councillor E Galsworthy (In the Chair)

Councillors D Hughes, I Thomas and C Davies

Professional Associations:
J Jones and L Draper

Faith Communities:
D O'Keefe, A Star and Rev. M Prevett 

Rev. C Ruston attended with Rev. M Prevett as an observer

LA Representatives:
P Webber and S Bowen

Karen Vokes (Democratic Services Officer)

ITEM 
NO.

AGENDA MATTER DECISION

342  Welcome Councillor Ernie Galsworthy welcomed Paula Webber to her 
first meeting of Merthyr Tydfil SACRE and everyone 
introduced themselves. 

343  Re-affirm appointment 
of Chair

RESOLVED that:

Councillor Ernie Galsworthy be re-affirmed as Chair of the 
SACRE Committee. 

344  Re-affirm appointment 
of Vice Chair

RESOLVED that:

Councillor David Hughes be re-affirmed as Vice Chair of the 
SACRE Committee. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



345  Apologies for absence Apologies for absence received from Amanda Jones, Sian 
Bernard Henderson, Lee-anne McCarthy, Helen Price, Mark 
Carrington and Andy Pitt. 

346  Declaration of Interests No declarations of interest were made. 

347  Minutes of the last 
meeting (including 
Schedule of Meetings 
2017-18)

RESOLVED that:

The minutes of the meeting held on 4th July 2017 were 
recorded as an accurate record. 

348  Matters Arising In relation to the appointments  on the Executive 
Committee, Paula Webber advised members that Alison 
Lewis and Tania ap Sion have been appointed to the 
membership and Gill Vaisey has been appointed as Vice 
Chair.  

The following schedule of meetings were agreed by the 
Committee:

Thursday, 1st March 2018 - 3.45 pm - Afon Taf High School 
(to be confirmed)
Thursday, 14th June 2018 - 3.45 pm - Civic Centre

RESOLVED that:

 Karen Vokes will contact Amanda Jones to enquire 
if March’s meeting can be held at Afon Taf High 
School.    

 Karen Vokes to confirm with members when this 
has been confirmed.

349  Membership Update 
(See Annual Report)

Members were made aware that there has been no further 
additions to the membership of Merthyr Tydfil SACRE.

350  SACRE Annual Report 
2016-17

Paula Webber referred to the SACRE’s Annual Report for 
2016/17 and led the Committee through the Executive 
Summary and the Development Plan for 2015  -  2018. 

RESOLVED that:

Karen Vokes to circulate the Annual Report to Welsh 
Government together with the organisations listed in 
Appendix 6 of the report.    

351  SACRE Development 
Plan 2015-2018:  
Progress Report 
(Annual Report 
attached)

The SACRE Development Plan for 2015 - 2018 was 
discussed as part of the previous item.  

352  Inspection Report 
Analysis:  Autumn 
2016 - Summer 2017

Paula Webber referred to the School Inspection Reports in 
relation to Dowlais Primary School, Greenfield Special 
School and Ysgol Gymraeg Rhyd Y Grug.  She also 
referred to the Estyn Monitoring Visits to Afon Taf High 
School, Cyfarthfa High School, Goetre Primary School and 
Penydre High School.    

Page 6



She led Committee through the outcomes of the 
inspections. 

RESOLVED that:

 Members note the contents of the inspection 
reports.

 Paula Webber to draft letter to the Schools 
inspected congratulating them on their recent 
inspection and to request self evaluation 
documents for Religious Education.

 Karen Vokes will forward these letters to the 
Schools when available. 

353  RE and the National 
Curriculum Update:  
Welsh Government 
Newsletter

Paula Webber referred members to the meetings with 
Welsh Government and WASACRE officers in relation to 
the National Curriculum update and advised that it was 
positive that WASACRE was able to work together with 
Welsh Government in order to develop a curriculum that 
works for RE.   

Discussion ensued in relation to development of the new 
curriculum for Wales and SACRE’s comments in relation to 
the Humanities AoLE.

RESOLVED that:

 Paula Webber to write to Welsh Government 
highlighting the thoughts and concerns of SACRE 
with regard to the Humanities AoLE in the new 
curriculum.  

 Members to e-mail Karen Vokes/Paula Webber if 
they have any additional comments to be 
highlighted in this letter.   

354  GCSE Religious 
Studies:  Update

Paula Webber gave members an update on progress of the 
GCSE specification together with the role of the lead 
practitioners to provide support and consistency across the 
region for Schools delivering the new GCSE specification.   
The large workload expected on teachers was also 
recognised and the resources that are required to help 
support teachers during this process.      

Discussion ensued on the commitment of undertaking 
continuing professional development (CPD) which 
demonstrates the improvement of relevant knowledge and 
skills in subject area and teaching or training.

RESOLVED that:

Members will be updated on any developments. 

355  Estyn Thematic 
Review of RE:  Update

Paula Webber advised the Committee in relation to Estyn’s 
Thematic Review of RE and that the Schools involved with 
this review have already been notified.   

Page 7



She circulated to members a copy of Estyn’s Questionnaire 
to Chairpersons of SACRE’s.   She apologised to members 
on the delay in distributing this questionnaire as the 
deadline for return is this Friday, the 27th October.        The 
Committee discussed the questions contained within the 
questionnaire and it was RESOLVED that:

 Paula Webber complete the questionnaire, taking 
into account members’ comments/suggestions, and 
forward to Karen Vokes before Friday.    

356  WASACRE: AGM at Wrexham on 7th July 2017

Minutes of the AGM Meeting in Wrexham on the 7th July 
2017 were noted by members.

WASACRE Meeting  -  Friday, 10th November 2017 at 
Bridgend

Discussion ensued in relation to the next WASACRE 
meeting in Bridgend on Friday, 10th November 2017 and 
Councillor Ernie Galsworthy and Paula Webber confirmed 
that they will be attending.   

Dates of future WASACRE Meeting

Paula Webber advised that the spring meeting of 
WASACRE will be held on 9th March in Swansea.

RESOLVED that:

 Any members wishing to attending the WASACRE 
meetings on the 10th November 2017 in Bridgend 
and the 9th March 2018 in Swansea, to contact 
Karen Vokes.  

357  Holocaust Memorial 
Day 2018

Paula Webber advised that Holocaust Memorial Day is an 
annual event that takes place on the 27th January which 
marks the anniversary of the liberation of Auschwitz-
Birkenhau concentration camp. 

She advised that Schools are encouraged to participate in 
the Holocaust Memorial Day and the Committee discussed 
previous events that have taken place throughout the 
Borough.   

RESOLVED that:

 Paula Webber will draft a letter to all Schools from 
the Chair of SACRE and forward to Karen Vokes to 
send to all Schools within the Borough.

 Members advise Karen Vokes of any events that 
are taking place so that she can share them with 
the Committee and Schools.   

358  Visits and Visitors Paula Webber referred to the Visits and Visitors in Religious 
Education document which has been published for 
SACRE’s.

Page 8



RESOLVED that:

 Members to e-mail Karen Vokes if you want any 
information included in this document.

 Karen Vokes to send a copy to all Schools. 

 Sarah Bowen to send Safeguarding Policy to Karen 
Vokes so this can be sent out with this document.    

359  Inter Faith Network 
Bulletin

RESOLVED that:

The Inter Faith News E-Bulletin be sent to all Schools for 
information. 

360  Future RE News 
Bulletin and 
Information Briefings:  
Update

Paula Webber referred to the RE News Bulletin and 
Information Briefings which outlines events happening 
within different SACRE areas including news on 
forthcoming events for the Holocaust Memorial Day for 
2018 etc.    She advised members that this has proved to 
be a good communication tool for Schools.  

RESOLVED that:

Paula Webber to send a copy to Karen Vokes to forward on 
to SACRE members and all Schools.   

361  Correspondence No correspondence was discussed.

362  Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
HOLOCAUST MEMORIAL DAY 2018 
 

Holocaust Memorial Day is an annual event that takes place on January 27 th. HMD 
was established in the UK in 2000 and the first HMD was held in January 2001. 
January 27th marks the anniversary of the liberation of Auschwitz- Birkenhau 
concentration camp by soviet troops in 1945. Holocaust Memorial Day seeks to 
change the future by learning from and remembering the past. Schools are 
encouraged to participate in Holocaust Memorial Day in order to remember the 
victims of the Holocaust and more recent genocides. It provides a framework to 
explore issues of morality, human reactions, individual experiences, responsibilities 
and larger questions of the role of governments and democracies. The government, 
including the Welsh Government, encourages schools and LAs to commemorate this 
event in some way.  
 
Each year, the Holocaust Memorial Day Trust chooses a different theme to enable 
audiences on Holocaust Memorial Day (HMD) to learn something new about the 
past, and to make it easier for HMD activity organisers to create fresh and engaging 
activities. Every theme is relevant to the Holocaust, Nazi Persecution and to each 
subsequent genocide, and has the life stories of those who were murdered and those 
who survived at its heart – as well as the experiences of resisters, rescuers and 
witnesses. 
 
The Holocaust Memorial Day Trust produces materials specific to the theme of 
Holocaust Memorial Day.  

The power of words is the theme for Holocaust Memorial Day 2018.  

Words can make a difference – both for good and evil.  

Spoken and written words from individuals, corporations, community organisations or 
the state, can have a huge impact, whether good or bad. This theme explores how 
language has been used in the past, and how it is used in the present day. HMD 
activities can focus on the impact that words had in the Holocaust and subsequent 
genocides, through propaganda used to incite, through slogans written in resistance, 
and through memoirs written to record and respond to what was going on. The words 
that we see and hear all around us today – in newspapers, online, in conversations – 
the words that we chose to use, all have an impact upon us and those around us. 
 
Further information about the theme and free educational resources containing 
material suitable for primary to post 16 students is available online at 
http://education.hmd.org.uk  
 
Additionally, Richard Spencer has been recently been appointed Support Worker for 
Wales for the Holocaust Memorial Trust. He will be on hand to support those wish to 
organize an event to commemorate HMD 2018. The national Trust will be launching 
a range of engaging, free resources on September 13th and schools and colleges 
will be able to order materials either from the London office, or through Richard. 
 
Richard can be contacted on Tel: 07535 524334 or by email at 
Richard.wales@hmd.org.uk              

Page 11

Agenda Item 4

http://education.hmd.org.uk/
mailto:Richard.wales@hmd.org.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Cwestiynau i CYSAGau/ Questions for chairpersons  

Pa gysylltiad rheolaidd sydd gan eich sefydliad ag ysgolion cynradd ac uwchradd yn eich ardal? 
 
What regular contact does your SACRE have with primary and secondary schools in your area? 
 

There are both primary and secondary teacher representatives sitting on Merthyr Tydfil SACRE. 
SACRE listens to their views at every meeting. SACRE also invites presentations from other 
teachers at SACRE. Teacher workload and the costs involved in releasing teachers from 
schools sometimes prevents teachers attending meetings.  
 
SACRE communicates regularly with teachers (e.g. via email) offering information on current 
developments in Religious Education, new and noteworthy resources and special events.  
SACRE also shares information with schools from organizations such as Welsh Government, 
the WJEC, RE organizations, and faith groups. SACRE regularly provides schools with up to 
date information on possible visits and visitors to support their RE provision. SACRE has 
recently decided to improve communication with schools by introducing a regular SACRE News 
Bulletin. This will also provide a form of two way communication between SACRE and schools.  
 
There is contact with schools via the Education Officer who requests self-evaluation reports 
from schools. Merthyr Tydfil SACRE considers and analyses school inspection reports. If there 
are any issues regarding Religious Education, such as non fulfillment of statutory requirements, 
then the LA takes a pro-active approach to working with schools in producing an action plan to 
address any shortcomings. Support is offered where necessary. During the academic year 
2016-2017 no follow up was necessary.   
 
Whilst Merthyr Tydfil SACRE endeavors to contact teachers, sufficient funding would ensure 
that SACREs could have more regular, effective, face to face contact with teachers via CPD 
training in Religious Education, which is vital to supporting teachers and the delivery of good 
RE.  
 
 

Pa gymorth ac arweiniad ydych chi’n eu rhoi i staff ysgolion? 

What support and guidance do you provide for school staff? 

SACRE communicates regularly with teachers (e.g. via email) offering information on current 
developments in Religious Education, new and noteworthy resources, special events, and 
articles from teachers as a way of sharing good practice.  SACRE also shares information with 
schools from organizations such as Welsh Government, the WJEC, RE organizations, and faith 
groups. SACRE regularly provides schools with up to date information on possible visits and 
visitors to support their RE provision. SACRE has recently introduced a News Bulletin to go to 
schools to provide more support and guidance.  
 
Merthyr Tydfil SACRE provides schools with up to date information on visits and visitors. 
SACRE offers advice to schools on important special events such as Holocaust Memorial Day.  
 
SACRE offers support to schools in raising standards by sending letters to schools 
congratulating them on the outcomes of good Estyn inspections and/or offering support where 
recommendations are made. This would especially be the case if recommendations are made in 
Estyn inspection reports with regards to non fulfillment of statutory requirements in Religious 
Education.  Whilst SACREs rely heavily on Estyn inspection reports to report when statutory 
requirements are being met, little can be gleaned from inspection reports about the quality of 
Religious Education being delivered in schools.   

Page 13



 

A ydych yn teimlo y gall athrawon fanteisio ar hyfforddiant a chymorth digonol i’w galluogi i 

addysgu addysg grefyddol yn effeithiol? 

Do you feel that teachers have sufficient access to training and support to enable them to teach 

RE effectively? 

The local authority, via Central Couth Consortium, offers CPD to schools. CSC provide 
professional learning hubs where lead practitioners provide high quality professional learning for 
schools in the area. They develop school to school support for improvement and share 
resources and research. Lead practitioners within Wales and from CSC are now feeding back to 
SACRE via WASACRE presentations.  
 
The local authority informed SACRE that with the current Welsh Government’s emphasis on 
Literacy and Numeracy no subject specific training is on offer. Access to CPD specific to 
Religious Education has been affected in recent years by lack of funding and the increased 
demands on teachers remaining in the classroom to ensure the content of courses are covered.  
Whilst Merthyr Tydfil celebrates the commitment and success of its teachers, more funding 
specifically for CPD in religious education would ensure that standards are raised further. 
SACRE is aware that schools are finding it very difficult to release teachers for training during 
the working day. As a result of this teachers sometimes need to use their own time to network 
and this has an effect upon their workload and work life balance.  There is a danger that 
teachers might feel that they are practicing in isolation if they are not attending regular RE 
related training events and there is less opportunity to share good practice.  
 
In the future, with the development of the new curriculum and a skills based approach, where 
RE might be taught by non-specialists, SACRE would appreciate the opportunity to offer 
essential training opportunities for teachers in order to provide a better understanding of RE and 
to enable the delivery of excellent Religious Education. Merthyr Tydfil SACRE is very concerned 
that if RE is diluted in the new curriculum then teacher training for Religious Education might not 
be high on the agenda. It must be given credence and seen as worthwhile.  
 

A ydych yn teimlo bod unrhyw broblemau o ran athrawon nad ydynt yn arbenigwyr yn addysgu 

addysg grefyddol mewn ysgolion uwchradd?  Sut mae hyn yn effeithio ar safonau disgyblion? 

Do you feel that there are any issues with non-specialist teaching RE in secondary schools?  

How does this impact on pupil standards? 

SACRE members are concerned that this question has had to be asked in relation to Religious 
Education at all. They have queried whether this would ever be asked of core subjects such as 
Mathematics or English. SACRE members believe that RE should be taught by specialists.  
 
Some non-specialist teachers have the ability and desire to teach good RE and can be very 
committed. However, non-specialist teachers are rarely as passionate as subject specialists. 
Their subject knowledge will obviously lack the depth of a specialist and they might not be 
aware of skills specific to good Religious Education. No child should lack love of the subject, or 
underachieve in RE, as a result of non-specialist teaching or underfunding of RE departments. 
Lack of training on the part of teachers can impact upon children and young people. 
  
Non-specialist teachers within a department at KS3 and KS4 will significantly increase the 
workload of the specialist head of department thus causing undue stress upon that member of 
staff. In these cases, heads of department are often required, not only to provide overly detailed 
schemes of work, but also individual lesson plans and resources.  There is a need then to Page 14



consider the recent Welsh Government teacher workload survey which reported that teacher 
workload is already too heavy in considering the staffing of Religious Education departments in 
schools.  
 
If, as a last resort, non-specialist staff are used to teach RE then they should receive sufficient 
training and the non-specialists should not be replaced every year by those staff with hours free 
on their timetables. It is very important to have consistency in staff to ensure uptake in Religious 
Studies at GCSE.  Whilst Merthyr Tydfil celebrates the success of GCSE and GCE results 
which are above the All Wales comparisons, it is also recognized that some pupils will be 
disadvantaged if they are taught by non-specialists who lack subject knowledge at this level.  
Teachers of GCSE are concerned that the new course is demanding and content heavy.  
Despite the work of lead practitioners in supporting them they are finding it difficult to access 
and create resources. Specialist teachers will find it difficult to deliver the content in the time 
available to them. It will be so much more challenging for non-specialists to be able to deliver 
the course with equal depth and thoroughness. Thus, students will be yet again be 
disadvantaged. Some teachers are having time allocation for Religious Education and Religious 
Studies reduced and this would also put too much pressure on specialist and non-specialist 
teachers alike.  

 

A ydych yn monitro safonau a darpariaeth mewn addysg grefyddol mewn ysgolion lleol?  Os 

ydych, ym mha ffyrdd a pha mor aml?  Beth yw eich canfyddiadau?  

Do you monitor standards and provision for RE in local schools?  If yes, in what ways and how 

often?  What are your findings?  

Merthyr Tydfil SACRE considers and analyses both primary and secondary school inspection 
reports and are satisfied that schools that have been recently inspected are meeting the 
statutory requirements for Religious Education. If issues are raised with regards to Religious 
Education, such as non fulfillment of statutory requirements, then the LA takes a pro-active 
approach working with schools in producing the action plan to address any shortcomings. 
Support is provided where necessary. SACRE, in consultation with the LA and its schools, use 
school self-evaluation as a means of fulfilling its statutory responsibility to monitor provision and 
standards in Religious Education. A letter is written to every school whose inspection report had 
been received this academic year, congratulating them on good aspects noted by Estyn and 
asking for information via the self-evaluation proforma.  
SACRE analyses examination results over a three year period and identifies trends in 
performance benchmarked against All Wales data.  Schools are informed of the outcomes of 
this analysis and any issues raised by SACRE. In addition the LA and its SACRE gather and 
analyse data via the Consortium regarding key stage 3 teacher assessment in Religious 
Education. This information is presented to SACRE and sent to all secondary schools in the LA.  
There is evidence that there is good RE taking place in schools in Merthyr Tydfil. 
In 2016-17 SACRE wrote to all schools in the local authority reminding them that coverage of 
the programmes of study of the locally agreed syllabus remains a statutory requirement whilst 
the curriculum is under review.  
The current GCSE Short Course no longer counts towards the 9 capped point score and 
therefore holds no value to the school. As a result of this, and because they are finding it 
progressively more difficult to fit everything into the school timetable, there might be the 
temptation to reduce hours from the statutory Religious Education which is the entitlement of 
every pupil.  Teachers both in Merthyr Tydfil and throughout Wales are very concerned that if 
they lose the short course delivery of statutory RE will be made more difficult as pupils might 
deem it pointless.  
SACRE wrote to secondary schools drawing specific attention to delivery of RE at KS4 and 
informing them that coverage of the Global Citizenship unit alone would not be sufficient to 

Page 15



cover all aspects of the agreed syllabus KS4 programme of study. It asked all schools to 
confirm that they understood the requirements of the agreed syllabus and that they are meeting 
these statutory requirements in their schools. 
The findings of Merthyr Tydfil SACRE in these monitoring strategies are shared with Welsh 
Government in the SACRE annual report. 
 

 

A ydych wedi ystyried effaith Dyfodol Llwyddiannus ar addysgu addysg grefyddol mewn 

ysgolion?  A ydych yn rhagweld unrhyw broblemau os caiff addysg grefyddol ei haddysgu’n 

rhan o gwricwlwm ehangach y Dyniaethau yn CA3? 

Have you considered the impact of Successful Futures on teaching RE in schools?  Do you 

envisage any issues if RE is taught as part of a wider Humanities curriculum at KS3? 

In the current political and social climate good Religious Education has never been more 
important for our pupils in order to ensure that they receive a balanced and informed view of 
religion and how it may be expressed. 
SACRE has included the curriculum review as a standing item on the agenda and members 
have had the opportunity to discuss the developments of the curriculum review at every meeting 
since the review began.  Members have had opportunity to express their views in lengthy and 
in-depth discussions. 
SACRE members have expressed concerns about whether good Religious Education can be 
maintained if it is taught as part of the wider Humanities Curriculum. Members do not want to 
see Religious Education diluted and fear that it might disappear or become unidentifiable if it is 
not safeguarded as a specific subject.  
In order to maintain high standards of teaching and learning in the subject, we must ensure that 
within the new curriculum RE has parity with History and Geography and that it is delivered by 
subject specialists.  If teachers are deployed to teach all areas / subjects encompassed within 
the Humanities Area of Learning and Experience, there is a real danger that the quality of 
Religious Education that pupils experience will be diminished.  Teacher bias is inevitable as 
they will play to their strengths thus resulting in vastly different experiences for pupils where one 
teacher teaches several subjects within Humanities. A recent WASACRE presentation 
highlighted the fact that this is the experience of at least one school who had adopted a 
‘Humanities Approach’ over a number of years and found that it was not effective in maintaining 
standards in each of the subject specialisms.  
    
A further potential negative impact of a Humanities approach may be the uptake of RS GCSE.  
If pupils are not taught by specialists and receive subject specific quality RE provision, there 
may be limited opportunity to engage pupils and inspire them to take RS at GCSE.   
 
If current legislation remains, there needs to be careful consideration of the implications of the 
right of parents to be able to withdraw their child(ren) from RE.   The planning, teaching and 
learning associated with RE placed within a Humanities Area of Learning and Experience, 
would need to be clearly identifiable in order for teachers to be able to manage any request for 
partial or whole withdrawal from RE made by parents.  If pupils are withdrawn from the RE 
element of Humanities, this calls into question whether this partly defeats the object of creating 
a Humanities approach.  Pupils will potentially have different experiences of this AoLE.   
   
Current legislation states that RE is not a statutory requirement for Nursery pupils, yet the new 
curriculum is designed for 3 – 16 year olds.  The anomaly needs to be addressed in order to 
bring RE in line with the other subjects with the Humanities AoLE and ensure that children in 
Nursery classes have the same opportunities as those from Reception upwards.    
 

Page 16



 

At ei gilydd, pa mor dda ydych chi’n teimlo y mae addysg grefyddol yn cael ei haddysgu mewn 

ysgolion ar hyn o bryd?  A ydych yn teimlo bod unrhyw agwedd benodol ar addysg grefyddol yn 

cael ei haddysgu’n dda neu ei haddysgu’n wael?  Pa dystiolaeth ydych chi’n seilio’r farn hon 

arni?  

Overall how well do you feel that RE is currently being taught in schools?  Do you feel that any 

particular aspect of RE is more often taught well or taught poorly? What evidence do you base 

this judgement on?  

KS3 and KS4 data shows that there is clear evidence that good RE is taking place in schools in 
Merthyr Tydfil. Teachers of Religious Education are passionate and dedicated.  However, 
SACRE have discussed the impact of increasing demands upon school timetables, the Welsh 
Baccalaureate, global citizenship, literacy, etc. SACRE is concerned about whether standards in 
RE can be maintained.  
 
The budgets for Religious Education departments are often much less than those of the core 
subjects. Therefore, resources and staff training for Religious Education could be greatly 
improved. If standards and outcomes are good in schools in Merthyr Tydfil then the impact of 
proper funding upon teaching and learning, and ultimately upon our children and young people, 
would be exceptional.  Evidence is based upon conversations with teacher representatives on 
SACRE, the data provided and upon discussion with individual teachers, both from Merthyr 
Tydfil and further afield via the input of the RE consultant to SACRE.  
 
There are essential aspects of Religious Education that cannot be measured, such as the 
spiritual development of children and young people. There is a need to recognize that these 
aspects hold value in and of themselves. In a target setting culture schools are increasingly 
under pressure to compete, both against their own past performance and against other schools. 
Therefore, often these valuable aspects of the curriculum are lost. If this is so it ultimately 
hinders the holistic development of children. In the current political and global climate good 
Religious Education should be of paramount importance to schools and not something that is 
dropped from an overly burdened curriculum. Religious Education needs to have a special 
status in schools when the new curriculum is implemented. Pupils are always be eager to 
engage with the big questions about life that are raised in RE. Therefore, they need the space, 
time and resources fully trained to do this properly. 
 
SACRE has struggled to monitor standards of standards of teaching and learning in RE in its 
primary schools as Estyn’s inspection framework ceased to include subject specific inspection 
and subsequent judgments.  SACRE has had to rely on other means of monitoring schools and 
this has proved challenging and limiting. SACRE does endeavor to scrutinize self-evaluation 
reports to aid this situation.  
 
Feedback from primary school teacher representatives on SACRE suggests that many teachers 
other than the RE Co-ordinator, often omit RE due to the pressures of other curriculum 
demands, time restraints and lack of enthusiasm for and / or confidence in RE.  This situation is 
exacerbated by commercially produced ‘schemes of work’ and / or ‘Individual Learning Projects’ 
that take a cross-curricular topic approach and do not include Religious Education.   Where 
schools have purchased such resources, a conscious effort needs to be made to add the RE 
into the curriculum.  Where this does not take place then schools are in danger of not fulfilling 
their statutory requirements. Additionally, children (and the society they belong to) are not 
offered the opportunity to benefit from all that good Religious Education brings.  
The status of RE in a school, and therefore the quality and quantity of provision, often depends 
on the attitude of the Headteacher, senior management staff and RE Subject Leader for RE.  

Page 17



Primary teachers receive little, if any CPD in RE and rely on their mostly very limited initial 
teacher training input and the support and enthusiasm of their RE Co-ordinator..      

 

A ydych yn teimlo bod safonau addysg grefyddol mewn ysgolion wedi gwella neu ddirywio’n 

gyffredinol dros y 5 mlynedd diwethaf?  Ym mha ffyrdd a pham?  

Do you feel that standards of RE in schools have generally improved or declined over the last 5 

years?  In what ways and why? 

SACRE feels that the standards of RE in schools have improved as a result of the GCSE Short 
Course in Religious Studies. However, teachers are now afraid that standards will decline in this 
area with the increased demands of the core modules of the new GCSE. Additionally, standards 
might have improved following the 22 SACREs in Wales agreeing to adopt the National 
Exemplar Framework into their Agreed Syllabus. But in recent years, with the impact of 
increased demands of an overburdened curriculum, teachers are talking about a threat to the 
progress being made in RE. Indeed, such is the concern in the profession that many teachers 
are now joining a ‘Save RE’ Facebook group. Teachers are working together in networks, often 
now using social media and Hubs as a forum. Might this be a reflection of the fact that teachers 
are not getting the training they require to deliver RE effectively. In the past year the Religious 
Education Consultant to SACRE has been asked by some teachers from schools in Wales 
whether they still have to follow the Agreed Syllabus for RE and whether schools should be 
cutting their time allocation.  This indicates the worries that teachers have.  Additionally, the lack 
of training, resources and the use of non-specialists to deliver RE greatly impacts on the 
workload and work life balance of specialist teachers of RE. Teachers often seek their own 
opportunities to develop and to fulfill their needs of their students and deliver good RE. 
Teachers are asking. The confusion about whether schools still have to fulfill the requirements 
of the Agreed Syllabus, in light of the fact that a new curriculum is being developed, partly 
arises from the lack of sufficient teacher training outside of their own school environment.  
 

Beth ydych chi’n teimlo yw’r prif broblemau y mae ysgolion yn eu hwynebu?  

What do you feel are the main issues facing schools?  

The increased burden of headteachers having to fit everything into the school timetable with a 
curriculum overload. 
Overloaded curriculum requirements for class teachers in the primary school. 
Literacy and Numeracy taking a priority at the expense of other foundation subjects including 
RE. 
Lack of funding for resources and CPD. 
Lack of quality, specialist CPD courses. 
A competitive target setting culture that does not value that which cannot be measured, e.g. 
spiritual development or the impact of the arts or culture upon the lives of young people. 
Teacher workload and the retention of the best quality educators.  
 

 

A oes unrhyw wybodaeth arall yr hoffech ei rhannu â mi? 

Is there any other information that you would like to share with me?  

WASACRE has highlighted a growing trend of cases where schools are not meeting the 
statutory requirements for Religious Education throughout Wales. Merthyr Tydfil SACRE has 
raised this issue with schools in the authority by sending letters reminding them of the legal 

Page 18



requirements for RE.  Estyn has a monitoring role within schools. It should be the role of Estyn 
to flag up where schools are not meeting these requirements.   However, without evident 
sanctions on schools who do not comply with statutory requirements, there is little incentive for 
schools to rectify the situation.   
 
Merthyr Tydfil SACRE is keen to offer as much support to schools in ensuring good RE takes 
place in its schools and would value statements concerning the quality of Religious Education 
within school inspection reports.  
 

 
Diolch yn fawr i chi am ein helpu â’n hymchwil.  
Thank you very much for helping us with our research. 
 
Anfonwch yr ymateb hwn at      liz.counsell@estyn.gov.uk    erbyn 27 Hydref.  

Please email this response to     liz.counsell@estyn.gov.uk    by October 27th  

Os hoffech i mi ddilyn yr holiadur hwn â sgwrs fer dros y ffôn, rhowch eich enw a’ch manylion 

cyswllt. If you would like me to follow up this questionnaire with a short telephone conversation, 

please add your name and contact details.  

 

Enw/ Name __________________________     Swydd/ Position ______________________ 

 

E-bost/ Email _________________________    Ffôn/ Phone __________________________  

 

Page 19

mailto:liz.counsell@estyn.gov.uk
mailto:liz.counsell@estyn.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



SACRE 
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 

 

 

Autumn  
2017 

 
 

In The News 

 

In this bulletin: 
1. Curriculum Review Update 

2. Agreed Syllabus for RE and the Curriculum Review 

3. Estyn Thematic Review of RE 

4. Farmington scholarships for teachers 

5. WJEC Religious Studies Update 

6. News from the Inter Faith Network and Inter Faith Week 

7. The Chinese Approach in Kindergarten 

8. Understanding Islam in Light of Recent Terrorist Attacks 

9. Diwali Celebrations in three major religions 

10. St David’s Cathedral Education and Pilgrimage centre 

11. The Bahá’í Faith – Bicentenary Celebration of Prophet 

Bahá’u’lláh’s  Birth and other News 

12.  Children’s app Guardians of Ancora now in Welsh 

13. Opening the Book for Cardiff’s Children 

14. RE Ideas from REMW 

15. Talking About Religion Helps Us Better Understand Each Other 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This News bulletin has been produced by RE Consultants  
Paula Webber and Gill Vaisey with contributions gratefully received from SACRE 
members across several Local Authorities.   
Contents may not necessarily reflect the views of the authors.     
 

Page 21



SACRE 
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 

 

 

Curriculum Review Update 
 
Welsh Government has published a document providing six executive summaries of the 
latest thinking of each of the Area of Learning and Experience working groups.  The 
End of Strand 2 Report for the Humanities AoLE- Executive Summary explains how the 
AoLE promotes the four purposes. 
 
‘The Humanities working group has developed a statement outlining how the Area of 
Learning and Experience (AoLE) promotes the four purposes: 
Through exploring big ideas about the Humanities, pupils will study the past and 
present, and by imagining possible futures, will learn about people, place, time and 
beliefs.  
 
Pupils will:  
•understand historical, geographical, political, economic and societal concepts.  
•explore their environment to further develop their sense of place and wellbeing.  
•engage in learning experiences about rights, values, ethics, beliefs, religion, philosophy 
and spirituality. 
 •consider, explore and make informed choices regarding sustainability and the impact 
of their actions.  
•positively contribute to their community and critically engage with local, national and 
global issues to become a responsible citizen of Wales and the wider world.  
 
By exploring big ideas, pupils will gain a solid base of knowledge and understanding of 
different times, places and beliefs to become ambitious, capable learners. To become 
enterprising, creative contributors, they will develop enterprising skills and dispositions, 
in order to improve the everyday lives of people in their local community and in the 
wider world. Through understanding and respecting different beliefs and understanding 
how to exercise their democratic rights and responsibilities, pupils will become ethical, 
informed citizens.  
 
By developing personal stances on matters of faith, spirituality, sustainability and social 
inclusion they will become healthy, confident individuals. This is an initial draft and a 
working statement that will be reviewed and updated regularly as the AoLE itself is 
developed. 
 
The rest of the Humanities report and the report as a whole can be seen at: 
http://gov.wales/docs/dcells/publications/170707-new-curriculum-for-wales-story-so-far-
en.pdf 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22

http://gov.wales/docs/dcells/publications/170707-new-curriculum-for-wales-story-so-far-en.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/dcells/publications/170707-new-curriculum-for-wales-story-so-far-en.pdf


SACRE 
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 

 

 

Agreed Syllabus for RE and the Curriculum Review 
 
SACRE would like to take this opportunity to assure schools that the Agreed Syllabus 
for Religious Education remains the statutory curriculum document for the teaching of 
religious education for all maintained and Voluntary Controlled schools across the 
authority.  This document will remain in place until further notice and whilst the 
development of the curriculum for Wales is continued. 
An electronic copy of the Agreed Syllabus is being provided with this newsletter. 
Schools should note that the Welsh Government National Exemplar Framework for 
Religious Education was provided to SACREs for them to consider when writing their 
Agreed Syllabus and that document is not intended for use by schools. 
Religious education must be provided according to the locally Agreed Syllabus and 
sufficient time must be allocated to deliver the programmes of study. 
 
 

 

Estyn Thematic Review of Religious 
Education    
 
Estyn have commenced a thematic review of 
religious education provision in 2017 – 2018. A 
sample of schools across Wales have been selected to take part in the review.  The 
review will focus on the provision and quality of KS2 and KS3 RE.  A separate review 
on the Foundation Phase will be undertaken and this will include RE alongside the other 
areas of learning.  
 
 
 

 

Farmington scholarships for teachers 

 

The aim of the Farmington Institute is to support and encourage teachers of 
Religious Education in schools, and Headteachers working on values and 
standards. The Institute awards Scholarships to UK teachers of Religious 
Education in schools and headteachers, publishes discussion papers and 
arranges conferences. 
The next opportunity to apply for a Farmington Scholarship will be in November 2017. 
The scholarships are for RE teachers and headteachers and can be taken at any one of 
15 universities or as a home-based student. The Scholarships are to be used to provide 
materials for teachers or research into values and standards. Funds are supplied for a 
replacement teacher. For further information please see: www.farmington.ac.uk or for 
an application form, please email: farmington@hmc.ox.ac.uk 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 23

http://www.farmington.ac.uk/
mailto:farmington@hmc.ox.ac.uk


SACRE 
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 

 

 

WJEC Religious Studies Update 
 
CPD Courses 
 
Face to face CPD courses for GCSE Religious Studies will take place in December.  
Dates for the training are: 
 
06.12.17 – Carmarthen 
07.12.17 – Cardiff 
11-12.17 – Llandudno 
 
CPD training for A Level took place in September. Teachers will be able to access 
training materials on the WJEC website in the near future.  
Teachers can book courses on the WJEC website at  
http://www.wjec.co.uk/teachers/teacher-support/face-to-face-courses-for-teachers/ 
 
Digital Resources from the WJEC 
 
WJEC’s Educational Resources team provides high quality digital and paper based 
resources. They work closely with the WJEC Continuing Professional Development 
team to provide effective training for schools and teachers. 
English and Welsh language materials are developed in partnership with teachers and – 
in Wales – also with the Department for Education and Skills and local authorities. 
Some materials are produced specifically to complement WJEC specifications and 
some support the use of the Welsh language in education. 
 
GCSE Religious Studies Resources can be found at 
http://resources.wjec.co.uk/Pages/ResourceByArgs.aspx?subId=26&lvlId=2 
 
GCE Religious Studies resources can be located at 
http://resources.wjec.co.uk/Pages/ResourceByArgs.aspx?subId=26&lvlId=1  
 
Teacher Share Space 
 
Teacher Share Space is available on the WJEC Website. The space is for teachers who 
wish to share and exchange resources. All of the resources in this area are free to 
download; none of the content in this area of the website is monitored, reviewed 
or endorsed by WJEC, therefore teachers need to do their own quality assurance.  
 
For AS/A Level these resources are available at:  
http://www.wjec.co.uk/qualifications/religious-studies/r-religious-studies-gce-asa-from-
2016/File%20Sharing%20for%20GCE%20Religious%20Studies%20WJEC.pdf?langua
ge_id=1 
 
Twitter 
 
WJEC Religious Studies. For news, teaching resources and advice for WJEC Religious 
Studies qualifications see the Twitter Page which is found at 
https://twitter.com/WJEC_RS. The Welsh account is: @CBAC_AstCref  

Page 24

http://www.wjec.co.uk/teachers/teacher-support/face-to-face-courses-for-teachers/
http://resources.wjec.co.uk/Pages/ResourceByArgs.aspx?subId=26&lvlId=2
http://resources.wjec.co.uk/Pages/ResourceByArgs.aspx?subId=26&lvlId=1
http://www.wjec.co.uk/qualifications/religious-studies/r-religious-studies-gce-asa-from-2016/File%20Sharing%20for%20GCE%20Religious%20Studies%20WJEC.pdf?language_id=1
http://www.wjec.co.uk/qualifications/religious-studies/r-religious-studies-gce-asa-from-2016/File%20Sharing%20for%20GCE%20Religious%20Studies%20WJEC.pdf?language_id=1
http://www.wjec.co.uk/qualifications/religious-studies/r-religious-studies-gce-asa-from-2016/File%20Sharing%20for%20GCE%20Religious%20Studies%20WJEC.pdf?language_id=1
https://twitter.com/WJEC_RS


SACRE 
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 

 

 

 
The Inter Faith Network for the UK works to promote 
understanding cooperation and good relations between 
organisations and persons of different faiths in the UK.  
 
 
Inter Faith Network Bulletin  
 
The September- October Inter Faith Network Bulletin is 
available at  
https://www.interfaith.org.uk/uploads/Inter_Faith_Network_for
_the_UK_e-bulletin_-_September-October_2017.pdf 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

Inter Faith Week 2017 in England, Northern Ireland and Wales will take place from 
Sunday 12th to Sunday 19th November. This will begin on Remembrance Sunday. 
Inter Faith Week: 

• Highlights the good work done by local faith, inter faith and faith-based groups 
and organisations 

• Draws new people into inter faith learning and cooperation 
• Enables greater interaction between people of different backgrounds 
• Helps develop integrated and neighbourly communities 
• Celebrates diversity and commonality 
• Opens new possibilities for partnership 

INTER FAITH WEEK AIMS ARE:  

• Strengthening good inter faith relations at all levels 
• Increasing awareness of the different and distinct faith communities in the UK, in 

particular celebrating and building on the contribution which their members make 
to their neighbourhoods and to wider society 

• Increasing understanding between people of religious and non-religious beliefs 

Inter Faith Week is for everyone including faith communities and their places of 
worship, community and voluntary groups, schools and SACREs and local authorities.  

 

For further information visit: https://www.interfaithweek.org/about  

 
 
 
 

Page 25

https://www.interfaith.org.uk/uploads/Inter_Faith_Network_for_the_UK_e-bulletin_-_September-October_2017.pdf
https://www.interfaith.org.uk/uploads/Inter_Faith_Network_for_the_UK_e-bulletin_-_September-October_2017.pdf
https://www.interfaithweek.org/about


SACRE 
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 

 

 

 
The Chinese Approach in Kindergarten 

 
Blaenau Gwent SACRE member, Christine Abbas’, 
granddaughter went to Ysgol Bro Helyg Nursery 
whilst she was living with her grandparents in 
Blaina. She was really happy during the months 
she spent there, but has since returned to China 
with her mum, her dad and brother, where mum 
teaches in a college.  
Recently, Haidi started in a private Kindergarten in 
Baotou, north China. Here she is in her uniform; 
the track suit outfit is favoured in China. You may 
be interested to read the difference a Chinese 
approach to education takes.  
 
The Kindergarten is a traditional educational 
establishment based on Confucian moral values, 
which are taught alongside reading, writing and 
mathematics. The atmosphere of the school is 
calm and peaceful. For homework the children 
learn to recite the words of Confucius, especially 
about respect and how to treat other people. This 
is demonstrated throughout the school day as the 
children are shown how to have good manners. 
This includes bowing respectfully to 
people. The children are also taught how to sit 
still for a moment or how to be patient for a 
moment, as well as being able to play and 
run around.  
 
Haidi returns home with her hair beautifully plaited 
or braided in unusual ways, which the teachers 
have done, and often they have put gifts of hair 
accessories into her school bag. They even cut her 
finger nails. Far from being 
intrusive Naja, Haidi’s mum, finds it very thoughtful 
and feels it is done out of love for the children; and 
Haidi loves her school too. (Naja was a pupil 
at Coedcae School (now Coed y Garn) and 
Brynmawr School)  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 26



SACRE 
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 

 

 

 

Understanding Islam in Light of Recent Terrorist Attacks 
 

Kath Fitter from Goytre Farw Primary School in Monmouthshire reflects on a recent visit 
from Monmouthshire SACRE faith representative Mrs Fatma Jilani and her daughter.   
 
In the summer term, following the terrorist attacks in Manchester and London, we felt as 
a school that there were a lot of questions about Islam that our pupils wanted to ask. 
We tried to balance the negativity seen in the media and wider community about Islam 
by focusing on all the good that was happening in the world during our assemblies. 
However our older pupils had questions that we wanted to answer in an honest and 
frank way.  
 
We had worked previously with Mrs Jilani as part of our ‘Festival of Faiths’ day and the 
children had responded well to her open and honest approach. Therefore we felt that 
she would be the ideal person to answer their questions.  
As R.E. Co-ordinator, Lisa Wilkinson ran a session with the classes to prepare 
questions with them. Listening to their thoughts at this time confirmed that holding the 
session was the right thing to do.  
 
Parents were informed that Mrs Jilani would be visiting to speak to their children and we 
only had one family ask if their daughter could leave the room if she felt uncomfortable 
which of course we agreed to.  
 
Mrs Jilani arrived with her daughter Umaamah, and held a question and answer session 
with the Year 5 and 6 pupils. The children asked their questions and Lisa Wilkinson was 
really impressed with the sensitive way they approached this difficult topic.  
Mrs Jilani’s responses were very honest and informative and the children obviously 
enjoyed the opportunity to ask anything they liked knowing that Mrs Jilani would answer 
them in such a candid way. It was also useful to have a teenager’s view of the situation.  
 
Examples of the questions they asked were: 

• Have people treated you differently since the terror attacks? 

• Do you think that the person/people who carried out the attacks were ‘bad’ 

Muslims or not Muslims at all because of what they had done? 

• What would you do if you thought one of your friends was a terrorist? 

• Have you ever been bullied at school for being a Muslim? (to Umaamah) 

Following the session we had feedback from a parent saying that the opportunity for 
children to ask questions was very valuable. 
On the same afternoon, Mrs Jilani and Umaamah also did a session with the Year 4 
class on Hajj which they thoroughly enjoyed and found interesting to hear a first-hand 
experience. 
 
We want to extend a big thank you to Mrs Jilani and Umaamah for coming into school. 
Visits like this make a huge difference to our pupils and their understanding of world 
religions.  
 

Page 27



SACRE 
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Diwali or Dīpĝvali is a significant religious 
festival in Hinduism, Sikhism, and Jainism. 
It is also popularly known as the "Festival 
of Lights" and is a lunar-calendar based 
event that occurs between mid-October 
and mid-November. The word "Diwali" is a 
contraction of "Deepavali" which translates 
into "row of lamps". Diwali is an official 
holiday in India, Nepal, Sri Lanka, 
Myanmar, Mauritius, Guyana, Trinidad & 
Tobago, Suriname, Malaysia, Singapore, 
and Fiji. 

The festival of Diwali symbolizes the victory of light over dark, good over evil and 
knowledge over darkness. 

Hindu tradition: Diwali is one of the biggest festivals in the Hindu calendar and there are 
multiple reasons why Hindus celebrate this festival. The most popular narrative, based in the 
ancient Sanskrit epic Ramayana, is of Lord Rama, his wife Sita and brother Lakshmana 
returning to their kingdom Ayodhya after defeating demon king Ravana. 

Jain tradition, Diwali marks the attainment of enlightenment by Lord Mahavira, the 24th 
Tirthankara of Jainism who laid down the central tenets of the Jain religion as it is practiced 
today. 

Sikh tradition, Diwali commemorates the release of Guru Hargobind, the sixth Sikh Guru, who 
was imprisoned by the Mughal emperor Jahangir. When Guru Hargobind arrived in Amritsar, his 
devotees lit thousands of oil lamps to celebrate his return. For Sikhs, this day is known as Bandi 
Chhor Divas (day of release from prison.  Diwali is also associated with the martyrdom of the 
elderly Sikh scholar and strategist Bhai Mani Singh in 1737. Bhai Mani Singh was the Granthi 
(keeper/reader of Sikh scripture) of Harmandir Sahib (popularly known as the Golden Temple). 
He transcribed the final version of Guru Granth Sahib dictated to him by Guru Gobind Singh in 
1704.  In 1737, he received permission from Zakariya Khan, the then Mughal governor of 
Punjab, to hold a religious gathering of the Khalsa for celebrating Bandi Chhorh Diwas on the 
auspicious day of Diwali for a tax of 5000 Rupees. He expected to put together the required 
sum from contribution made by the Sikhs who would assemble that day. But when he 
discovered that the governor’s plot to kill the Sikhs during the gathering, he sent out messages 
warning them not to turn up for the meeting. As a result the tax could not be paid and governor 
ordered Bhai Mani Singh's execution at Lahore. Celebrate Diwali by lighting lamps, distributing 
sweets, fasting and practicing acts of charity. Diwali is on Thursday 19 October 2017.  

 
 
 

Page 28

http://www.sikhiwiki.org/index.php/Hinduism
http://www.sikhiwiki.org/index.php/Sikhism
http://www.sikhiwiki.org/index.php/Jainism
http://www.sikhiwiki.org/index.php/Diwali
http://www.sikhiwiki.org/index.php/Bhai_Mani_Singh
http://www.sikhiwiki.org/index.php/1737
http://www.sikhiwiki.org/index.php/Granthi
http://www.sikhiwiki.org/index.php/Harmandir_Sahib
http://www.sikhiwiki.org/index.php/Guru_Granth_Sahib
http://www.sikhiwiki.org/index.php/Guru_Gobind_Singh
http://www.sikhiwiki.org/index.php/Mughal_Empire
http://www.sikhiwiki.org/index.php/Khalsa
http://www.sikhiwiki.org/index.php/Lahore


SACRE 
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 

 

 

 

 
 

 

St Davids Cathedral, is a centre of 
learning and offers  

education in a number of different 
ways. 

       
The Cathedral has an Education and Pilgrimage centre, Ty'r Pererin, which was 
officially opened on 4 March 2013. Click here for more information about the new 
centre. 

Tours of the Cathedral occur throughout the year, some designed for people who have 
never visited before and others for people who know the Cathedral well but would like to 
learn more about some aspect, see Tours  

The Cathedral provides a venue for artistic and creative exhibitions and gives space for 
organizations such as Christian Aid and Amnesty International to raise awareness of 
their vital work.  

Musical education has been an essential element of the life of the Cathedral for 
centuries and continues today, see Music. 

The Library is an invaluable resource for both local researchers and those from further 
afield seeking in-depth information about St David and St Davids. It also has a wealth of 
information on all sorts of diverse areas for research, see Library. 

There is space and opportunity for many to reflect on their pilgrimage through life. The 
centre works with the cathedral in its mission to offer worship, prayer, hospitality and 
healing as a true reflection of the life of St David. There are many ways in which 
visitors, adults, children and pilgrims can engage with the concept of pilgrimage. The 
Cathedral has hosted INSET days for school staff, PCC away days and parish groups.  
There is space for prayer, reflection and refreshment. The Cathedaral plan and tailor 
days to cater to needs. They can lead a group in a walking pilgrimage or reflections in 
the centre. They can work in many ways to accommodate your requirements. 

Click here to see our Pilgrimage Packages 

Click here for Friday pilgrimage information 

RETREAT DAYS 
A series of Retreat Days run throughout the 'academic' year. 

The dates are; 
Wednesday 25th October 10am-4pm 
Wednesday 6th December 6–8.30pm 
Friday 2nd March 10am-4pm 
Saturday 12th May 10am-4pm              For more details please click here 

 
 

Page 29

http://www.stdavidscathedral.org.uk/index.php?id=954
http://www.stdavidscathedral.org.uk/index.php?id=954
http://www.stdavidscathedral.org.uk/index.php?id=677
http://www.stdavidscathedral.org.uk/index.php?id=690
http://www.stdavidscathedral.org.uk/index.php?id=676
http://www.stdavidscathedral.org.uk/fileadmin/Ty_r_Pererin/Pilgrimage_Packages.pdf
http://www.stdavidscathedral.org.uk/fileadmin/Ty_r_Pererin/Friday_Pilgrimage_Poster_2017.pdf
http://www.stdavidscathedral.org.uk/fileadmin/Ty_r_Pererin/Z_Retreats_Programme_201718.pdf


SACRE 
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 

 

 

 

Bicentenary of the Birth of Bahá’u’lláh and release of a 17-minute 
film Bahá'u'lláh - The Divine Physician  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
In Wales, the Welsh Assembly will be sponsoring a celebratory event at the Senedd, 
for members of the Interfaith Council, Assembly members and other dignitaries. 
 
The British Museum will be marking the bicentenary with a special cabinet, 
displaying original calligraphy by, and items belonging to, Bahá’u’lláh, alongside 
other beautiful Bahá’í manuscripts from the Museum’s collection.  The Universal 
House of Justice is blessing this exhibit with the loan of priceless, rarely displayed 
items from the International Bahá’í Archives, which is situated at the Bahá’í World 
Center on Mount Carmel in Haifa. The items will be on display in the Museum’s John 
Addis Gallery from Tuesday 7 November for some two months.   
 
Various World leaders have sent messages paying tribute to the Bahá’í community 
and the teachings of Bahá’u’lláh. 
  
The National Spiritual Assembly of the Bahá’ís of the United Kingdom commissioned 
a 17-minute film to help inform about the life and teachings of Bahá’u’lláh. 
In Bahá'u'lláh - The Divine Physician, young people from diverse backgrounds reflect 
on the issues facing the world and the potential of Bahá'u'lláh's teachings to address 
these issues.  The action follows the daily activities of the young people and includes 
stories about Bahá'u'lláh and His teachings told through animated sequences. 
 
The film is available on YouTube under the following link:         
 https://youtu.be/Gzs_11Xk6zg 
 
The film is suitable for everyone from age 9, and is particularly relevant to KS3 (age 
11-14). To use as the basis of a lesson on the Bahá’í Faith, materials to support 
teachers in the use of this film in the classroom are available to download on the 
Bahá'í RE website: http://re.bahai.org.uk/bicentenary   
 
 

 

 

 

 

On the 21st and 22nd October, Bahá’ís all over the 
world celebrated the bicentenary of the Birth of 
Bahá’u’lláh, the Founder of the Bahá’í Faith.  
Bahá’u’lláh’s message to the world is one of unity, 
‘The earth is but one country and mankind its 
citizens’ and ‘So powerful is the light of unity that it 
can illuminate the whole earth’.  
 

Page 30

https://youtu.be/Gzs_11Xk6zg
http://re.bahai.org.uk/bicentenary


SACRE 
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 

 

 

 

New materials have been produced for use in schools for KS1, KS2 and KS3 to be 
used either by the RE teaches or by visiting local Bahá’í members giving the lesson 
to the classroom and answering any questions or discussing the materials with RE 
teachers.  

These materials, which are based on Unity in Diversity and Oneness of Religion and 
Mankind can be found at http://re.bahai.org.uk/bicentenary/ with PowerPoint 
presentations for each Key stage. 

 

 

     
©Film image from Bahá’u’lláh – The Divine Physician 
 
 

Schools can invite a Bahá’í as a visiting speaker to conduct assemblies and assist 
with classes.  http://re.bahai.org.uk/school-visitors/  
 
 
Ms. Carmella Lake BSc. MA is the Cardiff Bahá’í representative for religious 
education and can be contacted on telephone number 07779586030 and email 
cba.lake@gmail.com 
Please get in touch with any questions and to request Bahá’í attendance to deliver 
classes, assemblies and workshops based on the above outlined materials. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 31

http://re.bahai.org.uk/bicentenary/
http://re.bahai.org.uk/school-visitors/


SACRE 
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 

 

 

 

Children’s app Guardians of Ancora now in Welsh  
 
 
Welsh Christians were so impressed with 
Scripture Union’s award-winning children’s app 
Guardians of Ancora, that they’ve gone to 
extraordinary lengths to have the game in their 
native language. 
 
After discussions began with Scripture Union about how a Welsh version could be 
developed, it took only 9 months to raise enough funds for the translation work to 
begin. The monumental fundraising effort raised £30,000 and received support from 
all major denominations as well as many trusts and a variety of volunteers gave time 
and resources, including S4C's flagship children's presenter Martyn Geraint, who 
recorded the Ancora song. 
 
Guardians of Ancora, or Arwyr Ancora when translated in Welsh has all the same 
features as the English version and it is hoped will open the world of Ancora to a 
whole  new audience of Welsh-speaking children. 
 
Aled Davies, Arwyr Ancora Project Manager ‘We are really excited about launching 
Arwyr Ancora and have been encouraged by the level of support we have received 
from the churches in Wales to see this happen. This will not only be the best 
Christian app for children in Wales, but will be by far the best Welsh app for children 
in general’. 
 
Arwyr Ancora is being launched at the largest national children’s and youth 
conference in the UK, Urdd Eisteddfod in Eisteddfod on 28th May. Terry Clutterham, 
Mission Development Director for Scripture Union says, ‘As Scripture Union England 
and Wales, we are absolutely delighted that the Welsh have led the way with the first 
non-English version. The support from churches, donors, and volunteers has been 
unprecedented and we believe it will have real impact within the Welsh-speaking 
community. Children love the game for its fun, parkour elements. They can 
customise their own characters and fully immerse themselves in the game’. 
The game has already had 140,000 users, which is set to rise rapidly with these new 
translations. 
 
For more information or to find out more about Guardians Of Ancora visit: 
www.guardiansofancora.com 
For more information or to find out more about Scripture Union visit: 
www.scriptureunion.org.uk 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 32



SACRE 
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 

 

 

Opening the Book for Cardiff’s Children  
 
TheNetCardiff says:  ‘The Bible is often described as the 
greatest story ever told, but for most people the Bible is 
a boring, irrelevant, closed book.  But now, across the 
UK, children are seeing the Bible ‘come to life’ in their schools through Open the 
Book, which is part of the Bible Society.  Teams of volunteers from local churches 
provide 15 minute assemblies using carefully prepared and easy to use resources 
based on the Bob Hartman Storyteller Bible. 
 
Here in Cardiff, Cyncoed Methodist Open the Book team have been visiting their 
local primary school for 5 years. They spent a lot of time preparing props and 
practising before their first visit and were rather nervous, but Marion Thomas, the 
team leader remembers the response from the children and staff was amazing, “We 
needn’t have worried – the children loved it, especially when we asked for volunteers 
to help us!” 
 
Liz Capper is a member of the St Mark’s, Gabalfa team. She says, “A friend had told 
me about the wonderful opportunities of teaching children Bible stories they haven't 
heard before - I couldn't wait to be involved and help out on the team.'' 
Children are also overwhelmingly positive about Open the Book – many have never 
heard the Bible stories before – as the stories are acted out and they participate with 
sound effects, motions and ‘acting’ alongside the team. 
 
''I love it when you come in,” says a year 4 pupil in Birchgrove Primary school, 
Cardiff. “I said to my Mum, ‘Is it Monday?’ she said ‘Yes!’ I said ‘Great they're coming 
back again!'' 
 
On average the Open the Book office receives one phone call per day from schools 
asking for a team to visit – a fact confirmed in Radyr, where each of the 3 primary 
schools has responded positively to Reverend Canon Jenny Wigley’s offer to vist 
with the newly formed team. 
 
Today nearly 12% of schools have a team visiting regularly. From the school’s 
perspective OTB ticks several of the necessary boxes for collective worship and 
community links and is sincerely appreciated by Head teachers and staff alike. 
Reverend Michael John, vicar of Pentyrch explains why his parishioners have 
recently got an Open the Book team together: 
“I was attracted to Open the Book because our Parish was looking for ways of 
regularly engaging with local schools which would be straightforward for us as a 
team of volunteers and a help to the teaching staff of local schools.” ‘ 
 
All resources are available in English and Welsh.  For more information about how 
you can use Open the Book visit the website www.biblesociety.org.uk/get-
involved/openthebook/ 
or contact Sarah Morris South Wales Development officer at 
meirionasarah@yahoo.co.uk’ 
 
 

 

Page 33

http://www.thenetcardiff.org.uk/
mailto:meirionasarah@yahoo.co.uk
https://www.biblesociety.org.uk/


SACRE 
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 

 

 

 

RE Ideas from REMW for 2017 – 2018 
 
This year’s collection of RE Ideas has been written by Gill Vaisey, RE Consultant. 
 
Each term’s RE Ideas provides teaching and learning ideas to support a particular 
unit of work for different stages across the primary school.  
 
Autumn RE Ideas focuses on ‘Journeys With Meaning / Are Some Journeys 
Special?’ and is aimed to support teachers working with Lower Key Stage 2 pupils. 
The unit explores the significance of some journeys and provides a Target Board 
activity around the account of the life of St David. 
 
The Spring edition supports Foundation Phase practitioners and explores ‘Making 
the Most of the Outdoor Learning Environment’ in Religious Education.  This unit will 
support a Foundation Phase topic on the natural world and in particular focuses on a 
traditional Muslim story about caring for the natural world and in this context baby 
birds. 
 
Summer RE Ideas is aimed at upper KS2 and provides a ‘Four Corners Debate’ with 
a focus on Buddhism and the environment.  Pupils are encouraged to consider the 
teachings on the Buddha and how these may impact on a Buddhist’s decision 
whether to be vegetarian or eat meat. 
 
Each of the three units can be used at any time of year and are not restricted to the 
term to which they are assigned. 
 
The RE Ideas are attached with this bulletin or might be accessed in the future from  
http://www.religious-education-wales.org/ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 34

http://www.religious-education-wales.org/


SACRE 
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 

 

 

 

Talking About Religion…  
 
Monmouthshire SACRE member, Neeta Baicher, has shared this article with us 
which was published in the Professional Social Work magazine April 2017 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Standing Advisory Council 

for Religious Education

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 6



SACRE
◦ Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education

WASACRE
◦ Wales Association of SACREs

Estyn 

- The Schools Inspection Service for Wales

NAPfRE 

– National Advisory Panel for Religious 
Education

P
age 38



‘To advise the authority on such 
matters connected to religious 
worship in county schools and 
religious education to be given 
in accordance with an agreed 
syllabus…’
(Welsh Office Circular 10/94

P
age 39



“Religious education in the twenty-first century 
encourages pupils to explore a range of 
philosophical, theological, ethical, and spiritual 
questions in a reflective, analytical, balanced way that 
stimulates questioning and debate. It also focuses on 
understanding humanity’s quest for meaning, the 
positive aspects of multi-faith/multicultural 
understanding and pupils’ own understanding and 
responses to life and religion. Religious education in 
the twenty-first century consists of an open, 
objective, exploratory approach but parents continue 
to have the legal right to withdraw their children.”
(National exemplar framework for religious education for 3 to 19-year-olds in Wales)

P
age 40



“In religious education, learners develop thinking 
skills through a range of activities. Learners ask 
fundamental questions which are raised by human 
experience, the world and aspects of religion. They 
explore and make links between the religious beliefs, 
teachings and practices that they study. They plan 
investigations by gathering and utilising a range of 
religious and non-religious sources and use these to 
evaluate and justify their personal responses. They 
use a range of critical and creative problem solving 
techniques in order to develop ideas and explore and 
challenge interpretations, preconceptions and 
possibilities.”
(National exemplar framework for religious education for 3 to 19-year-olds in Wales)

P
age 41



� “Every school must by law provide religious 
education and daily collective worship for 
all its pupils (…this includes those in 
reception classes and sixth forms), with the 
exception of those pupils who are 
withdrawn from these activities by their 
parents” 

� (Welsh Office Circular 10/94)

P
age 42



• RE is required to be included, alongside the 
National Curriculum, in the basic 
curriculum which all maintained and 
controlled schools must provide for their 
registered pupils

• RE has equal standing in relation to 
National Curriculum subjects within a 
school’s curriculum

• RE is not subject to statutorily prescribed 
national attainment targets, programmes of 
study and assessment arrangements

P
age 43



� “…Detailed arrangements for the provision of 
religious education and collective worship are 
properly a matter of local responsibility.” 

� (Welsh Office Circular 10/94)

P
age 44



‘To support the effective provision of 
religious education and collective worship 
in schools. Each LA should work with its 
SACRE whether any changes need to be 
made in the agreed syllabus or in the 
support offered to schools. 
Similarly it should work with its SACRE to 
monitor the provision of collective 
worship and to consider any action which 
might be taken to improve such 
provision. (Welsh Office Circular 10/94)

P
age 45



� Each local authority in Wales is required by law to 
establish a Standing Advisory Council for Religious 
Education (SACRE), composed of three groups:
• Christian denominations and such other religions and 
religious denominations as, in the authority’s opinion, will 
appropriately reflect the principal religious traditions in the 
area

• Associations representing teachers. 

• LA representatives.

� SACRE may co-opt additional non-voting members

in accordance with the constitution.

(The LA group on a SACRE and RE Consultant are 
not entitled to cast a vote)

P
age 46



Advise the LA about RE and Collective 
Worship:
◦ meet statutory requirements 

◦ how the agreed syllabus for RE is best delivered

◦ methods of teaching

◦ resources to be used

◦ training of teachers

P
age 47



� SACREs should monitor school approaches to 
assessing pupils’ progress in RE and be aware of 
pupil uptake in examination in RE and RS.

� SACREs should be aware of the links between pupils’ 
RE and their spiritual, moral, social and cultural 
development. 

P
age 48



To require the LA to review its agreed 
syllabus for RE
◦ legal requirement for every LA to review its agreed 
syllabus within five years of the last review

◦ Any agreed syllabus “shall reflect the fact that the 
religious traditions in Great Britain are in the main 
Christian whilst taking account of the teaching and 
practices of the other principal religions 
represented in Great Britain”

The SACRE is legally separate from the 
Agreed Syllabus Conference (ASC) and is 
a permanent body. in practice, ASCs 
and SACREs generally comprise very 
similar, if not the same, individuals.

P
age 49



• LAs must adopt a locally agreed syllabus for 
religious education, as recommended by their 
SACREs, for implementation in their maintained 
and voluntary controlled schools and review 
their locally agreed syllabus every five years.  

• The ‘National Exemplar Framework for Religious 
Education for 3 to 19-year-olds in Wales’, 
created by RE professionals in Wales and 
published by ACCAC in 2008 has been written 
to comply with the legal obligations for a locally 
agreed syllabus. 

• It also offers an opportunity to provide a 
coherent and consistent assessment framework 
for the whole of Wales.

P
age 50



•Each of the 22 LAs adopted or 
adapted the exemplar 
framework to create their own 
agreed syllabus, in their 
agreed syllabus conferences in 
2008 and 2009.  
•The Agreed Syllabuses in 
Wales are statutory documents

P
age 51



To consider applications from school for 
determinations
◦ Determinations are requests to be exempt from 
“broadly Christian worship”

To consider complaints about the provision 
and delivery of religious education and 
collective worship
◦ To play a part in the local statutory complaints 
procedure where cases are referred to SACRE by the 
LA. 

P
age 52



� To publish an Annual Report on its work

◦ This is to be submitted to Welsh Government by 
31st December of each year.P

age 53



� Establish and fund a SACRE (including a clerk)

� Appoint members to SACRE and the Agreed 
Syllabus Conference

� Determine and provide the advice and support 
required by SACRE 

� Inform SACRE on matters relating to religious 
education and collective worship

� Provide information on school inspection and / or 
self-evaluation reports

P
age 54



� Respond to advice offered by SACRE

� Constitute and facilitate an agreed syllabus 
conference when required by SACRE

� Notify the Minister for Education when a new 
syllabus is agreed

� Consider curriculum complaints on RE and 
Collective Worship.

P
age 55



Since 2013, due to the proposed changes in the 
curriculum with the publication of Successful Futures, 
LA agreed syllabus conferences agreed to continue 
with their current agreed syllabi until such a time as 
the new curriculum for Wales and the implications for 
Religious Education are understood. This means that 
all schools, including those that are experimenting 
with their curriculum in light of Successful Futures, 
need to ensure that they are fulfilling the statutory 
requirements for RE according to their current locally 
agreed syllabus.  

It is the role of SACRE to ensure this is the case. 

P
age 56



� Provide support, help and advice on issues to do with the Local 
Agreed Syllabus;

� Form strong partnership between schools and SACRE in terms of 
reviewing RE,

� Identify what support the LA should give schools to improve the 
quality of RE

� Advise on and provide information on visits and visitors;
� Identify people to come in to the school to talk about faith and 

beliefs;
� Act as a vehicle for celebrating success disseminating effective 

practice in schools on matters of RE teaching and resources. 
� Offer support to subject leader or co-ordinator. 
� SACREs are places where inter-faith dialogue takes place in an 

education context and this can be of help to schools
� SACREs more and more are looking at involving children and 

young people in their work.

P
age 57



So you’re joining your local SACRE... 

A handbook for SACRE members in Wales

http://www.wasacre.org.uk/publications.html

Felly rydych yn ymuno â’ch CYSAG lleol...

Llawlyfr ar gyfer aelodau CYSAGau yng Nghymru

http://www.wasacre.org.uk/cym-publications.html

P
age 58



An Update

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 8



ESTYN’s new Inspection Framework
5 Inspection areas

1. Standards

2. Wellbeing and attitudes to learning

3. Teaching and learning experiences

4. Care, support and guidance

5. Leadership and management

P
age 60



ESTYN, religious education and 

collective worship?
Inspection Area 4.2
“Inspectors should consider the extent to which the school 
provides effective opportunities for pupils to develop secure 
values and to establish their spiritual and ethical beliefs. They 
should consider how well the school develops pupils’ ability to 
reflect on religious and non-religious responses to 
fundamental questions and to reflect on their own beliefs or 
values. They should consider how well the school promotes 
principles that help pupils to distinguish between right and 
wrong. They should consider how far the school fosters shared 
values, such as honesty, fairness, justice and sustainability, 
and helps pupils to understand the needs and rights of others, 
both locally and as members of a diverse global world.”

P
age 61



What are the judgements?
Excellent
� Very strong, sustained performance and practice

Good
� Strong features, although minor aspects may requre improvement

Adequate and needs improvement
� Strengths outweigh weaknesses, but important aspect require improvement

Unsatisfactory and needs urgent 
improvement
� Important weaknesses outweigh strengths

P
age 62



Browse through ESTYN’s website!

P
age 63



Aim: 

To consider  and discuss the letter and 

documentation to SACREs from Welsh 

Government

P
age 64



A Curriculum for Wales – a curriculum for life

P
age 65



P
age 66



Humanities AoLE: The Four Purposes

Pupils will:

• understand historical, geographical, political, economic, religious and societal 

concepts.

• explore their environment to further develop their sense of place and well-

being.

• engage in learning experiences about rights, values, ethics, beliefs, religion, 

philosophy and spirituality.

• consider, explore and make informed choices regarding sustainability and the 

impact of their actions.

• positively contribute to their community and critically engage with local, 

national and global issues to become a responsible citizen of Wales and the 

wider world.

P
age 67



Areas of Learning and Experience

�Expressive arts 

�Humanities (including RE which should remain compulsory 

to age 16)

�Health and well-being

�Languages, literacy and communication (including Welsh 

and modern foreign languages) 

�Mathematics and numeracy

�Science and technology (including computer science).

P
age 68



What matters?

1. Continuity, Change and Diversity
2. Words and Beyond
3. A Good Life
4. Making Sense of Life’s Experiences
5. Influence, Community, Culture and 

Power
6. The Big Picture

P
age 69



The Humanities AoLE group?

What matters in the Humanities?

1. Continuity, change and diversity impact on our world 

2. Society is influenced by community, culture and power 

3. Humanity faces many challenges that require informed 
and considered responses 

4. People interpret and represent the world in different ways 

5. Developing inquiring minds allows people to make sense 
of and engage with the world around them 

6. Responsible citizens are ethically informed, critical 
thinkers and play an active part in society 

P
age 70



P
age 71



Managing the Right to Withdrawal from 

Religious Education

P
age 72



The right to religious education
Complete withdrawal from 
Religious Education

� How many parents (families) 
withdraw their children from 
RE?

� What is the total number of 
children who are withdrawn 
completely from RE?

� How many parents (families) 
have given a reason for their 
request to withdraw their 
children from RE?

� What reasons did they give?

Partial withdrawal from Religious 

Education

• How many parents (families) 

withdraw their children from RE?

• What is the total number of 

children who are partially 

withdrawn from RE?

• From which aspects of RE are 

they withdrawn?

• How many parents (families) have 

given a reason for their request to 

withdraw their children from RE?

• What reasons did they give?

P
age 73



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Dear SACRE members,
 
Thank you for considering the content of the last update regarding Religious 
Education and the Humanities Area of Learning and Experience (AoLE) within the 
new curriculum for Wales, sent to you in July 2017. We are grateful for the 
responses received so far. We are still in the process of receiving comments and are 
currently collating the feedback to inform the development work.
 
Timelines
In September 2017, the Cabinet Secretary for Education published ‘Education in 
Wales: Our National Mission’. This action plan includes revised timelines for the new 
curriculum. Please see below the relevant key dates:
 

  April 2019: Draft curriculum available for feedback               

  January 2020: Final curriculum available                                            

  September 2022: All maintained schools and settings using new curriculum 
and assessment arrangements (roll-out starting with primary and Year 7 
and then year by year)

 
 
The What Matters approach
In considering an approach to developing the new curriculum, pioneer school 
practitioners involved in the design process identified that teaching ‘what matters’ 
was the starting point from which to build the new curriculum. As a result, pioneer 
groups – including the Humanities – have begun the process of developing key 
concepts to organise their AoLE by identifying ‘what matters’ in their fields i.e. the 
key elements that all learners should experience within their areas during their 
journey along the continuum of learning.
 
Each AoLE will consist of What Matters key concepts. These concepts are being 
developed to avoid excessive variation from school to school while allowing for local 
flexibility. The What Matters key concepts across the AoLEs will support the 
development of the Four Purposes of the new curriculum and will also reflect current 
ideas about important disciplinary knowledge, skills and competencies for each 
domain.
 
The development process for Humanities
In order to identify ‘what matters’ within the various subjects and disciplines that form 
the Humanities, we commissioned experts to prepare a series of papers to support 
the pioneer group’s work. These included papers relating to history, geography, 
business, social studies and Religious Education. The focus of these papers was to 
outline for each discipline:
 

         the core of knowledge/concepts and associated skills and 
competencies deemed essential for all pupils to learn. 

Page 75



         progression for the above, and an indication of what pupils should 
learn/experience relating broadly to expectations at ages 5, 8, 11, 14, 
16.

         building on the above, suggested What Matters key concepts.
 
WASACRE was commissioned to prepare a discussion paper relating to Religious 
Education. Representatives also attended a Humanities pioneer group workshop in 
November 2017 to present the paper and work with the group to develop proposals 
for the AoLE. Please find attached a copy of the commissioned paper.
 
Drawing on the expert input outlined above and identifying ‘what matters’ for each 
component discipline within the Humanities provided firm foundations for the pioneer 
group to develop overarching What Matters key concepts as a means of organising 
the AoLE.
 
The What Matters Proposals
I attach initial proposals for the What Matters key concepts for the Humanities AoLE. 
The content of the report was developed in December 2017 for submission to our 
Curriculum and Assessment Group, and reflects the Humanities pioneer group’s 
thinking at that time. The group continues to meet every three weeks and has begun 
developing progression frameworks to underpin each of these What Matters 
statements. In developing these frameworks as well as the detail of the AoLE during 
the spring term, the wording of the key concepts outlined in the attached document 
will naturally change and be refined.
 
We would like to invite you as a SACRE to consider these initial What Matters 
proposals and provide comments and/or suggestions for consideration during the 
next phase of the development work.
 
Further information, as well as the proposals for all six of  the AoLEs, including the 
Humanities, will be published shortly on our website:
http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/schoolshome/curriculuminwales/curriculum
-for-wales-curriculum-for-life/?lang=en
 
We would appreciate if you would send your comments to 
me: manon.jones@gov.wales
 
 
Next steps
Over the coming months, the Humanities pioneer group will focus on developing 
progression frameworks for the AoLE, supported by the CAMAU project (colleagues 
from University of Wales Trinity St David and Glasgow University). During this time, 
the content of the AoLE be developed in more detail.
 
We will send the next update to you at the end of May, and again invite your views 
on the proposals produced. We will also contact you in due course to outline further 
engagement opportunities for you to contribute to the curriculum development 
process during the summer term.
 
Best wishes,

Page 76

http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/schoolshome/curriculuminwales/curriculum-for-wales-curriculum-for-life/?lang=en
http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/schoolshome/curriculuminwales/curriculum-for-wales-curriculum-for-life/?lang=en
mailto:manon.jones@gov.wales


 
Manon
 
Manon Jones
Is – Adran y Cwricwlwm, Asesu ac Addysgeg /Curriculum, Assessment and 
Pedagogy Division
Addysg / Education
Llywodraeth Cymru/Welsh Government
Ffôn/Tel: 03000 252240

Annwyl Aelodau o’r Cyngor Ymgynghorol Sefydlog ar Addysg Grefyddol (CYSAG),
 
Diolch am ystyried y diweddariad diwethaf ynghylch Maes Dysgu a Phrofiad y 
Dyniaethau o fewn y Cwricwlwm Newydd i Gymru, a anfonwyd atoch chi ym mis 
Gorffennaf 2017. Rydym yn gwerthfawrogi’r ymatebion yr ydym wedi’u derbyn hyd 
yn hyn. Rydym yn dal i dderbyn sylwadau, ac rydym wrthi’n coladu’r adborth er 
mwyn ei ystyried fel rhan o’r gwaith datblygu.
 
Amserlenni
Ym mis Medi 2017, cyhoeddodd Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Addysg ‘Addysg yng 
Nghymru: Cenhadaeth ein Cenedl’. Mae’r cynllun gweithredu hwn yn cynnwys 
amserlenni diwygiedig ar gyfer y cwricwlwm newydd. Wele isod y dyddiadau 
allweddol perthnasol:
 

  Ebrill 2019: Cwricwlwm drafft ar gael er mwyn cael adborth arno

  Ionawr 2020: Cwricwlwm terfynol ar gael

  Medi 2022: Pob ysgol a lleoliad a gynhelir i ddefnyddio’r cwricwlwm a’r 
trefniadau asesu newydd (caiff hyn ei gyflwyno gan ddechrau gydag 
ysgolion cynradd a blwyddyn 7, ac yna fesul blwyddyn)

 
 
Yr Ymagwedd ‘Beth sy’n Bwysig’
Wrth ystyried sut i ddatblygu’r cwricwlwm newydd, penderfynodd ymarferwyr yr 
ysgolion arloesi a oedd yn rhan o’r broses ddylunio mai addysgu ‘beth sy’n bwysig’ 
fyddai’r man cychwyn ar gyfer llunio’r cwricwlwm newydd. O ganlyniad, mae grwpiau 
arloesi – gan gynnwys grŵp y Dyniaethau – wedi dechrau’r broses o ddatblygu 
cysyniadau allweddol ar gyfer trefnu’u Meysydd Dysgu a Phrofiad, a hynny drwy 
bennu ‘beth sy’n bwysig’ yn eu meysydd – hynny yw, beth yw’r elfennau allweddol y 
dylai pob dysgwr eu dysgu a’u profi yn y meysydd dan sylw yn ystod eu taith drwy’r 
continwwm addysg.

Page 77



 
Bydd pob Maes Dysgu a Phrofiad felly’n seiliedig ar gysyniadau allweddol ‘beth sy’n 
bwysig’. Mae’r cysyniadau hyn yn cael eu datblygu fel nad oes gormod o amrywio o 
ysgol i ysgol ond, hefyd, i sicrhau rhywfaint o hyblygrwydd yn lleol. Bydd y 
cysyniadau ‘beth sy’n bwysig’ ar draws y Meysydd Dysgu a Phrofiad yn cefnogi’r 
gwaith o ddatblygu Pedwar Diben y cwricwlwm newydd. Byddant hefyd yn 
adlewyrchu syniadau cyfredol mewn perthynas â gwybodaeth, sgiliau a 
chymwyseddau disgyblaethol pwysig ar gyfer pob maes.
 
Y broses ddatblygu
Er mwyn pennu ‘beth sy’n bwysig’ yn y gwahanol bynciau a disgyblaethau sy’n rhan 
o Faes Dysgu a Phrofiad y Dyniaethau, comisiynwyd arbenigwyr i lunio cyfres o 
bapurau i gefnogi gwaith y grŵp arloesi. Ymhlith y rhain mae papurau ar Hanes, 
Daearyddiaeth, Busnes, Astudiaethau Cymdeithasol ac Addysg Grefyddol. Nod y 
papurau hyn yw amlinellu’r canlynol ar gyfer pob disgyblaeth:
 

         y craidd: hynny yw’r wybodaeth / cysyniadau, a’r sgiliau a’r 
cymwyseddau cysylltiedig, y mae angen i bob disgybl eu dysgu;

         dilyniant ar gyfer yr uchod, a mynegiad o’r hyn y dylai disgyblion ei 
ddysgu neu gael profiad ohono, a hynny’n gysylltiedig, yn fras, â’r 
disgwyliadau ar gyfer 5 oed, 8 oed, 11 oed, 14 oed ac 16oed.

         Gan adeiladu ar yr uchod; awgrymu cysyniadau allweddol ar gyfer 
‘beth sy’n bwysig’.

 
Comisiynwyd Cymdeithas CYSAGau Cymru i baratoi papur trafod mewn perthynas 
ag Addysg Grefyddol. Hefyd, aeth cynrychiolwyr i weithdy arloeswyr y Dyniaethau 
ym mis Tachwedd 2017 i gyflwyno’r papur a gweithio gyda’r grŵp i ddatblygu 
cynigion ar gyfer y maes dysgu a phrofiad. Mae copi o’r papur hwn yn atodedig.
 
Gyda chymorth y mewnbwn arbenigol a amlinellir uchod a chan bennu ‘beth sy’n 
bwysig’ ar gyfer pob disgyblaeth sy’n rhan o’r Dyniaethau, darparwyd sylfaen gadarn 
i alluogi’r grŵp arloesi i ddatblygu cysyniadau allweddol ‘beth sy’n bwysig’ trosfwaol 
ar gyfer trefnu’r Maes Dysgu a Phrofiad.
 
Y Cynigion ‘Beth sy’n Bwysig’
Atodaf gynigion ar gyfer cysyniadau allweddol ‘beth sy’n bwysig’ ym Maes Dysgu a 
Phrofiad y Dyniaethau. Datblygwyd y cynnwys ym mis Rhagfyr 2017 i’w gyflwyno i’r 
Grŵp Cwricwlwm ac Asesu, ac mae felly’n adlewyrchiad o’r hyn oedd dan ystyriaeth 
y grŵp arloesi bryd hynny. Mae’r grŵp yn parhau i gwrdd bob tair wythnos ac mae 
bellach wedi dechrau datblygu fframweithiau dilyniant ar gyfer pob un o’r 
datganiadau ‘beth sy’n bwysig’ hyn. Wrth ddatblygu’r fframweithiau hyn a manylion 
eraill y Maes Dysgu a Phrofiad yn ystod tymor y Gwanwyn, bydd geiriad y 
cysyniadau allweddol yn y ddogfen atodedig yn siŵr o newid.
 
Hoffem eich gwahodd, fel CYSAG, i ystyried y cynigion cychwynnol hyn ar gyfer 
‘Beth sy’n Bwysig’ a rhoi sylwadau neu awgrymiadau i’w hystyried yn ystod cam 
nesaf y gwaith datblygu.
 
Bydd gwybodaeth bellach, ynghyd â’r cynigion ar gyfer y chwe maes dysgu a 
phrofiad, gan gynnwys y Dyniaethau, ar gael yn fuan ar ein gwefan:

Page 78



http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/schoolshome/curriculuminwales/curriculum
-for-wales-curriculum-for-life/?skip=1&lang=cy
 
Gwerthfawrogwn pe baech chi’n anfon eich sylwadau ataf 
i: manon.jones@gov.wales
 
Camau Nesaf
Dros y misoedd i ddod, bydd Grŵp Arloesi’r Dyniaethau yn canolbwyntio ar 
ddatblygu fframweithiau dilyniant  ar gyfer y maes dysgu a phrofiad, gyda chymorth 
prosiect CAMAU (cydweithwyr o Brifysgol y Drindod Dewi Sant a Phrifysgol 
Glasgow). Yn ystod y cyfnod hwn, caiff cynnwys y Maes Dysgu a Phrofiad ei 
ddatblygu’n fanylach.
 
Fe anfonwn ni’r diweddariad nesaf atoch tua diwedd mis Mai, gan ofyn eto am eich 
barn. Hefyd, fe gysylltwn â chi yn y man  i ddweud wrthych am gyfleoedd i gyfrannu 
at y gwaith o ddatblygu’r cwricwlwm yn ystod tymor yr haf.
 
Cofion gorau,
 
Manon
 
Manon Jones
Is – Adran y Cwricwlwm, Asesu ac Addysgeg /Curriculum, Assessment and 
Pedagogy Division
Addysg / Education
Llywodraeth Cymru/Welsh Government
Ffôn/Tel: 03000 252240

 

Hapus i gyfathrebu’n Saesneg neu yn y Gymraeg/Happy to communicate in English 
or Welsh
 
 

Page 79

http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/schoolshome/curriculuminwales/curriculum-for-wales-curriculum-for-life/?skip=1&lang=cy
http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/schoolshome/curriculuminwales/curriculum-for-wales-curriculum-for-life/?skip=1&lang=cy
mailto:manon.jones@gov.wales


This page is intentionally left blank



  A Welsh Government commission 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Religious Education: 

supporting the early stages of the process of developing 

the Humanities’ AoLE 

 

produced by a WASACRE and NAPfRE 

working group 

 

September 2017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A discussion document for the Humanities’ Group 

Page 81



 2 

Members of the Working Group 

Contributions have been made by the following members of the Wales Association of 

SACREs (WASACRE) and the National Advisory Panel for Religious Education (NAPfRE): 

 

Dr Tania ap Sion  

University of Warwick 

 

Professor Leslie J Francis  

University of Warwick 

 

Bethan James  

GwE 

 

Libby Jones  

The St Giles’ Centre for Religious Education and Wrexham County Council 

 

Phil Lord  

GwE 

 

Mary Parry  

Carmarthenshire and ERW 

 

Gill Vaisey 

Religious Education Consultant 

 

Paula Webber  

Religious Education Consultant and Secretary to WASACRE 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 82



 3 

CONTENTS 

1 Aims and objectives 

2 What matters in Religious Education 

3 Core Knowledge, Skills and Competencies in Religious Education 

4 What matters in Religious Education- Spiritual Development 

5 Religious Education and the Four Purposes 

6 An example outline of progression in Religious Education  

7 An indication of what pupils will learn/experience in Religious Education  

8 Consideration of cross-curriculum responsibilities, wider skills, Welsh dimension and 

 international perspectives within Religious Education 

References 

Appendix 1 Suggestions for learning experiences in Religious Education at ages 5, 8, 11, 

14, and 16 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 83



 4 

1 Aims and objectives 

The aims and objectives of this paper are to provide, as requested by the Welsh Government, 

a brief paper for Religious Education outlining: 

 the core knowledge/concepts and associated skills and competencies deemed essential 

for all pupils to learn in the discipline; 

 progression for the above, and an indication of what pupils should learn/experience 

relating broadly to expectations at ages 5, 8, 11, 14, 16; 

 suggested ‘what matters’/’big ideas’ key concepts for Religious Education presented 

in the form of questions (building on the above); 

 how the cross-curriculum responsibilities, wider skills, and Welsh 

dimension/international perspectives can be embedded in relation to Religious 

Education. 

 

Throughout, links to the ‘four purposes’ have been considered.   

 

The purpose of this paper is to ‘stimulate discussions within the Humanities’ pioneer group 

rather than present definitive proposals for the group to consider’.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 84



 5 

2 What matters in Religious Education? 

The three areas outlined below provide an overview of ‘What Matters In RE’.   The three 

areas are naturally interrelated and in teaching and learning this will be evident at all times.   

In Religious Education, it is important to ensure that the reality of expression of belief in 

contemporary society is acknowledged and this will include both the positive and negative 

impact of religion in today’s world.  It is also important that Religious Education reflects and 

explores the extent of diversity apparent in religious beliefs and practices as illustrated by 

individuals, families and communities.  Change over time in terms of interpretation of 

teachings must also be reflected as well as the differences of interpretation and practices 

evident in different countries and cultures.    

Awareness of life experience and questions raised 

It is important that children and young people make sense of their experience of the natural 

world and human relationships, recognise that for some there is a spiritual side to life, and be 

sensitive to the issues and questions that these experiences raise. In the process they should 

become aware of the difficult and ultimate (philosophical and ethical) questions that confront 

all human beings, for example about right and wrong, suffering and death and the meaning 

and purpose of life.  They should consider various religious and non-religious responses to 

such questions and issues.  

Beliefs, teachings and practices 

It is important that children and young people develop a secure knowledge and understanding 

of the beliefs, teachings and practices of Christianity and the other principal world religions 

represented in Wales. They should develop a conceptual framework which helps them to 

understand religion in general and the specific religions they are studying. They should know 

about: the key beliefs of specific religions; sources of authority, especially sacred writings, 

stories, key historical figures and contemporary religious leaders; ways in which people 

worship, their rituals and how they celebrate their faith; lifestyles that derive from religious 

belief and the nature of the local and broader religious communities. They should become 

increasingly aware of the use of symbolism in religion and of non-literal ways in which 

religious faith is expressed.  They should identify similarities and differences across and 

within religions and be knowledgeable about shared values and diversity. They should make 

and understand links between beliefs, teachings and practices and understand how these 

impact on the lives of individuals, the local community and wider society.   

Exploration and personal response 

It is important that children and young people develop skills that will enable them to explore 

religion and human experience and be able to respond to contemporary issues of relevance to 

their lives and the world today. They should ask questions, research and critically evaluate 

religious and non-religious sources and learn to develop informed and considered responses. 

They should explore and reflect on the spiritual side of life that is recognised by some people. 

They should be able to reflect on their own beliefs, values and actions in the light of their 

Page 85



 6 

studies and express and justify their own feelings and opinions.  In addition, they should be 

able to respond critically, yet empathetically, to the beliefs, values and actions of others. They 

should express their responses in a variety of creative ways, using a range of media and 

positive action. Pupils should develop attitudes of open-mindedness, empathy, and respect 

where appropriate, when engaging with the viewpoints and lifestyles of others.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 86



 7 

3 Core Knowledge, Skills and Competencies in Religious Education 

The knowledge, skills and competencies for Religious Education set out below reflect in 

broad terms the three areas which encompass ‘What Matters In RE’. The first and second 

areas, Awareness of life experience and questions raised, and Beliefs, teachings and 

practices, include the core knowledge and related competencies that children and young 

people in Wales need to have. The third area, Exploration and personal response includes the 

specific skills that all young people in Wales will develop whilst studying Religious 

Education and which will support them in  gaining the core knowledge and related 

competencies deemed essential in RE. Together these areas will support children and young 

people in Wales in achieving some of the characteristics of the Four Purposes 

 Awareness of life experience and questions raised 

Children and young people will gain knowledge of 

 the natural world 

 human relationships 

 the non-material/spiritual 

and competency in: 

 drawing on their own experiences and on a variety of religious and non-religious 

responses to make sense of the world and human relationships  

 asking, discussing and considering difficult and ultimate questions 

 recognising and appreciating the non-material/spiritual side of life 

Beliefs, teachings and practices 

Children and young people will gain knowledge of 

 key beliefs 

 sources of authority 

 ways in which people live and worship 

 symbolism and non-literal forms of expression 

 similarities and differences across and within religions 

 impact of religion 

and competency in: 

 recalling, describing and explaining religious beliefs, teachings and practices 

 describing and explaining the similarities and differences across and within religions 

 analysing and interpreting layers of meaning/symbolism 

 explaining how religion impacts on the lives of individuals, local communities and 

wider society 

 making and understanding links between beliefs, teachings and practices  

Page 87



 8 

Exploration and personal response 

Children and young people will develop skills in: 

 carrying out investigation 

 interrogating evidence 

 discerning relevance and value of sources 

 recognising, exploring and reflecting on the spiritual side of life 

 expressing and justifying their own feelings and opinions 

 demonstrating how what they have learned has impacted on their own beliefs, values 

and actions 

 appreciating, empathising with, and evaluating the viewpoints of others  

 expressing responses in a variety of ways 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 88



 9 

4 What Matters in RE - Spiritual Development 

Religious Education lends itself to providing opportunities for the spiritual development of 

children and young people, thus leading to higher self-esteem, aspiration and critical 

awareness. It is impossible to measure spiritual development in terms of progression; 

however, good Religious Education should be rich in opportunities for spiritual development. 

This occurs when we pay attention to the detail of the world around us, developing a 

conscious awareness of self, other people, the world or universe. Spirituality can, but does not 

necessarily, involve religion. It is about engaging the heart in everyday life within the local 

and global community. Spiritual development is accompanied by moral development as a 

result of a growth of awareness of self in relation to others. 

Whilst engaging with the three areas as outlined in ‘What Matters In RE’, children and young 

people will have opportunity for spiritual development by:  

• making sense of their experience of the natural world and human relationships; 

• recognising that, for some, there is a spiritual side to life, and becoming sensitive to 

the issues and questions that these experiences raise; 

• developing awareness of and reflecting upon the difficult and ultimate questions that 

confront all human beings;  

• gaining knowledge and understanding of the beliefs, teachings and practices of others 

and becoming conscious of self, other and the world; 

• exploring how religion impacts on the lives of individuals, the local community and 

wider society;  

• responding to contemporary issues of relevance to their lives and the world today;  

• reflecting upon their own beliefs, values and actions and expressing and justifying 

their own feelings and opinions;  

• responding critically, yet empathetically, to the beliefs, values and actions of others; 

and  

• developing attitudes of open-mindedness, empathy, and respect where appropriate, 

when engaging with the viewpoints and lifestyles of others. 

Spiritual development occurs when pupils are given the opportunity to:  

• engage their hearts and live fully; 

• develop creativity and use their imagination; 

• ask, consider and discuss the big ultimate questions; 

• stop, think and reflect; 

Page 89



 10 

• develop aspirations; 

• create a sense of belonging in the wider local and global community; 

• develop self-awareness and awareness of the needs of others; 

• experience compassion and help others e.g. through charity work;  

• show empathy and consideration for others; 

• develop a voice and listen with respect to the voices of others;  

• talk about themselves in relation to others, the world and/or God; 

• form good relationships; 

• look after the environment and show concern for the world around them;  

• listen to stories past and present, including the stories of those around them; 

• experience awe and wonder or be amazed by things;  

• experience the natural world; 

• create meaning and purpose; and  

• experience that which is beyond the mundane and material and in the arts. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 90



 11 

5 Religious Education and the Four Purposes 

Ambitious, capable learners 

In Religious Education children and young people will have the opportunity to build up a 

sound body of knowledge and understanding of Christianity and other principal world 

religions and beliefs through enquiry, exploration and evaluation. They will be provided with 

opportunities which focus on the intellectual challenge of carrying out research, critically 

evaluating evidence, critical and intuitive thinking, justifying opinions and theories, and 

developing and interpreting alternative explanations. Children and young people will also 

develop their communication skills effectively when expressing their own opinions and ideas, 

alongside those of others in different forms and settings. 

Enterprising, creative contributors 

In Religious Education children and young people  will be encouraged to think creatively to 

reframe and solve problems especially in relation to difficult questions such as, Is world 

peace achievable?, Is it ever right to take a life?, and Can poverty ever be eradicated?. They 

will be encouraged to express their ideas and emotions in a variety of ways and using 

different technologies, and will be expected to give of their energy and skills within and 

outside the classroom so that other people will benefit. Children and young people will be 

motivated to grasp opportunities to learn about the cultural and religious diversity of those 

around them and the importance of this for productive relationships and preparation for life 

outside and beyond school.  

Ethical, informed citizens 

In Religious Education children and young people will have the opportunity to develop the 

ability to discern, to challenge bias and to make value judgements when faced with complex 

and conflicting information. They will engage with a wide variety of contemporary issues 

such as wealth, equality, human dignity, peace and conflict. Through the study of religious 

and non-religious attitudes to these issues they will be able to form their own views and 

understand those of others. They will also, through the study of the principal world religions 

and worldviews, become knowledgeable about their culture, community, society and the 

world, now and in the past. Exploration of shared values and attitudes will encourage children 

and young people to respect the needs and rights of others, as members of a diverse society.  

Healthy confident individuals 

In Religious Education children and young people will be given the opportunity to consider a 

possible spiritual side of life and respond to moral issues. This will help them to develop 

personal integrity, conscience and responsibility, and will contribute to them establishing 

possible spiritual and ethical beliefs. Through the study of religious beliefs, teachings and 

practices they will be able to develop a resilience and empathy in relation to religious 

standpoints, which can be applied to different contexts. Children and young people ls will 

experience challenge in Religious Education when exposed to the beliefs, teachings and 

Page 91



 12 

practices of others and will learn to develop reasoned and considered responses, appropriate 

for school and wider society contexts.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 92



 13 

 6 An example outline of progression in Religious Education  

Progression steps 

Age 5 Awareness of life experience and questions raised 

Pupils talk about aspects of their own and others’ everyday life e.g. family, homes, 

rules, right and wrong, happy and sad times, celebrations, communities and groups 

to which they belong. Pupils explore and experience the natural world, display 

curiosity and show care and concern for living things and the environment.    

 

Beliefs, teachings and practices  

Pupils experience first-hand, aspects of religion and belief through engagement 

with stories, artefacts, people and places.  They enjoy new experiences, language 

and vocabulary.  They recognise that some things are special to themselves and 

others and these may be the same or different e.g. times, people, places. 

 

Exploration and personal responses 

Pupils talk about and communicate their thoughts and feelings about their own and 

others’ experiences.       

 

Age 8 Awareness of life experiences and questions raised 

Pupils ask questions and listen to the views of others in order to develop their 

understanding of their own and others’ everyday life experiences, e.g. Why do we 

have to do this? How should we treat other people? Pupils ask questions about the 

universe and the beauty and cruelty of nature, e.g. How and why did the world 

come to be? Why do bad things happen? Should we look after living things and the 

natural world?  
 

Beliefs, teachings and practices  

Pupils will engage with aspects of religion and belief, consider what they have 

learnt and how this might relate to their own lives and experiences. They will 

understand the importance of some stories, times, people and places within 

different religions and how these influence some people’s lives.  They recognise 

the similarities and differences between aspects of different religions and are also 

aware of diversity within religions. They can recognise some religious symbols and 

offer simple explanations of what they mean. 
 

Exploration and personal responses 

Pupils describe their thoughts and feelings about their own and others’ experiences.   

They carry out simple investigations and use evidence from different sources in 

order to consider the questions raised. 
 

Age 11 Awareness of life experience and questions raised 

Pupils ask and consider moral questions relating to human relationships (e.g. 

relating to right and wrong, fairness, forgiveness), and know of religious and non-

religious moral codes of behaviour. Pupils ask and consider difficult questions to 

which there are no universally agreed answers, e.g. questions about God/Ultimate 

Reality, the universe, the natural world, meaning and purpose of life. They have 

knowledge of different religious and non-religious responses to these questions and 

are aware of different interpretations within religions, e.g. pupils are familiar with 

some religious and non-religious narratives about the origins of the universe and 

recognise that there are different interpretations of these stories.   

Page 93



 14 

Beliefs, teachings and practices  

Pupils describe and explain aspects of religion and belief. They are able to make 

links between beliefs and practice and understand the impact religion has on 

people’s lives. Pupils are able to make connections with their own life experiences 

and those of others.  They identify and describe similarities and differences across 

and within religions.  They also know that within a religion there is much diversity 

which can be evident through different interpretations of teachings, practices and 

different levels of commitment.  

Pupils understand and explain the meaning and significance of a range of religious 

symbolism, e.g. artefacts, actions, stories and language.  

 

Exploration and personal responses 

Pupils carry out investigation in an open-minded way. They critically use evidence 

and discern relevance of religious and non-religious sources. They express and 

begin to justify their feelings and opinions, and explain in simple terms how they 

differ from those of others. Pupils begin to show an appreciation of and empathy 

with the viewpoints of others. 

 

Age 14 Awareness of life experience and questions raised 

Pupils ask and debate moral and ethical questions relating to human relationships 

and experience e.g. questions relating to prejudice and discrimination, justice and 

equality, freedom, rights and responsibilities. They understand how different 

interpretations of religious and non-religious teachings/guidance can influence 

people’s decision making on ethical issues within contemporary society. Pupils ask 

and debate ultimate questions, e.g. questions about suffering, life after death, 

existence of God, existence of a soul, what makes us human. They know and 

understand a range of different religious and non-religious responses to these 

questions.  

 

Beliefs, teachings and practices  

Pupils describe and explain in depth, their knowledge of a variety of religions and 

beliefs. They understand the impact of people’s religion and belief, now and in the 

past, upon themselves, other individuals, local and global society. Pupils have 

knowledge and understanding of the diversity within and across religions and 

appreciate the challenges of commitment and expression of faith in contemporary 

society. Pupils analyse and interpret layers of meaning in religious expression, e.g. 

literature, art, dance, rituals. 

 

Exploration and personal responses 

Pupils carry out investigation and interrogate evidence in order to formulate their 

own reasoned viewpoint. Pupils discern relevance and detect bias within religious 

and non-religious sources. They express and justify their feelings and opinions and 

reflect on how what they have learned has impacted on their own beliefs, values 

and actions. Pupils appreciate, empathise with and evaluate the viewpoints of 

others, and express their own considered responses in different ways. 

 

Age 16 Awareness of life experience and questions raised 

Pupils investigate ultimate philosophical and ethical questions from a variety of 

religious and non-religious perspectives, including some philosophical schools of 

thought.  They understand that such questions are complex and answers are often 

Page 94



 15 

partial and inconclusive. For example, are ethical rules absolute for all time, or 

should they be relative to circumstance, context and development in society over 

time?  

 

Beliefs, teachings and practices  

Pupils describe and explain their detailed knowledge and clear understanding of 

religion and beliefs.  Pupils critically evaluate specific aspects of religion and 

beliefs and consider the different interpretations of religious teachings and the 

impact of these upon themselves, other individuals, local and global society. They 

have knowledge and a clear understanding of the vast expression of diverse views 

across and within religions. Pupils give examples of this in a variety of contexts. 

Pupils analyse, interpret and evaluate layers of meaning in religious expression, e.g. 

literature, art, rituals, dance and music.  

 

Exploration and personal responses 

Pupils carry out in-depth investigation, interrogate a wide range of evidence and 

will detect bias accurately, including in social media. They will select reliable and 

valuable evidence in order to formulate their own reasoned viewpoint. They 

express and justify their feelings with maturity, demonstrating clearly how what 

they have learned has impacted on their own beliefs, values and actions. Pupils 

appreciate, empathise with and evaluate the viewpoints of others in order to draw 

their own reasoned conclusions and develop positive attitudes. They express these 

responses in a variety of ways. 

 

 

NB. Concerns 

 

Whilst this paper follows the format requested by the Welsh Government, and therefore 

refers to specific ages in relation to progression, the view of the authors is that progression 

should be based on developmental phases rather than age.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 95



 16 

7 An indication of what pupils will learn/experience in religious education 

What should pupils experience at ages 5, 8, 11, 14 and 16? 

Enrichment and Experiences – A Definition 

A style of teaching and learning that actively engages children and young people, and 

encourages independent and individual thinking and responses. Pupil voice, fun, relevant and 

real-world learning resources lie at the heart of creating an environment where the desire to 

learn comes from individuals themselves. The underpinning principle is that learning 

becomes more valued and enjoyable when content and process are learned in the context of 

real and present problems to be solved and questions to be answered. An enriched education 

is created by any activity that makes learning more meaningful, substantial, or rewarding 

and thus improves the educational experience of the individual.  

Enrichment and Experiences Working Group  

Strand 1, Interim Report, January 2017 

Religious Education should be a multi-sensory experience.  Children and young people 

should experience the wonder and mystery of the natural world.  As they explore how people 

choose to express their religion and belief, they will encounter the sights, smells, and sounds, 

tastes and textures of worship, festivals and celebration.  Meaningful engagement with 

religious communities can be enjoyable and memorable. 

Good Religious Education uses places of worship within the local community and/or further 

afield as a starting point to teach concepts such as worship, commitment, rites of passage and 

celebration. Speaking to faith representatives, observing acts of worship, religious festivals 

and celebrations, and participating in cultural activities help all children and young people to 

learn about the impact of religion and belief on individuals and society. Working in 

partnership with local faith communities may contribute to community understanding and 

cohesion.   

Experiential learning gives young children opportunities to engage in role-play activities or to 

participate in activities concerning celebrations and worship. Simulation-based learning gives 

children and young people opportunities to consider how religion and belief influence people 

as they respond to ethical dilemmas, solve real and present problems or deal with meaningful 

tasks. Using stilling exercises and providing opportunities for children of all ages to 

experience meditation techniques relevant to learning in Religious Education can contribute 

to developing healthy confident individuals and support positive mental and emotional well-

being. 

Creative learning gives children and young people the opportunity to consider how 

musicians, writers, artists and dancers express their religion and belief in art.  By working 

with artists in residence or participating in creative projects, they will learn to express their 

personal responses to religion and belief and spirituality through the arts. 

Page 96



 17 

Good Religious Education ensures that all children and young people feel engaged in and 

have ownership of their learning.  By responding to religion in the news and media, their 

Religious Education will be relevant to their lives. They will learn to make choices as they 

develop lines of enquiry, select resources and explore ways of sharing their knowledge and 

understanding of the impact of religion and beliefs with other audiences.   Their Religious 

Education will help them engage with contemporary issues and may/should inspire them to 

be ethical, informed citizens who are ready to be citizens of Wales and the world.   

Suggestions for learning experiences in Religious Education at ages 5, 8, 11, 14, and 16 can 

be seen in Appendix 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 97



 18 

8 Consideration of cross-curriculum responsibilities, wider skills, Welsh dimension

 and international perspectives within Religious Education 

Within Religious Education there are numerous opportunities for embedding cross-curricular 

responsibilities, wider skills, Welsh dimension and international perspectives. 

Cross-curricular responsibilities 

Literacy  

In Religious Education children and young people will develop their speaking and listening 

skills as they explore ultimate questions, reflect on ethical and moral issues and clarify their 

own thinking. They will learn to pose a range questions as they talk to members of faith 

communities and work with others to follow lines of enquiry.  They will learn to explain their 

own conclusions, opinions and beliefs, by following a logical line of argument, drawing on 

evidence and presenting sound reasons.   They will show that they can listen to others and 

take account of their points of view, their culture and their faith.   

In Religious Education children and young people will learn to read accurately as they 

retrieve and interpret information from a wide range of sources in order to learn about 

religion and the impact of beliefs, teachings and practices on people’s lives. They will 

develop the ability to decode and interpret the symbolic and metaphorical language of 

religious texts and visual art. Consequently, they will learn how language is used within a 

range of contexts and for a variety of purposes.  

In Religious Education children and young people will learn to use a range of non-fiction 

forms of writing for a variety of purposes.  They will acquire a vocabulary of religious terms 

and will communicate their knowledge and understanding of religious and non-religious 

beliefs competently and with increasing complexity and accuracy.  They will learn to express 

their own possible spirituality and personal sense of meaning in a variety of creative forms of 

writing. 

Numeracy 

In Religious Education children and young people will develop an understanding of shape, 

pattern, distance, time and money as they learn how beliefs, teachings and practices impact 

on people’s lives.  They will learn how to interpret and critically evaluate data in texts, 

diagrams and graphs, and develop their own data-handling skills as they explore people’s 

attitudes and opinions about ethical and moral issues. 

Digital competency 

In Religious Education children and young people will learn to be responsible and safe when 

searching for information online and will be able to evaluate the validity and reliability of 

their search findings.  They will use a variety of online sources and will learn to recognise 

language that could be deemed to be offensive.  They will be astute and sensitive while using 

email, social media and video links collaboratively to learn about people’s religious beliefs 

Page 98



 19 

and practices.  They will learn how to collect and interpret data, in order to identify patterns 

and trends relating to religious practices or people’s opinions on ethical and moral issues.  

They will show an understanding of purpose and audience as they use a range of software and 

media to communicate their own knowledge, understanding and personal responses.   

Wider skills  

In Religious Education children and young people will work with others as they plan 

investigations involving gathering and utilising a range of religious and non-religious sources 

in order to explore different responses to ultimate questions and aspects of religion and belief. 

They will develop their own personal effectiveness as important members of a team who are 

relied upon to contribute by organising and carrying out investigation. They will also develop 

this skill as individual learners who are required to evaluate, justify and express their own 

considered responses in a variety of ways, developing positive attitudes and using positive 

action.  

In Religious Education children and young people will hone their problem solving skills 

when responding to contemporary issues. They will learn to discern the relevance and value 

of sources when exploring these issues and investigating ultimate questions. They will 

critically evaluate sources and the viewpoints of others in order to draw their own reasoned 

conclusions.  

Welsh dimension and international perspectives 

Religious Education is a subject that has always incorporated and responded to local and 

national issues and perspectives. SACREs (Standing Advisory Councils on Religious 

Education) in each local authority are locally determined and able to support important 

aspects of the Welsh dimension in relation to Religious Education.  

Religious Education offers children and young people the opportunity to appreciate the shape 

and significance of the rich Christian heritage and diverse range of religions and beliefs 

evident in Wales, both past and present, and how these impact on life in Wales today. This 

may contribute to social cohesion, cultural and religious awareness, cooperation and 

understanding within society and individual communities. 

Religious Education is concerned with investigating challenging questions and issues of 

global significance, which are explored from religious and non-religious perspectives. For 

example, natural areas relevant for Religious Education include: political decision making, 

exploitation and justice, social freedom and responsibility, human rights, economic ethics, 

and relationship responsibilities and dynamics between Wales and others parts of the world.  

 

 

 

 

Page 99



 20 

References 

ACCAC (2008) National exemplar framework for religious education for 3-19-year-olds in 

Wales Department for Children, Education, Lifelong Learning and Skills, Welsh Assembly 

Government 

Donaldson, Professor G (2015) Successful Futures; Independent Review of Curriculum and 

Assessment Arrangements in Wales Welsh Assembly Government 

Enrichment and experiences working group (2017) Strand 1, interim report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 100



Appendix 1 Suggestions for learning experiences in Religious Education at ages 5, 8, 11, 14, and 16 

 

At 5 years old At 8 years old At 11 years old At 14 years old At 16 years old 

 Role play 

 Persona dolls 

 Natural world 

 Storyteller 

 Visits to special 

places within 

the school or 

local 

community 

 

 Role play 

 Persona dolls 

 Natural world 

 Storyteller 

 Theatre in Education, 

e.g. “In Character” 

 Artist in Residence 

 Speaking to and 

working with faith 

representatives 

 Visit to a place of 

worship 

 Observing or 

recreating* a 

celebration or festival 

 Religious artefacts 

 Circle time 

 Role play 

 Natural world 

 Storyteller 

 Theatre in Education, 

e.g. “In Character” 

 Artist in Residence, e.g. 

Spirited Arts, Into Film 

 Speaking to and working 

with faith representatives 

 Using a digital/virtual 

learning platform, e.g. 

virtual tour of a place of 

worship 

 Visit to a place of 

worship 

 Visit to a gallery library 

or museum, e.g. religious 

art and artefacts, sacred 

books 

 Observing or recreating* 

a celebration, festival or 

pilgrimage 

 Religious artefacts 

 Solving a mystery 

 P4C 

 Natural world 

 Storyteller 

 Theatre in Education 

 Artist in Residence, e.g. Spirited Arts, 

Into Film 

 Speaking to and working with faith 

representative 

 Debating ethical and moral issues 

with a panel of visitors  

 Using a digital/virtual learning 

platform, e.g. Face to Faith, True 

Tube 

 Visit to a place of worship 

 Visit to a gallery, library or museum, 

e.g. religious art and artefacts, sacred 

books, 

 Observing worship, a religious 

celebration, festival or pilgrimage, 

e.g. Labyrinth Adventure 

 Religious artefacts 

 Solving a mystery 

 Dilemma based, problem solving 

activities or simulations, e.g. Mock 

trials, conferences, parliaments, truth 

and reconciliation commissions 

 P4C 

 Natural world 

 Storyteller 

 Theatre in Education 

 Artist in Residence, e.g. Spirited Arts, 

Into Film 

 Speaking to and working with faith 

representatives 

 Debating ethical and moral issues 

with a panel of visitors 

 Using a digital/virtual learning 

platform, e.g. Face to Faith, True 

Tube 

 Visit to a place of worship 

 Visit to a gallery, library or museum, 

e.g. religious art and artefacts, sacred 

books 

 Observing worship, a religious 

celebration or festival 

 Religious artefacts 

 Solving a mystery 

 Dilemma based, problem solving 

activities or simulations, e.g. Mock 

trials, parliaments, conferences truth 

and reconciliation commissions 

 P4C 

P
age 101



T
his page is intentionally left blank



V0.2 – Post CAG revision 18 December 2017 

  

 

 

Humanities AoLE:  

Submission to Curriculum & 
Assessment Group: 4 December 2017 

(Revised following CAG feedback during AoLE workshop 11 December 2017) 

 

Page 103



V0.2 – Post CAG revision 18 December 2017 

 

Table of Contents 

 

     Introduction…………………………………………………………………….1 

1. Response from CAG (December 2017)     3 

2. A statement defining ‘what matters’ in the context of the AoLE…….. 4 

 

3. Initial titles for strands of ‘what matters’………………… …………….4 

 

           6 Statements……….……………………………………………..  6 

 
4. Appropriateness of What Matters statements to be taught  

across the Continuum of Learning …………………………………….9 

 

  

Page 104



Humanities  AoLE:  Submission to CAG: 4 December 2017 

1 

 

Introduction  

 

Introduction – Outline of approaches taken during the Autumn term 2017 

 

During the Summer term the Humanities AoLE group commissioned a number of 

papers from identified experts across the Humanities domain areas. The brief 

provided to these experts was to provide clarity on ‘what matters’ within the 

constituent humanities disciplines: - Geography, History, RE, Business and Social 

Studies. 

 

A list of these papers is provided below: - 

 Eleanor Rawling - Commissioned Work on the Geography Curriculum 

 Geographical Association – Geographical Association and the Big Ideas 

 Dr Barbara Wintersgill (Exeter University) – Big Ideas for RE Education 

 Dr Elin Jones – The Essentials of History  

 Professor Calvin Jones (Cardiff University Business School) - Business and 
the Economy in the Donaldson Curriculum 

 Dr Claire Sinnema (University of Auckland)  
i)  Social Studies within the Humanities Area of Learning and Experience 
ii) Designing a National Curriculum with enactment in mind 

 WASACRE (Wales Association of SACREs) Religious Education: 

supporting the early stages of the process of developing the Humanities’ AoLE 

The group also considered: - 

 Dr Joseph Smith:- What remains of history? Historical epistemology and 
historical understanding in Scotland's Curriculum for Excellence  

 A presentation from Professor Mark Priestley provided to AoLE Leads – 
Developing the Curriculum, Concepts and Practices.   

 Selected sections from: - Wiggins, G and McTighe, J (2005) Understanding by 
Design; Alexandria VA: ASCD (to provide theoretical underpinning and help 
group to understand the origin of ‘big ideas’ in the curriculum.) 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 105



Humanities  AoLE:  Submission to CAG: 4 December 2017 

2 

 

During the Autumn term the Humanities AoLE group invited many of the contributors 

above to present to the group, in order to contextualise the papers. The following 

individuals presented to the group. 

 

 Gill Miller (Geographical Association) 

 Eleanor Rawling (Independent Curriculum Consultant)  

 Dr Elin Jones  

 Professor Calvin Jones (Cardiff University) 

 WASACRE 

The group also received feedback on task 1, statement of how the AoLE supports 

the 4 purposes from Dr. Claire Sinnema and the initial drafting of ‘what matters’ 

concepts for History from Dr. Joseph Smith. 

During the workshop sessions the groups work on the following tasks:- 

 

Dates Key Activities  

September 27/28 What do we mean by ‘Big Ideas’ and how does this related 
to ‘What matters’ in the curriculum? 

Consideration of ‘What Matters’ in History and Geography 

A summary of the research on learning progression in 
Humanities from the Camau Project  

October 17/18 Consideration of ‘What Matters’ in Business and Social 
Studies 

  

November 13/14 Consideration of ‘What Matters’ in RE 

Consolidation of learning to develop ‘What Matters’ in the 
Humanities, with development of supporting narratives. 

December 13/14 Consideration of ‘What Matters’ following comments 
received from Curriculum and Assessment Group (CAG) 
and instigating the CAMAU process.  

 

As outlined in the table above the group started by asking the question ‘what 

matters?’ within the constituent Humanities subjects (as defined within Successful 

Futures). At each 2-day workshop session, the days were split to allow the 

presentation of new material to the group e.g. the commissioned papers and 

presentation, but also the opportunity for sense-making. This was essential as 

Page 106



Humanities  AoLE:  Submission to CAG: 4 December 2017 

3 

 

practitioners needed to develop a common understanding of the constituent 

disciplines with a view to deducing ‘what matters’ from the point of view of the 

Humanities as a more integrated entity. 

Response from CAG (December 2017) 

The group has revisited the original statements following the views expressed by 

the Curriculum and Assessment Group in December who provided the following 

comments 

● The supporting narratives clearly reflect the four purposes  
● There is a need to revisit and review the statements to ensure that more of 

the narrative comments/messages are evident (messages have been lost 
between the two) 

● The degree to which the What Matters statements reflect specificity, whilst 
allowing teacher autonomy continues to be a challenge.  

● There is a need to consider the guiding principles including pedagogy and 
topic guides  

As a result these are now the current draft revised statements. As you can see the 

group were not able to complete all their work in the time allocated so they will 

revisit this work in early January 18.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 107



Humanities  AoLE:  Submission to CAG: 4 December 2017 

4 

 

 

 

1. A statement defining ‘what matters’ in the context of the AoLE  

 

The group refined task 1 from the initial report developed in the Summer term, on the 

basis of the feedback provided by Dr Claire Sinnema, University of Auckland). 

 

Through exploring ‘what matters’ about the Humanities, pupils will study the past and 

present, and imagine possible futures, and will learn about people, place, time and 

beliefs.  

Pupils will build, communicate and apply effectively, a solid base of knowledge and 

understanding of different times, places and beliefs, in order to become ambitious, 

capable learners.  

They will develop a range of skills and dispositions, to become enterprising, 

creative contributors, in order to improve the everyday lives of people in their local 

community, Wales and in the wider world.  

Through understanding and respecting different beliefs and understanding how to 

exercise their democratic rights and responsibilities, pupils will become ethical, 

informed citizens.   

By developing personal stances on matters of faith, spirituality, sustainability and 

social inclusion they will become healthy, confident individuals, ready to lead 

fulfilling lives as valued members of society.  

 

Pupils will: 

• understand historical, geographical, political, economic, religious and societal 
concepts. 

• explore their environment to further develop their sense of place and well-
being. 

• engage in learning experiences about rights, values, ethics, beliefs, religion, 
philosophy and spirituality. 

• consider, explore and make informed choices regarding sustainability and the 
impact of their actions. 

• positively contribute to their community and critically engage with local, 
national and global issues to become a responsible citizen of Wales and the 
wider world. 

 
 

Page 108



Humanities  AoLE:  Submission to CAG: 4 December 2017 

5 

 

 

2. Initial titles for strands of ‘what matters’ 

 

The group has developed six ‘What Matters’ concepts, that attempt to fully 

integrate and give meaning to the humanities as a coherent entity. These 

were developed through a process of abstraction from the starting point of 

‘what matters’ from the vantage point of the constituent disciplines. 

 

This process is best illustrated through consideration of the annotated 

photograph below:- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Groups mapped/ 

grouped ‘what 

matters’ concepts 

from subject 

disciplines to 

overarching 

concepts 

History – Yellow 

Geog – Blue 

RE - Dark Pink 

Social 

Studies/Business - 

Orange   

Links to other AoLEs and 

opportunities for CCR 

development identified (in  

outline – Light Pink) Page 109



Humanities  AoLE:  Submission to CAG: 4 December 2017 

6 

 

 

It was accepted that some of the ‘concepts’ identified would be evident across 

more than one of the groups ‘What Matters’ concepts e.g. sustainability and 

conflict.  

6 Revised statement following CAG comments 

  

1) Continuity, change and diversity impact on our world 
2) Society is influenced by community, culture and power  
3) Humanity faces many challenges that require informed and considered 

responses  
4) People interpret and represent the world in different ways  

5) Developing inquiring minds allows people to make sense of and engage with 

the world around them 

6) Responsible citizens are ethically informed, critical thinkers and play an active 

part in society 

 

1. Continuity, change and diversity impact on our world 

 

Rationale:  

Understanding the complexities and connections of the past, present and future of 

our world are important to the Humanities AoLE. It is necessary to consider this in 

the context of the physical and human environment. Understanding the processes 

that shape the physical landscape and awareness of how human actions can be 

influenced by diverse beliefs, values and philosophies is essential. The consideration 

of the Humanities disciplines allows identification, understanding and analysis of 

causes, continuity and effects of change. Innovation and technological developments 

have and will continue to shape our diverse world.  The appreciation of future 

challenges and opportunities on a local, national and global scale support a sound 

empathetic understanding of the lives of others, now and in the future.   

 

2. Society is influenced by community, culture and power 

 

Rationale: 

Pupils will become aware that interactions involving individuals, groups, 

communities, organisations, and nations have shaped, and continue to influence the 

Page 110



Humanities  AoLE:  Submission to CAG: 4 December 2017 

7 

 

nature of the world in which we live. They will understand and appreciate the nature 

of interactions and their positive and negative effects on the local, national and 

global environment.  They will ask questions, research, critically evaluate, and 

develop informed and considered opinions on the causes, nature and significance of 

people’s interactions with each other and with their environment, on individual, local, 

national and global scales. 

Pupils will identify, understand and explore interactions in the past to appreciate the 

significance of individuals, groups, communities, organisations and nations in 

shaping the world and its development.  They will explore the impact of religious and 

spiritual interactions on the lives of individuals, communities, nations and the world. 

They will gain an empathetic appreciation for diversity within our communities and 

across the world and for the significance of spirituality. 

(The group wants to undertake further work on this statement)  

 

3. Humanity faces many challenges that require informed and considered 

responses 

 

Rationale: -  

It is important within the Humanities AoLE to be aware of the difficult and ultimate 

questions that challenge all human beings. Studying Humanities will allow 

identification, understanding and engagement with relevant contemporary issues that 

impact on pupils’ lives, the lives of others and the wider world. It is important to ask 

questions, to research, critically evaluate, and develop informed and considered 

responses to the challenges facing humanity. To be able to respond empathetically, 

to the beliefs, actions and values of others is important in the Humanities AoLE in 

order to solve problems and resolve conflict. Humanities students will develop 

resilience and an attitude of open-mindedness and appropriate respect where 

appropriate when engaging with their own viewpoints and lifestyles of others. Pupils 

will develop the ability to form and support their own viewpoints. Commitment to our 

local, national and global societies and to the sustainability of the planet is an 

essential part of a Humanities education. 

 

 

 

 

Page 111



Humanities  AoLE:  Submission to CAG: 4 December 2017 

8 

 

4. People interpret and represent the world in different ways 

 

Rationale: -  

In order to become critical, well-informed citizens and understand the way in which 

society has functioned, functions now and is likely to function in the future it is 

essential that pupils understand a variety of viewpoints and how these are shaped by 

different influences. In understanding this it is also important that pupils develop an 

understanding of the range of factors that have shaped their identities.    

Studying Humanities will allow for the exploration of the complexities of real world 

issues and an appreciation of how these issues can be interpreted in different ways. 

Knowledge will be gained and an understanding developed of beliefs, teachings and 

practices enabling them to become conscious of themselves and of the views of 

others. The recognition and understanding of how identities are established and 

evolve over space and time can be developed through the study of Humanities 

AoLE.   

Through the critical thinking and exploration of different perspectives and events, the 

Humanities AoLE will allow the ability to challenge and support these perspectives, 

as well as developing a critical understanding of the ‘big picture’. 

(The group expressed the view that this statement and rationale needs to be further 

reviewed.) 

 

5. Developing inquiring minds allows people to make sense of and engage 

with the world around them  

 

Rationale: 

Pupils will ask fundamental and challenging questions. They will explore issues in an 
open, reflective, analytical and balanced manner. They will gather evidence from a 
range of sources, recognise bias, interpret layers of meaning and synthesise (make 
connections) information. Through critical thinking and analysis pupils will develop 
informed, considered and justified responses and be able to express their responses 
in a variety of ways. They will develop a conscious awareness of self, other people, 
the world and the Universe. 

(Further work to be undertaken by the group to as they changed the statement but 

did not discuss the rationale – need further time to discuss and produce.)  

 

Page 112



Humanities  AoLE:  Submission to CAG: 4 December 2017 

9 

 

6. Responsible citizens are ethically informed, critical thinkers and play an 

active part in society 

 

Rationale: - 

It is important that the study of Humanities develops active and responsible citizens 

who are able to identify with, and contribute to their community and the wider world 

now and in their future lives. To fully engage with their learning, pupils should identify 

ways in which they can actively address ‘what matters’ to them (and society) in the 

world in which they live. Ethically informed citizens are able to be critical thinkers, 

can respond to issues that they have explored across the humanities and need to be 

actively engaged in communities. Humanities allows the development of an 

understanding of their rights and to respect the rights of others. Understanding of 

their own and others legal and moral responsibilities and the consequences of failing 

to act responsibly is a part of studying Humanities. 

Humanities promotes peaceful and effective engagement with, and within society.  

Lessons will be learnt from the past and present; critically reflecting upon own and 

others beliefs, values and actions, in order to make ethical and informed choices. 

This will allow for responses through expressing and justifying their own feelings and 

opinions on the lessons learnt. Through studying Humanities AoLE, opportunities will 

arise to identify problems, create and develop potential solutions, and take 

appropriate action in respect of issues within their local community and beyond. 

 

 

Links to other AoLEs 

There are clear links with Science and Technology, in respect of the ways in which 

physical environments are shaped and changed e.g. Geology and Earth Sciences;  

There are clear links to Health and Wellbeing. 

21 December 2017 

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



Monitoring Religious Education, Spiritual and Moral Development and Collective Worship: SACRE

Based on discussions held by a group of NAPfRE members 2010 Page 1

Name of School:

Key Question 1: How good are outcomes in Religious Education?
 Self-evaluation is based on lesson observations, evaluation of pupils’ work and interviews with pupils.  
 Secondary schools should refer to KS3, KS4 and KS5 (Religious Studies and Religious Education) and include an 

evaluation of teacher assessments and/or examination results.
References: ESTYN Inspection Framework Section 1 and the Locally Agreed Syllabus for Religious Education
Standards in Religious Education – progress in learning 

 

Areas for Development

Excellent Good Adequate Unsatisfactory

Key Question 2: How good is provision in Religious Education?
 A self evaluation should consider the following indicators: the time allocated to the subject, the subject knowledge, 

expertise and professional development of the teaching staff, the appropriateness of the programme of study and the 
range of learning resources used.

 An evaluation of lesson observations and pupils’ work will allow schools to make a judgement on the quality of the 
teaching of Religious Education, and the extent to which pupils are motivated and challenged to achieve highly.

 In primary schools references should be made to the provision of ‘People, Beliefs and Questions’ for Foundation Phase 
learners as well as Religious Education at KS2.

 In secondary schools reference should be made to KS3, KS4 and KS5 (Religious Studies and Religious Education).
References: ESTYN Inspection Framework 2.1 and 2.2 and the Locally Agreed Syllabus for Religious Education
The teaching: planning and range of strategies

Areas for Development

Excellent Good Adequate Unsatisfactory

Page 115

Agenda Item 9



Monitoring Religious Education, Spiritual and Moral Development and Collective Worship: SACRE

Based on discussions held by a group of NAPfRE members 2010 Page 2

Name of School:

Collective Worship

Key Question 2: How good is provision in Collective Worship?
Does Collective Worship meet the statutory requirements? Yes    No
References: ESTYN Inspection Framework 2.3.1, Supplementary Guidance on inspecting collective worship in non-
denominational schools’ (September 2010), ‘Religious Education and Collective Worship’ (Welsh Office Circular 10/94)
Good features in relation to the quality of Collective Worship

Areas for Development in relation to the quality of Collective Worship

Excellent Good Adequate Unsatisfactory

Signed:                           (Headteacher)

Date:    

Page 116



Monitoring Religious Education, Spiritual and Moral Development and Collective Worship: SACRE

Based on discussions held by a group of NAPfRE members 2010 Page 1

Name of School:

Key Question 1: How good are outcomes in Religious Education?
 Self-evaluation is based on lesson observations, evaluation of pupils’ work and interviews with pupils.  
 Secondary schools should refer to KS3, KS4 and KS5 (Religious Studies and Religious Education) and include an 

evaluation of teacher assessments and/or examination results.
References: ESTYN Inspection Framework Section 1 and the Locally Agreed Syllabus for Religious Education
Standards in Religious Education – progress in learning 

 

Areas for Development

Excellent Good Adequate Unsatisfactory

Key Question 2: How good is provision in Religious Education?
 A self evaluation should consider the following indicators: the time allocated to the subject, the subject knowledge, 

expertise and professional development of the teaching staff, the appropriateness of the programme of study and the 
range of learning resources used.

 An evaluation of lesson observations and pupils’ work will allow schools to make a judgement on the quality of the 
teaching of Religious Education, and the extent to which pupils are motivated and challenged to achieve highly.

 In primary schools references should be made to the provision of ‘People, Beliefs and Questions’ for Foundation Phase 
learners as well as Religious Education at KS2.

 In secondary schools reference should be made to KS3, KS4 and KS5 (Religious Studies and Religious Education).
References: ESTYN Inspection Framework 2.1 and 2.2 and the Locally Agreed Syllabus for Religious Education
The teaching: planning and range of strategies

Areas for Development

Excellent Good Adequate Unsatisfactory

Page 117



Monitoring Religious Education, Spiritual and Moral Development and Collective Worship: SACRE

Based on discussions held by a group of NAPfRE members 2010 Page 2

Name of School:

Collective Worship

Key Question 2: How good is provision in Collective Worship?
Does Collective Worship meet the statutory requirements? Yes    No
References: ESTYN Inspection Framework 2.3.1, Supplementary Guidance on inspecting collective worship in non-
denominational schools’ (September 2010), ‘Religious Education and Collective Worship’ (Welsh Office Circular 10/94)
Good features in relation to the quality of Collective Worship

Areas for Development in relation to the quality of Collective Worship

Excellent Good Adequate Unsatisfactory

Signed:                           (Headteacher)

Date:    

Page 118



Monitro Addysg Grefyddol, Datblygiad Ysbrydol a Moesol a Chydaddoliad: CYSAG 

Yn seiliedig ar drafodaethau grŵp o aelodau PYCAG 2010 Tudalen 1

Enw’r Ysgol:

Addysg Grefyddol

Cwestiwn Allweddol 1: Pa mor dda mae deilliannau Addysg Grefyddol?
 Mae hunan werthuso wedi ei seilio ar arsylwadau gwers, gwerthusiad o waith disgyblion a chyfweliadau â’r disgyblion.
 Dylai ysgolion uwchradd gyfeirio at CA3, CA4 a CA5 (Astudiaethau Crefyddol ac Addysg Grefyddol) a chynnwys 

gwerthusiad o asesiadau athrawon a/neu ganlyniadau arholiadau.
Cyfeiriadau: Fframwaith Arolygu ESTYN Adran 1 a’r Maes Llafur Cytûn Lleol ar gyfer Addysg Grefyddol
Safonau mewn Addysg Grefyddol – cynnydd mewn dysgu

Meysydd ar gyfer Datblygiad

Rhagorol Da Digonol Anfoddhaol

Enw’r Ysgol: 

Addysg Grefyddol

Cwestiwn Allweddol 2: Pa mor dda mae darpariaeth Addysg Grefyddol?
 Dylai hunan werthusiad ystyried y dangosyddion canlynol: yr amser a ddyrennir ar gyfer y pwnc, gwybodaeth pwnc, 

arbenigedd a datblygiad proffesiynol staff addysgu, priodoldeb y rhaglen astudio a’r ystod o adnoddau dysgu a 
ddefnyddir.

 Bydd gwerthuso arsylwadau gwers a gwaith disgyblion yn galluogi ysgolion i arfarnu ansawdd addysgu Addysg 
Grefyddol, ac i ba raddau y caiff disgyblion eu cymell a’u hannog i gyflawni’n uchel.

 Mewn ysgolion cynradd dylid cyfeirio at ddarpariaeth ‘Pobl, Credoau a Chwestiynau’ ar gyfer dysgwyr y Cyfnod Sylfaen 
yn ogystal ag Addysg Grefyddol yn CA2.

 Mewn ysgolion uwchradd dylid cyfeirio at CA3, CA4 a CA5 (Astudiaethau Crefyddol ac Addysg Grefyddol).

Cyfeiriadau: Fframwaith Arolygu ESTYN 2.1 a 2.2 a’r Maes Llafur Cytûn Lleol ar gyfer Addysg Grefyddol
Addysgu: cynllunio ac ystod strategaethau

Meysydd ar gyfer Datblygiad

Rhagorol Da Digonol Anfoddhaol

Arwyddwyd:                           (Pennaeth)

Dyddiad:

Page 119



Monitro Addysg Grefyddol, Datblygiad Ysbrydol a Moesol a Chydaddoliad: CYSAG 

Yn seiliedig ar drafodaethau grŵp o aelodau PYCAG 2010 Tudalen 2

Enw’r Ysgol:

Addoli ar y Cyd

Cwestiwn Allweddol 2: Pa mor dda mae darpariaeth o ran addoli ar y cyd?
Ydy addoli ar y cyd yn diwallu gofynion statudol? Ydy Nac ydy
Cyfeiriadau: Fframwaith Arolygu ESTYN 2.3.1, ‘Canllawiau Atodol ar arolygu addoli ar y cyd mewn ysgolion anenwadol’ (Medi 
2010), ‘Addysg Grefyddol a Chydaddoliad’ (Y Swyddfa Gymreig Cylchlythyr 10/94)
Nodweddion da o ran ansawdd addoli ar y cyd

Meysydd ar gyfer Datblygiad o ran ansawdd addoli ar y cyd

Rhagorol Da Digonol Anfoddhaol

Arwyddwyd:                           (Pennaeth)

Dyddiad:    

Page 120



Monitoring Religious Education, Spiritual and Moral Development and Collective Worship: SACRE 

Based on discussions held by a group of NAPfRE members 2010 Page 1

Name of School: 

Religious Education

Key Question 1: How good are outcomes in Religious Education?
 Self-evaluation is based on lesson observations, evaluation of pupils’ work and interviews with pupils.  
 Secondary schools should refer to KS3, KS4 and KS5 (Religious Studies and Religious Education) and include an 

evaluation of teacher assessments and/or examination results.
References: ESTYN Inspection Framework Section 1 and the Locally Agreed Syllabus for Religious Education
Standards in Religious Education 

Areas for Development

Excellent Good Adequate Unsatisfactory

Name of School: 

Religious Education

Key Question 2: How good is provision in Religious Education?
 A self evaluation should consider the following indicators: the time allocated to the subject, the subject knowledge, 

expertise and professional development of the teaching staff, the appropriateness of the programme of study and the 
range of learning resources used.

 An evaluation of lesson observations and pupils’ work will allow schools to make a judgement on the quality of the 
teaching of Religious Education, and the extent to which pupils are motivated and challenged to achieve highly.

 In primary schools references should be made to the provision of ‘People, Beliefs and Questions’ for Foundation Phase 
learners as well as Religious Education at KS2.

 In secondary schools reference should be made to KS3, KS4 and KS5 (Religious Studies and Religious Education).
References: ESTYN Inspection Framework 2.1 and 2.2 and the Locally Agreed Syllabus for Religious Education
The teaching: planning and range of strategies

Areas for Development

Excellent Good Adequate Unsatisfactory

Signed:                           (Headteacher)

Date:

Page 121



Monitoring Religious Education, Spiritual and Moral Development and Collective Worship: SACRE 

Based on discussions held by a group of NAPfRE members 2010 Page 2

Name of School:

Collective Worship

Key Question 2: How good is provision in Collective Worship?
Does Collective Worship meet the statutory requirements? Yes No
References: ESTYN Inspection Framework 2.3.1, Supplementary Guidance on inspecting collective worship in non-
denominational schools’ (September 2010), ‘Religious Education and Collective Worship’ (Welsh Office Circular 10/94)
Good features in relation to the quality of Collective Worship

Areas for Development in relation to the quality of Collective Worship

Excellent Good Adequate Unsatisfactory

Signed:                           (Headteacher)

Date:    

Page 122



Follow up to discussions with SACRE members, LA officers  and GwE advisers, Anglesey primary head teachers  December 2017 

 

1 Bethan James (bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru)   

 

How can SACRE monitor standards? 

Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education (SACRE) 

 
SACRE’s main function is to monitor religious education and collective worship and to advise the local authority on 
matters relating to religious education and collective worship.  The Wales Association of SACREs believes that this 
advice should be based on current information.  Many SACREs monitor standards by inviting schools to share their 
self-evaluation of Religious Education and collective worship with SACRE members. 
 
Further Information: 

 Wales Association of SACREs:  www.wasacre.org.uk   

 Religious Education and Collective Worship:  Circular 10/94 (Welsh Office) 

 So You’re Joining Your Local SACRE: a handbook for SACRE members in Wales (WASACRE) 

 Guidance on Collective Worship (WASACRE, 2012); 

 Review of SACRE reports (Welsh Government, 2011 and 2013) 
 

Department for Education and Skills Wales (DfES) 

 
Most SACREs in Wales have adopted or adapted the ‘National Exemplar Framework for Religious Education for 3 to 
19 year olds in Wales’ as their locally agreed syllabus.  The Welsh Government has supported the teaching of 
religious education in schools by providing guidance documents to support teachers, head teachers and SACRE 
members.  These provide useful information about teaching methods, resources and assessment.  The 2010-12 
national external verification process gave RE departments in secondary schools the opportunity to show their 
understanding of RE attainment levels.  
 
Further information 

 http://wales.gov.uk > search for Religious Education 

 Locally Agreed Syllabus (or National Exemplar Framework for Religious education in Wales) 

 Religious Education: Guidance for KS2 and KS3 (2011) 

 Exemplifying Learner Profiles at KS2 and KS3 in Religious Education: Additional Guidance (2011) 

 Religious Education: Guidance 14-19 year olds (2009) 

 People, Questions and Beliefs in the Foundation Phase (2013) 

 Religious Education: Chief Moderator’s Report 2012  (http://wjec.co.uk )  
 

ESTYN 

The new ESTYN inspection framework identifies five inspection areas or reporting requirements:  
1. Standards 
2. Wellbeing and attitudes to learning 

 

3. Teaching and learning experience 
4. Care, support and guidance 
5. Leadership and management 

 
Few school inspection reports include references to the standard and quality of Religious Education and collective 
worship.   
Further information:  

 www.estyn.org.uk 

 Religious Education in Secondary Schools (ESTYN, June 2013) 

 Religious and moral education in key stage 2 and key stage 3 (ESTYN, Summer 2018) 

 Supplementary guidance : collective worship in non-denominational schools (ESTYN, Autumn 2017) 
 

Page 123

mailto:bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru
http://www.wasacre.org.uk/
http://wales.gov.uk/
http://wjec.co.uk/
http://www.estyn.org.uk/


Follow up to discussions with SACRE members, LA officers  and GwE advisers, Anglesey primary head teachers  December 2017 

 

2 Bethan James (bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru)   

 

What evidence do schools use in order to make judgements? 
 

Book Review 

 

Teachers will collect a sample of pupils’ work (e.g. range of abilities, ages, boys and 
girls) and will help the curriculum leader to answer questions such as: 

 What progress are pupils making in their RE skills?  Are there groups of 
pupils who are underachieving? 

 To what extent does pupils’ work reflect the requirements of the Locally 
Agreed Syllabus? 

 To what extent does pupils’ work develop the skills identified by the 
National Literacy, Numeracy and Digital Competence frameworks? 

 What improvements do we need to make to our planning, provision and 
assessment of religious education? 

Lesson Observation 
 

 

Teachers and school leaders will observe lessons  and will help the curriculum 
leader to answer questions such as: 

 What progress are pupils making in their RE skills?  Are there groups of 
pupils who are underachieving?   

 Are the pupils well motivated?  Are they contributing to their own learning? 

 Does the work reflect the requirements of the Locally Agreed Syllabus? 

 Does the work develop the skills identified by National Literacy, Numeracy 
Digital Competence framework? 

 What improvements do we need to make to our planning, provision and 
assessment? 

Questionnaires and interviews 

 

Schools can analyse the results of questionnaires used with pupils, teachers and 
parents to answer questions such as: 

 What do they think about the content of the RE lessons?  Are there 
significant groups who are offering different opinions? 

 What progress are they making in their RE skills? 

 What are their perceptions/attitudes/opinions? 

 What improvements do we need to make to our planning, provision and 
assessment of religious education? 

Data 

 

Schools can use teacher assessment data or external examination results 
(secondary schools only) in order to identify trends or patterns. 

 How well are boys/girls/groups performing over time? (all schools) 

 How well are our pupils performing in comparison with other 
departments/other schools?  (secondary schools only) 

 Are there any groups of pupils who are underachieving? (all schools) 

 What improvements do we need to make to our planning, provision and 
assessment of religious education? 

Other 

                  
 

 

Schools can also base their judgements on other evidence such as, 

 Success in local or national RE competitions; 

 Participation in local or national RE 
events/conferences/projects/publications; 

 Monitoring reports by other members of staff, e.g. school literacy, 
numeracy or ICT co-ordinators; 

 Minutes of meetings held with teachers, school governors or SACRE visitors. 

 Action research undertaken by a member of a Professional Learning 
Community; 

 External accreditation, e.g. RE Quality Mark 

Page 124

mailto:bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru


Follow up to discussions with SACRE members, LA officers  and GwE advisers, Anglesey primary head teachers  December 2017 

 

3 Bethan James (bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru)   

 

 

SACRE Guidance  
 
To what extent does the school’s provision promote pupils’ personal development? (Inspection area 4.2) 
Evaluating the standards and provision of religious education will help schools evaluate inspection area 4.2, ‘Personal 
development (including spiritual, moral, social and cultural development). 
 
ESTYN’s inspection guidance (September 2017) for social and moral development notes:  

“Inspectors should consider the extent to which the school provides effective opportunities for pupils to develop secure 
values and to establish their spiritual and ethical beliefs. They should consider how well the school develops pupils’ 
ability to reflect on religious and non-religious responses to fundamental questions and to reflect on their own beliefs or 
values. They should consider how well the school promotes principles that help pupils to distinguish between right and 
wrong. They should consider how far the school fosters shared values, such as honesty, fairness, justice and 
sustainability, and helps pupils to understand the needs and rights of others, both locally and as members of a diverse 
global world.” 

 
Within the school’s self-evaluation cycle or calendar, school leaders will need to consider what evidence is available to them in 
order to make an evaluative judgment on Inspection Areas 4.2.  Religious Education and collective worship can make important 
contributions to pupils’ personal development. 
 
The following exemplar questions are based on ESTYN’s Common Inspection Framework (September 2017) and the questions 
used by ESTYN during the thematic review of religious education during the autumn term of 2017.  Using these prompt 
questions with staff, governors, pupils and their Supporting Improvement Adviser, will enable schools to identify strengths and 
weaknesses to help them to plan improvements. There is no need to answer every question.   

 
Inspection Area 1: Standards 
Remember to use qualitative and evaluative language and include ‘real’ examples of pupils’ work!  
 What is our view on standards of religious education in our school? (FP, KS2, KS3, KS4, KS5 pupils)  

 How well do our pupils engage with fundamental questions, explore religious beliefs, teachings and practice(s) and express 
personal responses to beliefs, teachings, practices and fundamental questions? 

 How well do groups of pupils make progress in religious education?  What have we identified in their work that shows their 
progress? 

 How well do our pupils use their speaking and listening, reading and writing skills, their numeracy and ICT skills 
appropriately in religious education? 

 Give examples of how our pupils have developed their thinking skills, their creativity and physical skill in religious education 
activities in the classroom and outside the classroom. 

 What do we need to do differently in order to improve? 
 
 

Inspection Area 2: Wellbeing and attitudes to learning  
Remember to use qualitative and evaluative language and include ‘real’ examples of pupils’ work!  
 Do our pupils show an interest in religious education? 

 What do you think our pupils gain from religious education? 

 What do we need to do differently in order to improve? 
 

 
Inspection Area 3:  Teaching and learning experience 
Remember to use qualitative and evaluative language and include ‘real’ examples of the provision.  Time allocated to 
religious education?  % of pupils that choose Religious Studies as an option?  % of pupils who attain an accreditation 
for their statutory religious education.  

 How do we know that our school meets the statutory requirements for religious education?  

 How does our school teach religious education?  

Page 125

mailto:bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru


Follow up to discussions with SACRE members, LA officers  and GwE advisers, Anglesey primary head teachers  December 2017 

 

4 Bethan James (bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru)   

 

 Does religious education succeed to engage our pupils’ interest? Are they stimulated and challenged in their religious 
education lessons? 

 How well do the lessons/activities develop pupils’ knowledge and understanding of religious beliefs, teachings and practices 
as well as their subject skills and cross-curricular skills?  

 How good is our planning for religious education? (building on previous knowledge, understanding and skills? clear 
objectives? teaching methods? resources?) 

 To what extend does the feedback in religious education help our pupils to know what they have achieved and what they 
need to do to improve?  

 How do we assess and track the progress of pupils in religious education? 
 How does our planning for religious education help pupils to become ambitious, confident, aspirational and knowledgeable 

individuals?  How are we responding to the recommendations of ‘Successful Futures’? 

 To what extend does our school provide a range of appropriate learning experiences, within the classroom and outside, in 
order to develop pupils’ interest and skills in religious education? 

 Have we organised any trips or visits linked to religious education?  Which year groups, how often, and how do these trips 
enhance the curriculum? 

 Does the religious education reflect the nature of our school’s context?  Does it reflect the cultural, linguistic and ethnic 
diversity of Wales and the local area? 

 To what extend do the religious education activities provide purposeful opportunities for pupils to practise and develop 
their RE skills and their literacy, numeracy and ICT skills? 

 What do we need to do differently in order to improve? 
 

Inspection Area 4: Care, support and guidance 
Remember to use qualitative and evaluative language and include ‘real’ examples of the provision.   
 To what extent do our religious education lessons/activities help our pupils to be active citizens? 

 How do our pupils influence what and how they learn in religious education? 

 Do we participate in any community activities or have links with any faith leaders or organisations?  

 How does religious education contribute to our pupils’ understanding of the culture of Wales, the local community and the 
wider world? 

 How has religious education helped our pupils to understand equality and diversity? Stereotypes, religious extremism, 

human rights?  

 Which effective opportunities do the school offer pupils to develop certain values and establish their spiritual and ethical 

beliefs?  

 How effective is our school at developing the pupils’ ability to reflect on (extensive) fundamental questions from a religious 

or non-religious perspective? Their own beliefs or values?  

 Does our school meet the statutory requirements regarding collective worship? 

 How good is the collective worship?  How well do we plan the collective worship over time? 

 How do we keep our pupils safe from the dangers of radicalisation, e.g. extremist material, either through visiting speakers 

or through speakers on site visits? 

 How do we respond to any concerns that arise about comments made by pupils during religious education lessons? 

 What do we need to do differently in order to improve? 

 

Inspection Area 5: Leadership and management 

 Has the RE subject leader the necessary skills and understanding to lead the religious education effectively?  

 Are teachers able to access professional development in religious education? 

 How do we allocate resources to support the teaching of religious education? 

 How are parents informed of their right to withdraw pupils from RE? How many pupils are withdrawn from RE by their 
parents and does the school have good arrangements for their provision during RE lessons? Has this number 
increased/decreased/remained the same over the last 5 years? From what groups do these pupils come? Do you have a 
conversation with parents around their decision is taken?  

 In what ways does our school’s provision for RE help promote better community cohesion?  

Page 126

mailto:bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru


Follow up to discussions with SACRE members, LA officers  and GwE advisers, Anglesey primary head teachers  December 2017 

 

5 Bethan James (bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru)   

 

 How often do we monitor religious education?  How do we share this information with staff? 

 Do we consider the views of pupils in the self-evaluation report and improvement plans? 

 Do we work with RE teachers from other schools?  What has been the impact of this? 

 What is the ‘best example of religious education’ that we can share with our local SACRE or with other teachers? 

 What do we need to do differently in order to improve? 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 127

mailto:bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru


Follow up to discussions with SACRE members, LA officers  and GwE advisers, Anglesey primary head teachers  December 2017 

 

6 Bethan James (bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru)   

 

How can SACREs monitor standards? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Gather 

information 

Analyse 

Summarise 
Make Judgement 

Prepare 

action plan 

How can SACRE gather information? 
- By asking schools to submit information and self evaluation. 

- By commissioning an ‘expert’ to visit a sample of schools 
and provide a termly report; 

- By visiting schools themselves; 

- By asking pupils, staff, governors in a sample of schools to 
complete an online questionnaire; 

- By studying external examination results and KS3 teacher 
assessments, (secondary schools only) 

 
 
 

What sources are available in your area? 
- An evaluation of schools’ self evaluation reports;  
- An evaluation of schools’ policies, schemes of work, development or improvement plans;  
- Performance data:  KS3 teacher assessments, GCSE, AS and A level results;  
- Reports submitted by SACRE members following school visits;  
- An evaluation of questionnaires submitted by learners, staff, governors, SACRE/WASACRE members or governors; 
- Presentations by learners, teachers, co-ordinators, headteachers;  
- Success in competitions or external accreditation schemes.   
-  

 
 

Who contributes to the monitoring? 
- Teachers and members of schools’ SM Teams  

- SACRE members  

- Local Authority / Consortia officers 

- Teachers identified as lead practitioners 

- Pupils 

- Governors 

- Parents 
 

Numbers  -  quantities and proportions 
nearly all  = with very few exceptions 
most   = 90% or more 
many  = 70% or more 
a majority  = over 60% 
half   = 50% 
around half = close to 50% 
a minority = below 40% 
few   = below 20% 
very few  = less than 10% 

 

What should be included? 

 The effect of an intervention on 

(standards, welfare, attitudes, 

provision).  

 Trends over time  

 Comparison with other schools (?) 

 Judgement  -  using evaluative terms. 

 Quantify whenever possible 

Useful words and phrases 
Xxx has led to... 

As a result of  xxx standards of xxx have increased xx% since xxx .... 

Following the introduction of xxx, xxx has improved, as shown by... 

xxx shows that standards of xxx have ... 

The effect of xxx can be seen in xxx which shows that... 

An improvement in xxxx can be seen in... 

The influence of XXX can be seen in the improvement/progress..... 

XXXXX shows that x% of the pupils can/have... 

XXX shows that x% of the parents/staff/governors are/have... . 

Excellent 
Very strong, sustained performance and practice 

Good 
Strong features, although minor aspects may require improvement 

outstanding, very good, very strong, exceptional, superior, 
exemplary, superb, very high standard, very high quality, 
extensive, highly effective, highly creative, well above 
expectations, expertly done, 

successful, strong, skilful, worthwhile, beneficial, valuable, 

positive, thorough, useful, powerful, comprehensive, 

purposeful, used well, consistently good, effective 

Adequate and needs improvement 
Strengths outweigh weaknesses, but important aspects 
require improvement 

Unsatisfactory and needs urgent improvement 
Important weaknesses outweigh strengths 

satisfactory, appropriate, suitable, efficient, competent, 
relevant, sufficient, enough, valid, solid, sound, average 
mediocre, limited, inconsistent 

insufficient, inefficient, none, no, inappropriate, ineffective, 

unsuitable, unable, weak, poor, not fit for purpose, restricted 

 

Page 128

mailto:bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru


Follow up to discussions with SACRE members, LA officers  and GwE advisers, Anglesey primary head teachers  December 2017 

 

7 Bethan James (bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru)   

 

Name of the school:                                                          

Religious Education 

Improvement area 1: Standards in religious education 
How well do our pupils engage with fundamental questions, explore religious beliefs, teachings and practice(s) 
and express personal responses to beliefs, teachings, practices and fundamental questions?  What have we 
identified in their work that shows their progress over time?  

 Use pupils’ work, teacher assessment, learning walks, lesson observations to make a judgement. 

 Refer to: groups of pupils 

 For further guidance, refer to the Locally Agreed Syllabus (National Exemplar Framework), Welsh Government 
Guidance: People, Questions and Beliefs (2013), Guidance and Exemplar Profiles for KS2 and KS3 (2011), 14-19 
(2009), SACRE Guidance, Examiners’ reports.  

Notes: 
 

The standard attained by our pupils in religious education is JUDGEMENT 

 

Inspection Area 2: Wellbeing and attitudes towards learning about religious education 

 What do you think our pupils gain from religious education? 

 Use pupils’ work, an analysis of a RE questionnaire, minutes of meetings held by focus groups/School Council 
meeting. 

 For further guidance, refer to the Supplementary Guidance: listening to learners (ESTYN, September 2017)  

Notes:  
 

Our pupils have a JUDGEMENT attitude towards religious education in our school.   

 

Inspection Area 3: Teaching and learning experience in Religious Education 
How good is the planning and teaching of religious education in our school?  Give examples of rich learning 
experiences in religious education.   

 Use learning walks, lesson observation, pupils’ work, interviews with pupils. 

 For further guidance, refer to the Locally Agreed Syllabus (National Exemplar Framework); Welsh Government 
Guidance: People, Questions and Beliefs (2013), Guidance and Exemplar Profiles for KS2 and KS3 (2011), 14-19 
(2009), SACRE Guidance, Examiners’ reports, Religious Education in secondary schools (ESTYN, Summer 2013), 
Religious and moral education in KS2 and KS3 (ESTYN, Summer 2018). 

Notes: 
 

The standard of teaching of religious education in our school is JUDGEMENT 

 

Inspection Area 4: Care, support and guidance in Religious Education 
To what extent do religious education lessons and activities help our pupils to become active citizens? 

 Use learning walks, interviews with pupils, collective worship programme, school newsletter, records of any hate 
crime/bullying.  

 For further guidance refer to SACRE Guidance, Guidance on collective worship (WASACRE), Supplementary 
guidance: collective worship in non-denominational schools (ESTYN, September 2017), Supplementary guidance: 
listening to learners (ESTYN, September 2017).  

Notes: 

Page 129

mailto:bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru


Follow up to discussions with SACRE members, LA officers  and GwE advisers, Anglesey primary head teachers  December 2017 

 

8 Bethan James (bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru)   

 

 

Does the school meet the statutory requirements for collective worship? Yes  No  

The contribution of religious education towards our pupils’ personal development and community cohesion is 
JUDGEMENT. 

 

Inspection area 5: Leadership and management in religious education  
Does the subject leader for religious education have the necessary skills and understanding to lead the subject 
area effectively?  

 Use schemes of work, monitoring and self-evaluation reports, data analysis, interviews with the co-
ordinator/link governor/SACRE representative, minutes of staff meetings, improvement plans, an evaluation of 
progress, case study following a school-to-school project. 

 For further guidance, refer to SACRE guidance 

Notes: 
 

Leadership and management of religious education in our school is JUDGEMENT 

 

Improvement matters Actions to be taken Who is 

responsible? 

By when? 

  These details need not be shared 
with SACRE but the school needs 
to ensure that accountability is 
clear to staff and governors. 

    

    

    

    

    

  

 

 

 

Head teacher:   
Signature:   
Date:   
 

A concise evaluation that will contribute towards the school’s evaluation of Personal Development (4.2) 
Concise!  Approximately 50 words. 
 

Page 130

mailto:bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru


Dilyniant i drafodaethau gyda swyddogion ac aelodau CYSAG Môn, swyddogion GwE a phenaethiaid cynradd Môn Rhagfyr 2017 

 

1 Bethan James (bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru)   

 

Sut y gall CYSAG fonitro safonau? 

Cyngor Ymgynghorol Sefydlog ar Addysg Grefyddol (CYSAG) 

 
Prif swyddogaeth CYSAG yw monitro addysg grefyddol ac addoli ar y cyd a chynghori’r awdurdod lleol ar faterion sy’n  
ymwneud ag addysg grefyddol ac addoli ar y cyd.  Mae Cymdeithas CYSAGau Cymru yn credu y dylai’r cyngor hwn 
fod yn seiliedig ar wybodaeth gyfredol.  Mae llawer o CYSAGau yn monitro safonau trwy wahodd ysgolion i rannu eu 
hunanarfarniad Addysg Grefyddol ac addoli ar y cyd ag aelodau CYSAG.   
 
Gwybodaeth bellach: 

 Cymdeithas CYSAGau Cymru: www.wasacre.org.uk   

 Addysg Grefyddol ac Addoli ar y Cyd: Cylchlythyr 10/94 (Swyddfa Gymreig) 

 Felly rydych yn ymuno â’ch CYSAG lleol: llawlyfr ar gyfer aelodau CYSAGau yng Nghymru (Cym. CYSAGau C) 

 Canllawiau ynglŷn ag Addoli ar y Cyd (Cymdeithas CYSAGau Cymru, 2012); 

 Adolygiad o Adroddiadau CYSAG (Llywodraeth Cymru, 2011 and 2013) 
 

Adran Addysg a Sgiliau Cymru  (AdAS) 

 
Mae’r rhan fwyaf o CYSAGau yng Nghymru wedi mabwysiadu’r ‘Fframwaith Enghreifftiol Cenedlaethol ar gyfer 
Addysg Grefyddol i ddysgwyr 3-19 oed yng Nghymru’ neu’i addasu fel eu maes llafur cytûn.  Mae Llywodraeth Cymru 
wedi cefnogi addysg grefyddol yng Nghymru trwy ddarparu canllawiau i gefnogi athrawon, penaethiaid ac aelodau 
CYSAG.  Maent yn cynnig gwybodaeth ddefnyddiol am ddulliau addysgu, adnoddau ac asesu.  Roedd proses 
gymedroli allanol genedlaethol 2010 -12 yn gyfle i adrannau AG mewn ysgolion uwchradd ddangos eu dealltwriaeth 
o lefelau cyrhaeddiad Addysg Grefyddol.   
 
Gwybodaeth bellach 

 http://cymru.gov.uk > chwiliwch am Addysg Grefyddol 

 Y Maes Llafur Cytûn (neu’r Fframwaith Enghreifftiol Cenedlaethol ar gyfer Addysg Grefyddol yng Nghymru)  

 Addysg Grefyddol: Canllawiau ar gyfer Cyfnodau Allweddol 2 a 3 (2011) 

 Proffiliau Enghreifftiol Dysgwyr yng NghA 2 a  3 mewn Addysg Grefyddol: Canllawiau Ychwanegol (2011) 

 Addysg Grefyddol: Canllawiau i ddysgwyr 14-19 oed(2009) 

 Pobl, Cwestiynau a Chredoau:  Addysg Grefyddol yn y Cyfnod Sylfaen (2013) 

 Addysg Grefyddol: Adroddiad y Prif Safonwr 2012  (http://cbac.co.uk )  
 

ESTYN 

Mae arolygiadau ESTYN  yn seiliedig ar bump maes arolygu: 
1. Safonau 
2. Lles ac agweddau ddysgu 

 

3. Addysgu a phrofiadau dysgu 
4. Gofal, cymorth ac arweiniad 
5. Arweinyddiaeth a rheolaeth 

Prin yw’r adroddiadau arolygiadau ysgol sy’n cynnwys sylwadau ar safonau Addysg Grefyddol ac addoli ar y cyd.   
Cyhoeddwyd adolygiad thematig o Addysg Grefyddol mewn Ysgolion Uwchradd ym mis Mehefin 2013 ac mae’n 
cynnig argymhellion i awdurdodau lleol, ysgolion a CYSAGau.   
Gwybodaeth bellach:  

 www.estyn.org.uk 

 Addysg Grefyddol mewn Ysgolion Uwchradd (ESTYN, Mehefin 2013) 

 Addysg grefyddol a moesol yng nghyfnod allweddol 2 a chyfnod allweddol 3 (ESTYN, Haf 2018) 

 Arweiniad atodol : addoli ar y cyd mewn ysgolion anenwadol (Hydref 2017) 
 

Page 131

mailto:bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru
http://www.wasacre.org.uk/
http://cymru.gov.uk/
http://cbac.co.uk/
http://www.estyn.org.uk/


Dilyniant i drafodaethau gyda swyddogion ac aelodau CYSAG Môn, swyddogion GwE a phenaethiaid cynradd Môn Rhagfyr 2017 

 

2 Bethan James (bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru)   

 

Pa dystiolaeth a ddefnyddir gan ysgolion wrth ddod i farn? 

Craffu ar lyfrau 

 

Mae athrawon yn casglu sampl o waith disgyblion, (e.e. amrediad o allu, oed, 
bechgyn a merched) er mwyn helpu’r cydlynydd i ateb cwestiynau megis:  

 Pa gynnydd a wneir gan ddisgyblion yn eu sgiliau AG? A oes grwpiau o 
ddisgyblion yn tangyflawni? 

 I ba raddau y mae’r gwaith yn adlewyrchu gofynion y Maes Llafur Cytûn? 

 I ba raddau y mae gwaith y dysgwyr yn datblygu’r medrau a nodir yn y 
Fframweithiau  Llythrennedd, Rhifedd, a Chymhwysedd digidol Cenedlaethol 

 Pa welliannau sydd angen i ni eu gwneud wrth i ni gynllunio, darparu ac asesu 
addysg grefyddol? 

Arsylwadau gwersi 
 

 

Mae athrawon ac arweinwyr ysgol yn arsylwi gwersi er mwyn helpu’r cydlynydd i 
ateb cwestiynau megis:  

 Pa gynnydd a wneir gan ddisgyblion yn eu sgiliau AG?  A oes grwpiau o 
ddisgyblion yn tangyflawni? 

 A yw’r dysgwyr yn dangos cymhelliant uchel?  A ydynt yn cyfrannu i’w dysgu? 

 I ba raddau y mae gwaith y dysgwyr yn adlewyrchu gofynion y Maes Llafur 
Cytûn? 

 I ba raddau y mae gwaith y dysgwyr yn datblygu’r medrau a nodir yn y 
Fframweithiau Llythrennedd, Rhifedd a Chymhwysedd digidol Cenedlaethol? 

 Pa welliannau sydd angen i ni eu gwneud wrth i ni gynllunio, darparu ac asesu 
addysg grefyddol? 

Holiaduron a chyfweliadau 
 

 

Gall ysgolion ddadansoddi canlyniadau holiaduron a ddefnyddiwyd i ganfod barn 
disgyblion, athrawon a rhieni i gwestiynau megis: 

 Beth yw eu barn am ‘gynnwys’ y gwersi AG? A oes grwpiau arwyddocaol o 
ddisgyblion/rhieni sy’n cynnig barnau gwahanol? 

 Pa gynnydd a wneir ganddynt yn eu sgiliau Addysg Grefyddol? 

 Beth yw eu rhagdybiaethau/barnau/agweddau tuag at Addysg Grefyddol? 

 Pa welliannau sydd angen i ni eu gwneud wrth i ni gynllunio, darparu ac asesu 
addysg grefyddol? 

Data 
 

 

Gall ysgolion ddefnyddio data asesiadau athro neu ganlyniadau arholiadau allanol 
(uwchradd yn unig) er mwyn adnabod tueddiadau neu batrymau?  

 Pa mor dda y mae bechgyn/merched/grwpiau o ddisgyblion yn perfformio 
dros gyfnod?  (pob ysgol) 

 Pa mor dda y mae disgyblion ein hysgol/adran ni yn perfformio mewn 
cymhariaeth ag ysgolion/adrannau eraill?   (ysgolion uwchradd yn unig) 

 A oes grwpiau o ddisgyblion sy’n tangyflawni?  (pob ysgol) 

 Pa welliannau sydd angen i ni eu gwneud wrth i ni gynllunio, darparu ac asesu 
mewn addysg grefyddol? 

Eraill 

               
 
 

 

Gall barn ysgolion hefyd fod yn seiliedig ar dystiolaeth arall megis:  

 Llwyddiant mewn cystadlaethau AG lleol neu genedlaethol; 

 Cyfrannu tuag at ddigwyddiadau/cynadleddau/prosiectau/cyhoeddiadau lleol 
neu  genedlaethol;  

 Adroddiadau monitro gan aelodau eraill o’r staff e.e. cydlynwyr  llythrennedd 
rhifedd neu TGCh; 

 Cofnodion cyfarfodydd gyda staff, llywodraethwyr neu ymwelwyr CYSAG; 

 Ymchwil gweithredu gan aelod o Gymuned Ddysgu Broffesiynol; 

 Achrediad allanol, e.e. Marc Ansawdd Addysg Grefyddol 
http://www.reqm.org/wales 

 

Page 132

mailto:bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru


Dilyniant i drafodaethau gyda swyddogion ac aelodau CYSAG Môn, swyddogion GwE a phenaethiaid cynradd Môn Rhagfyr 2017 

 

3 Bethan James (bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru)   

 

Canllawiau CYSAG (tudalennau 3, 4, 5 a 6) 
 
I ba raddau y mae ddarpariaeth yr ysgol yn hyrwyddo datblygiad personol y disgyblion? (Maes arolygu 4.2) 
Bydd arfarnu safonau a’r ddarpariaeth ar gyfer addysg grefyddol yn gymorth i’r ysgol arfarnu maes arolygu 4.2 sef 
‘Datblygiad personol (gan gynnwys datblygiad ysbrydol, moesol, cymdeithasol a diwylliannol). 
 
Mae arweiniad arolygu ESTYN (Medi 2017) ar gyfer datblygiad ysbrydol a moesol yn nodi:  

“Dylai arolygwyr ystyried y graddau y mae’r ysgol yn darparu cyfleoedd effeithiol i ddisgyblion ddatblygu 
gwerthoedd sicr a sefydlu eu credoau ysbrydol a moesegol. Dylent ystyried pa mor dda y mae’r ysgol yn 
hyrwyddo egwyddorion sy’n helpu disgyblion i wahaniaethu rhwng da a drwg. Dylent ystyried pa mor dda y 
mae’r ysgol yn datblygu gallu disgyblion i fyfyrio ar ymatebion crefyddol ac anghrefyddol i gwestiynau 
sylfaenol ac i fyfyrio ar eu credoau neu eu gwerthoedd eu hunain. Dylent ystyried i ba raddau y mae’r ysgol 
yn meithrin gwerthoedd sy’n cael eu rhannu, fel gonestrwydd, tegwch, cyfiawnder a chynaliadwyedd, ac yn 
helpu disgyblion i ddeall anghenion a hawliau pobl eraill yn lleol, ac fel aelodau o fyd eang ac amrywiol.” 

 
O fewn amserlen cylch hunan arfarnu’r ysgol bydd angen ystyried pa dystiolaeth fydd yn helpu’r ysgol ddod i farn ar 
maes arolygu 4.2.   Mae gan  addysg grefyddol ac addoli ar y cyd gyfraniad pwysig i’r maes hwn. 
 
Mae’r cwestiynau enghreifftiol canlynol yn seiliedig ar Fframwaith Arolygu Cyffredinol ESTYN (Medi 2017) a’r 
cwestiynau a defnyddiwyd gan ESTYN yn ystod arolygiad thematig ar addysg grefyddol yn ystod tymor yr Hydref 
2017.  Nid oes disgwyl i ysgol ateb pob cwestiwn, ond o drafod rhain gyda staff, llywodraethwyr, disgyblion ac 
ymgynghorydd cefnogi gwelliant bydd ysgol yn gallu adnabod cryfderau a meysydd gwella fydd yn eu galluogi i 
gynllunio gwelliannau. 
 
Maes Arolygu 1: Safonau 
Cofiwch gynnwys geirfa feintiol ac arfarnol ac enghreifftiau o waith ‘go iawn’!   
 Beth yw eich barn am safonau addysg grefyddol yn eich ysgol? (Disgyblion CS, CA2, CA3, CA4, CA5) 

 Pa mor dda y mae disgyblion yn ymdrin â’r cwestiynau sylfaenol, yn archwilio i gredoau, dysgeidiaethau ac arfer(ion) 
crefyddol ac yn mynegi ymatebion personol i gredoau, dysgeidiaethau, arferion, a chwestiynau sylfaenol? 

 I ba raddau mae grwpiau o ddisgyblion yn gwneud cynnydd mewn addysg grefyddol?  Beth welwch chi yn eu gwaith sy’n 
dangos eu cynnydd? 

 I ba raddau mae disgyblion yn defnyddio’u medrau siarad a gwrando, darllen ac ysgrifennu, rhifedd a TGCh yn briodol mewn 
addysg grefyddol? 

 Rhowch enghraifft o sut mae’r disgyblion wedi datblygu eu medrau meddwl, eu creadigrwydd a’u medrau corfforol mewn 
gweithgareddau addysg grefyddol yn yr ystafell ddosbarth a thu allan? 

 Pa faterion gwella sydd angen sylw yn ystod y flwyddyn nesaf? 

 
Maes Arolygu 2: Lles ac agweddau at ddysgu  
Cofiwch gynnwys geirfa feintiol ac arfarnol ac enghreifftiau o waith ‘go iawn’!   

 A yw’r disgyblion yn dangos diddordeb mewn addysg grefyddol?   

 Beth ydych chi’n teimlo y mae disgyblion yn ei ennill o wersi addysg grefyddol? 

 Pa faterion gwella sydd angen sylw yn ystod y flwyddyn nesaf? 

 
Maes Arolygu 3:  Addysgu a phrofiadau dysgu 
Cofiwch gyfeirio at enghreifftiau o’r darpariaeth.   Amser i’r pwnc? % sy’n dewis fel opsiwn Ast. Cref? % sy’n cael 
achrediad am AGref statudol. 

 Sut ydych yn gwybod bod eich ysgol yn bodloni’r gofynion statudol ar gyfer addysg grefyddol? 

 Sut mae addysg grefyddol yn cael ei haddysgu yn eich ysgol?  

 A yw’r addysg grefyddol yn llwyddo i ennyn ddiddordeb y disgyblion?  

 Pa mor dda y mae’r gwersi/gweithgareddau yn datblygu gwybodaeth a dealltwriaeth y disgyblion o gredoau, 
dysgeidiaethau ac arferion crefyddol yn ogystal a’u medrau pwnc a’u medrau trawsgwricwlaidd? 

Page 133

mailto:bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru


Dilyniant i drafodaethau gyda swyddogion ac aelodau CYSAG Môn, swyddogion GwE a phenaethiaid cynradd Môn Rhagfyr 2017 

 

4 Bethan James (bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru)   

 

 Beth yw ansawdd y cynllunio ar gyfer addysg grefyddol? (adeiladu ar wybodaeth, dealltwriaeth a medrau blaenorol? 
amcanion clir? dulliau addysgu?  adnoddau?) 

 Pa mor dda y mae’r adborth mewn addysg grefyddol yn helpu disgyblion i wybod pa mor dda y maent yn ei wneud a 
beth mae angen iddynt ei wneud i wella? 

 Ym mha ffyrdd ydych chi’n asesu ac yn olrhain cynnydd disgyblion mewn addysg grefyddol? 

 Sut mae’r cynllunio ar gyfer addysg grefyddol yn helpu’r disgyblion i fod yn unigolion uchelgeisiol, hyderus, dyheadol a 
gwybodus?  A ydych wedi dechrau ymateb i argymhellion ‘Dyfodol Llwyddiannus’? 

 I ba raddau y mae’r ysgol yn rhoi ystod eang a phriodol o brofiadau, tu fewn a thu allan i’r dosbarth, er mwyn datblygu 
diddordeb a medrau’r disgyblion mewn addysg grefyddol? 

 A yw’r ysgol yn trefnu unrhyw deithiau neu ymweliadau sy’n gysylltiedig ag addysg grefyddol?  Pa grwpiau blwyddyn, pa 
mor aml, a sut mae’r teithiau hyn yn cyfoethogi’r cwricwlwm? 

 A yw’r addysg grefyddol yn adlewyrchu natur cyd-destun yr ysgol?  A yw’n adlewyrchu amrywiaeth ddiwylliannol, 
ieithyddol ac ethnig Cymru ac ardal leol yr ysgol? 

 I ba raddau mae’r gweithgareddau addysg grefyddol yn rhoi cyfleoedd cynyddol pwrpasol i ddisgyblion ymarfer a 
datblygu eu medrau llythrennedd, rhifedd a TGCh i’r safon briodol?’ 

 Pa faterion gwella sydd angen sylw yn ystod y flwyddyn nesaf? 

 
Maes arolygu 4: Gofal, cymorth ac arweiniad 

 I ba raddau mae gwersi/gweithgareddau addysg grefyddol yn helpu disgyblion i fod yn ddinasyddion gweithredol? 

 Sut mae’r disgyblion yn dylanwadau ar yr hyn y maent yn ei ddysgu mewn addysg grefyddol? 

 A yw’r ysgol yn cymryd rhan mewn unrhyw weithgareddau cymunedol neu a oes ganddi gysylltiadau ag unrhyw 
arweinwyr neu sefydliadau ffydd? 

 Beth yw cyfraniad addysg grefyddol i ddealltwriaeth disgyblion o’u diwylliant, y gymuned leol a’r byd ehangach?   

 Rhowch enghreifftiau o sut mae addysg grefyddol wedi helpu disgyblion i ddeall materion yn ymwneud â 
chydraddoldeb ac amrywiaeth,  ystrydebau neu eithafiaeth crefyddol, hawliau dynol? 

 I ba raddau mae’r ysgol yn helpu disgyblion i ddatblygu gwerthoedd sicr a sefydlu eu credoau ysbrydol a moesegol? 

 Pa mor dda mae’r ysgol yn datblygu gallu disgyblion i fyfyrio ar ymatebion crefyddol ac anghrefyddol i gwestiynau 
sylfaenol ac i fyfyrio ar eu credoau neu eu gwerthoedd eu hunain? 

 A yw’r ysgol yn bodloni’r gofynion statudol parthed addoli ar y cyd? 

 Beth yw ansawdd yr addoli ar y cyd?  Pa mor dda y mae’r ysgol yn ei gynllunio dros gyfnod? 

 Sut mae’r ysgol yn cadw disgyblion yn ddiogel rhag peryglon radicaleiddio, e.e. deunydd eithafol naill ai drwy siaradwyr 
gwadd neu siaradwyr ar ymweliadau a safleoedd? 

 Sut ydych chi’n sicrhau y caiff pryderon ynghylch sylwadau a wneir gan ddisgyblion yn ystod gwersi addysg grefyddol eu 
hystyried yn briodol? 

 Pa faterion gwella sydd angen sylw yn ystod y flwyddyn nesaf? 

 
Maes arolygu 5: Arweinyddiaeth a rheolaeth 

 A oes gan yr arweinydd pwnc addysg grefyddol y medrau a’r ddealltwriaeth angenrheidiol i arwain y pwnc yn effeithiol?  

 A yw’r staff yn gallu manteisio ar ddatblygiad proffesiynol mewn addysg grefyddol? 

 Sut ydych yn dyrannu adnoddau i gynorthwyo i addysgu addysg grefyddol? 

 Sut caiff rhieni eu hysbysu am eu hawl i dynnu disgyblion o wersi addysg grefyddol?  Sawl disgybl sy’n cael eu tynno o 
wersi addysg grefyddol gan eu rhieni ac a oes gan yr ysgol drefniadau da i ddarparu ar eu cyfer yn ystod gwersi addysg 
grefyddol?  A yw’r nifer hon wedi cynnydd/gostwng/aros yr un fath dros y 5 mlynedd diwethaf?  O ba grwpiau y daw’r 
disgyblion hyn?  A ydych yn cael sgwrs a rhieni ynghylch eu penderfyniad? 

 Ym mha ffyrdd y mae darpariaeth eich ysgol ar gyfer addysg grefyddol yn helpu i hyrwyddo cydlyniad cymunedol gwell? 

 Pa mor aml ydych chi’n monitro addysg grefyddol?  Sut caiff y wybodaeth hon ei rhannu a staff perthnasol eraill? 

 A ydych yn ystyried safbwyntiau disgyblion yn yr adroddiad hunan-arfarnu a’r cynlluniau gweithredu? 

 A ydych yn cydweithio gydag athrawon sy’n addysgu addysg grefyddol mewn ysgolion eraill? Beth yw effaith hyn? 

 Beth yw’r ‘enghraifft gorau o addysg grefyddol’ y gallwch ei rannu gyda’ch CYSAG lleol neu gydag athrawon eraill? 

 Pa faterion gwella sydd angen sylw yn ystod y flwyddyn nesaf? 

 

 

 

Page 134

mailto:bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru


Dilyniant i drafodaethau gyda swyddogion ac aelodau CYSAG Môn, swyddogion GwE a phenaethiaid cynradd Môn Rhagfyr 2017 

 

5 Bethan James (bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru)   

 

Sut y gall CYSAGau fonitro safonau? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cywain 

gwybodaeth 

Dadansoddi 

Crynhoi 
Dod i farn 

Cynllunio 

gweithredu 

Sut y gall CYSAG gywain gwybodaeth?  
- trwy ofyn i ysgolion gyflwyno gwybodaeth a 

hunanarfarniad; 

- trwy gomisiynu ‘arbenigwr’ i ymweld â sampl o ysgolion a 
darparu adroddiad tymhorol;  

- trwy drefnu bod yr aelodau yn ymweld ag ysgolion; 

- trwy ofyn i ddisgyblion, staff a llywodraethwyr mewn sampl 
o ysgolion gwblhau holiadur ar-lein; 

- trwy edrych ar ganlyniadau arholiadau allanol ac asesiadau 
athro CA3 (ysgolion uwchradd yn unig) 

 
 Pa ffynonellau sydd ar gael yn eich hardal chi?  

- Dadansoddiad o adroddiadau hunan arfarnu ysgolion; 
- Dadansoddiad o bolisïau, cynlluniau gwaith, cynlluniau datblygu ysgolion; 
- Data perfformiad ysgolion:  asesiadau athrawon CA3, canlyniadau TGAU, Safon UG/A; 
- Adroddiadau ymweliadau ysgol gan aelodau CYSAG; 
- Dadansoddiad o holiaduron ysgol, arolygon ar-lein (disgyblion, staff, llywodraethwyr) wedi’u cyflwyno gan benaethiaid, 

cydlynwyr neu CYSAG/Cymdeithas CYSAGau Cymru; 
- Cyflwyniadau gan gydlynwyr, athrawon, penaethiaid, disgyblion; 
- Llwyddiant mewn cystadleuaethau, achrediadau allanol. 

 
dadansoddiad    

 
Pwy sy’n cyfrannu tuag at y monitro? 
- athrawon ac aelodau o UDRh ysgolion  

- aelodau CYSAG 

- swyddogion Awdurdod Lleol/GwE 

- athrawon a nodwyd fel athrawon neilltuol 

- disgyblion 

- llywodraethwyr 

- rhieni  
 

Rhifau  -  meintiau a chyfrannau  
bron bob un  =      gydag ychydig iawn o eithriadau  

y rhan fwyaf  = 90% neu fwy  

llawer       =  70% neu fwy  

mwyafrif =  dros 60% 

tua hanner    = agos at 50% 

lleiafrif           = o dan 40% 

ychydig           = o dan 20% 

ychydig iawn  = llai na 10% 

Beth ddylid ei gynnwys? 

 Effaith ymyrraeth ar (safonau, lles, 

addysgu, agweddau, gwerthoedd) 

 Tueddiadau dros gyfnod 

 Cymhariaeth ag ysgolion eraill (?) 

 Barn - defnyddio termau arfarnol 

 Meintioli pa bryd bynnag y bo’n bosibl 

Geiriau/ymadroddion defnyddiol 

Mae xxx wedi arwain at....   

O ganlyniad i  xxx mae safonau xxx wedi codi xx% er xx 

Yn dilyn cyflwyno xxx mae xxx wedi gwella, fel y dangosir gan ... 

Dengys xxx fod safonau xxx wedi... 

Gwelir effaith xxx yn xxx sy’n dangos bod.... 

Gellir gweld gwelliant mewn xxx yn .... 

Gellir gweld dylanwad xxx yn y gwelliant/cynnydd... 

Dengys XXXXX bod x% o’r disgyblion yn gallu/bod gan x% o’r disgylion ...  

Dengys xxx bod x% o’r rhieni/staff/llywodraethwyr yn.... 

Rhagorol 
Perfformiad ac arferion cryf iawn, cynaledig 

Da 
Nodweddion cryf, er y gall fod angen gwella mân agweddau 

arbennig, da iawn, cryf iawn, eithriadol, yn rhagori ar, arbennig, 
ardderchog, gwych, safon uchel iawn, ansawdd uchel iawn, 
ymestynnol, creadigol iawn, ymhell uwchlaw’r disgwyliadau, 
effeithiol iawn, hyfedr, meistrolgar 

llwyddiannus, cryf, cadarn, medrus, buddiol, gwerthfawr, 

cadarnhaol, trwyadl, defnyddiol, nerthol, grymus, cynhwysfawr, 

defnydd da, cyson dda, effeithiol, pwrpasol 

Digonol ac angen gwelliant 
Cryfderau’n gorbwyso gwendidau, ond agweddau pwysig y mae 
angen eu gwella 

Anfoddhaol ac angen gwelliant ar frys 
Gwendidau pwysig yn gorbwyso cryfderau 

boddhaol, priodol, addas, effeithlon, cymwys, perthnasol, digonol, 
digon, dilys, cadarn, diogel, canolig, cyson, cymedrol, anghyson, 
cyfyngedig 

annigonol, aneffeithlon, dim, amhriodol, aneffeithiol, anaddas, 

methu, gwan, gwael, cyfyngedig. 

Rhagorol 
Perfformiad ac arferion cryf iawn, cynaledig 

Da 

Nodweddion cryf, er y gall fod angen gwella mân agweddau 

arbennig, da iawn, cryf iawn, eithriadol, yn rhagori ar, 
arbennig, ardderchog, gwych, safon uchel iawn, ansawdd 
uchel iawn, ymestynnol, creadigol iawn, ymhell uwchlaw’r 
disgwyliadau, effeithiol iawn, hyfedr, meistrolgar 

llwyddiannus, cryf, cadarn, medrus, buddiol, gwerthfawr, 

cadarnhaol, trwyadl, defnyddiol, nerthol, grymus, 

cynhwysfawr, defnydd da, cyson dda, effeithiol, pwrpasol 

Digonol ac angen gwelliant 
Cryfderau’n gorbwyso gwendidau, ond agweddau pwysig y 
mae angen eu gwella 

Anfoddhaol ac angen gwelliant ar frys 

Gwendidau pwysig yn gorbwyso cryfderau 

boddhaol, priodol, addas, effeithlon, cymwys, perthnasol, 
digonol, digon, dilys, cadarn, diogel, canolig, cyson, cymedrol, 
anghyson, cyfyngedig 

annigonol, aneffeithlon, dim, amhriodol, aneffeithiol, 

anaddas, methu, gwan, gwael, cyfyngedig. 

Page 135

mailto:bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru


Dilyniant i drafodaethau gyda swyddogion ac aelodau CYSAG Môn, swyddogion GwE a phenaethiaid cynradd Môn Rhagfyr 2017 

 

6 Bethan James (bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru)   

 

Enw’r Ysgol:                                                          

Addysg Grefyddol 

Maes arolygu 1: Safonau Addysg Grefyddol 
Pa mor dda y mae disgyblion yn ymdrin â’r cwestiynau sylfaenol, yn archwilio i gredoau, dysgeidiaethau ac 
arfer(ion) crefyddol ac yn mynegi ymatebion personol i gredoau, dysgeidiaethau, arferion, a chwestiynau 
sylfaenol? Beth welwch chi yn eu gwaith sy’n dangos eu cynnydd dros amser? 

 Defnyddiwch: gwaith y disgyblion, asesiadau athrawon, teithiau dysgu, arsylwadau gwersi i lunio barn. 

 I’ch helpu mae: Maes Llafur Cytûn Lleol (Fframwaith Enghreifftiol Cenedlaethol); Arweiniad Llywodraeth Cymru: 
Pobl, Cwestiynau a Chredoau (2013), Canllawiau a Phroffiliau Enghreifftiol CA2 a CA3 (2011), 14-19 (2009), 
Canllawiau CYSAG, adroddiadau arholwyr CBAC. 

Nodiadau: 
 

Mae safonau addysg grefyddol ein disgyblion yn:  BARN 

 

Maes arolygu 2: Lles ac agweddau at ddysgu am Addysg Grefyddol?  
Beth ydych chi’n teimlo y mae disgyblion yn ei ennill o wersi addysg grefyddol? 

 Defnyddiwch: gwaith disgyblion, dadansoddiad o holiadur addysg grefyddol, cofnodion grwp ffocws/Cyngor 
Ysgol  

 I’ch helpu mae: Arweiniad atodol: gwrando ar ddysgwyr (ESTYN, Medi 2017),  

Nodiadau:  
 

Mae agweddau disgyblion tuag at addysg grefyddol yn ein hysgol ni yn: BARN 

 

Maes arolygu 3: Addysgu ac phrofiadau dysgu mewn Addysg Grefyddol? 
Pa mor dda yw’r cynllunio a’r addysgu mewn addysg grefyddol? Rhowch enghreifftiau o brofiadau addysg 
grefyddol cyfoethog 

 Defnyddiwch:  teithiau dysgu, arsylwadau gwersi, gwaith disgyblion, holi disgyblion 

 I’ch helpu mae: Maes Llafur Cytûn Lleol (Fframwaith Enghreifftiol Cenedlaethol); Arweiniad Llywodraeth Cymru: 
Pobl, Cwestiynau a Chredoau (2013), Canllawiau a Phroffiliau Enghreifftiol CA2 a CA3 (2011), 14-19 (2009), 
Canllawiau CYSAG, Addysg grefyddol mewn ysgolion uwchradd (ESTYN, Haf 2013), Addysg grefyddol a moesol 
yng NghA2 a ChA3 (ESTYN, Haf 2018) 

Nodiadau: 
 

Maes safonau addysgu addysg grefyddol yn ein hysgol ni yn: BARN 

 

Maes arolygu 4: Gofal, cymorth ac arweiniad mewn Addysg Grefyddol? 
I ba raddau mae gwersi/gweithgareddau addysg grefyddol yn helpu disgyblion i fyfyrio ar ymatebion crefyddol ac 
anghrefyddol i gwestiynau sylfaenol ac i fyfyrio ar eu credoau neu eu gwerthoedd eu hunain?  Sut mae addysg 
grefyddol yn helpu disgyblion i fod yn ddinasyddion gweithredol? I ba raddau y mae’r ysgol yn darparu cyfleoedd 
effeithiol i ddisgyblion ddatblygu gwerthoedd sicr a sefydlu eu credoau ysbrydol a moesegol? 

 Defnyddiwch: teithiau dysgu, cyfweliadau gyda disgyblion, rhaglen addoli ar y cyd yr ysgol, cylchlythyr ysgol, 
cofnodion yr ysgol o unrhyw troseddau casineb/bwlio. 

 I’ch helpu mae: Canllawiau CYSAG, Canllawiau ynglyn â addoli ar y cyd (Cymdeithas CYSAGau Cymru), Arweiniad 
atodol: addoli ar y cyd mewn ysgolion anenwadol (ESTYN, Hydref 2017), Arweiniad atodol: gwrando ar ddysgwyr 

Page 136

mailto:bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru


Dilyniant i drafodaethau gyda swyddogion ac aelodau CYSAG Môn, swyddogion GwE a phenaethiaid cynradd Môn Rhagfyr 2017 

 

7 Bethan James (bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru)   

 

(ESTYN, Medi 2017) 

Nodiadau: 
 

Ydy’r ysgol yn bodloni’r gofynion statudol ar gyfer addoli ar y cyd? Ydy  Nac ydy  

Mae cyfraniad addysg grefyddol i ddatblygiad personol disgyblion a chydlyniad cymunedol yn: BARN 

 

Maes arolygu 5: Arweinyddiaeth a rheolaeth mewn Addysg Grefyddol?  
A oes gan yr arweinydd pwnc addysg grefyddol y medrau a’r ddealltwriaeth angenrheidiol i arwain y pwnc yn 
effeithiol?  Sut ydych yn gwybod? 

 Defnyddiwch: cynlluniau gwaith, adroddiadau monitro ac hunan arfarnu, arfarniad o ddata, cyfweliadau gyda’r 
cydlynydd a’r llywodraethwr dynodedig/ymwelydd CYSAG, cofnodion cyfarfodydd staff, cynllun gwella, arfarniad 
cynnydd, astudiaeth achos yn dilyn cydweithio ysgol-i-ysgol. 

 I’ch helpu mae: canllawiau CYSAG 

Nodiadau: 

Mae arweinyddiaeth a rheolaeth mewn addysg grefyddol yn: BARN 

 

Agweddau i gael sylw Camau gweithredu Pwy? Erbyn pryd? 

  Nid oes rhaid rhannu’r 
manylion hyn gyda 
CYSAG ond mae angen i 
gofnodion yr ysgol 
sicrhau bod atebolrwydd 
yn glir i staff a 
llywodraethwyr 

    

    

    

    

    

  

 

Enw’r pennaeth   
Llofnod y pennaeth   
Dyddiad:   
 

Arfarniad crynodol a fydd yn cyfrannu at arfarniad yr ysgol o ‘Ddatblygiad Personol (4.2)’ 
Cryno!  Tua 50 o eiriau. 
 

Page 137

mailto:bethanjames@gwegogledd.cymru


This page is intentionally left blank



To   [edit]

Greenfield Special School

February 2018

Dear Headteacher and Staff,

Request for Self Evaluation of Religious Education and Collective Worship

At its last meeting, SACRE considered the findings of your recent Estyn inspection with a view to 
monitoring Collective Worship and pupils’ spiritual development. 

SACRE members would like to acknowledge that the school is a welcoming, highly inclusive and 
caring community that values and supports all of its pupils and staff, and that thought provoking 
assemblies provide beneficial opportunities for pupils to reflect on their own beliefs and explore a 
wide range of moral issues.  Additionally, members note that staff and pupils promote the strong 
ethos and values exceptionally well across the school.  Members were pleased to read that the 
school celebrates and respects equality and diversity well, and all pupils have equal access to all 
areas of the curriculum. SACRE members understand that many pupils develop important life skills 
by participating in community events, for example by performing in drama productions, attending 
regional sporting events and fundraising for national charities. Members note that provision for 
promoting pupils’ understanding of sustainable development is highly creative and successful, and 
that well-established links with other countries, such as Chile, help to promote pupils’ understanding 
of global citizenship.  

SACRE would like to congratulate you on your achievements in these aspects of the curriculum. 

As you may be aware, Merthyr Tydfil SACRE (Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education) has a 
duty to monitor the provision of Religious Education and Collective Worship across the authority. 
Additionally, it is the role of SACRE to advise on such matters as methods of teaching, the choice of 
teaching materials and the provision of training for teachers.  

In the absence of specific reference and evidence of standards in Religious Education and Collective 
Worship provided in Estyn Inspection Reports, SACRE would like to request that you kindly provide 
details of your own self evaluation of these areas of the curriculum.  Information provided will be 
used by SACRE to consider and recommend ways in which the local authority might best continue to 
support schools in these areas.  Therefore, please do include in your self evaluation, details of areas 
for further development, in order that SACRE can consider how it might assist you in this 
development. 
 
You may either complete the attached proforma, or alternatively, if you already have in place any 
form of documentation which would provide similar information you are welcome to submit that 
instead.
 
It would be most helpful if we can receive the information before 30th April, 2018 in readiness for 
the next Summer Term SACRE meeting.
 
Thank you for your attention in this matter. Please do not hesitate to contact us if you feel we may 
be able to support you in any of these areas.

Page 139



Yours faithfully,

Page 140



To   [edit]

Ysgol Gymraeg Rhyd-Y-Grug

February 2018

Dear Headteacher and Staff,

Request for Self Evaluation of Religious Education and Collective Worship

At its last meeting, SACRE considered the findings of your recent Estyn inspection with a view to 
monitoring Collective Worship and pupils’ spiritual development. 

Members note that staff plan effectively in order to provide broad and interesting experiences for 
pupils, which respond fully to the requirements of the Foundation Phase, the National Curriculum 
and the agreed syllabus for religious education. 

SACRE members would like to acknowledge that provision to develop pupils’ spiritual, moral, social 
and cultural development is good.  Additionally, members note that collective worship sessions 
support pupils’ spiritual and moral development effectively, and they are given appropriate 
opportunities to reflect on relevant issues.  There are also very successful procedures to promote 
positive behaviour and encourage pupils to respect each other and adults.

SACRE understands that members of the school council and eco committee play a prominent role 
within the school.  They gather the ideas of their fellow pupils regularly and report back on their 
activities successfully in assemblies, as well as arranging fundraising activities for a number of 
charities, and that this has a positive effect on their awareness of other people’s needs. 

SACRE members were pleased to read that pupils take good advantage of valuable opportunities to 
contribute to various activities in the local community.  For example, taking part in a recent concert 
to commemorate the Aberfan disaster has reminded the pupils of their heritage and the importance 
of the local community in their everyday lives.

SACRE would like to congratulate you on your achievements in these aspects of the curriculum. 

As you may be aware, Merthyr Tydfil SACRE (Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education) has a 
duty to monitor the provision of Religious Education and Collective Worship across the authority. 
Additionally, it is the role of SACRE to advise on such matters as methods of teaching, the choice of 
teaching materials and the provision of training for teachers.  

In the absence of specific reference and evidence of standards in Religious Education and Collective 
Worship provided in Estyn Inspection Reports, SACRE would like to request that you kindly provide 
details of your own self evaluation of these areas of the curriculum.  Information provided will be 
used by SACRE to consider and recommend ways in which the local authority might best continue to 
support schools in these areas.  Therefore, please do include in your self evaluation, details of areas 
for further development, in order that SACRE can consider how it might assist you in this 
development. 
 
You may either complete the attached proforma, or alternatively, if you already have in place any 
form of documentation which would provide similar information you are welcome to submit that 
instead.

Page 141



 
It would be most helpful if we can receive the information before 30th April, 2018 in readiness for 
the next Summer Term SACRE meeting.
 
Thank you for your attention in this matter. Please do not hesitate to contact us if you feel we may 
be able to support you in any of these areas.

Yours faithfully,

Page 142



To   [edit]

Greenfield Special School

February 2018

Dear Headteacher and Staff,

Request for Self Evaluation of Religious Education and Collective Worship

At its last meeting, SACRE considered the findings of your recent Estyn inspection with a view to 
monitoring Collective Worship and pupils’ spiritual development. 

SACRE members would like to acknowledge that the school is a welcoming, highly inclusive and 
caring community that values and supports all of its pupils and staff, and that thought provoking 
assemblies provide beneficial opportunities for pupils to reflect on their own beliefs and explore a 
wide range of moral issues.  Additionally, members note that staff and pupils promote the strong 
ethos and values exceptionally well across the school.  Members were pleased to read that the 
school celebrates and respects equality and diversity well, and all pupils have equal access to all 
areas of the curriculum. SACRE members understand that many pupils develop important life skills 
by participating in community events, for example by performing in drama productions, attending 
regional sporting events and fundraising for national charities. Members note that provision for 
promoting pupils’ understanding of sustainable development is highly creative and successful, and 
that well-established links with other countries, such as Chile, help to promote pupils’ understanding 
of global citizenship.  

SACRE would like to congratulate you on your achievements in these aspects of the curriculum. 

As you may be aware, Merthyr Tydfil SACRE (Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education) has a 
duty to monitor the provision of Religious Education and Collective Worship across the authority. 
Additionally, it is the role of SACRE to advise on such matters as methods of teaching, the choice of 
teaching materials and the provision of training for teachers.  

In the absence of specific reference and evidence of standards in Religious Education and Collective 
Worship provided in Estyn Inspection Reports, SACRE would like to request that you kindly provide 
details of your own self evaluation of these areas of the curriculum.  Information provided will be 
used by SACRE to consider and recommend ways in which the local authority might best continue to 
support schools in these areas.  Therefore, please do include in your self evaluation, details of areas 
for further development, in order that SACRE can consider how it might assist you in this 
development. 
 
You may either complete the attached proforma, or alternatively, if you already have in place any 
form of documentation which would provide similar information you are welcome to submit that 
instead.
 
It would be most helpful if we can receive the information before 30th April, 2018 in readiness for 
the next Summer Term SACRE meeting.
 
Thank you for your attention in this matter. Please do not hesitate to contact us if you feel we may 
be able to support you in any of these areas.

Page 143



Yours faithfully,

Page 144



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council SACRE 
 

Points to note: 
Results are for pupils in NC Year 11 (PLASC 2017) 

       
For consistency with WG published figures data includes entries taken in previous years 

    
CSC figures are not necessarily comparable to WG figures due to discounting being applied by WG if candidates enter more than one examination in the same subject group.  

 
Examination Results Analysis 2017 - GCSE Religious Studies 

 

  
Merthyr 2015 

 
Merthyr 2016 

 
Merthyr 2017 Consortium 

2017 
All Wales 2017 

A*- A 30.2% 33.3% 21.6% 27.8% 24.7% 
A* - C 74.1% 69.9% 65.4% 71.5% 68.3% 

A* - G 98.6% 98.1% 98.8% 98.5% 97.5% 

Entry 139 students 
23.2% 

4 schools 
 

156 
(25.4% of cohort)  

4 schools 
& EOTAS 

 

162 students 
(28.8% of cohort) 

4 schools 
 

4789 students 
(50.8% of cohort) 

12401 students 
(39.5% of cohort) 

*EOTAS – Education Other than at School 

Comments  
 

 There was a small increase in entries for the GCSE Religious Studies course in 2017 with 162 candidates from 4 schools.  In 2016 there 

were 156 candidates from 4 schools and learners in Education Other than at School.  In 2015 there were 139 candidates from 4 schools. In 

2017 there was an increase in the All Wales figure at 12401 students entered in 2017 compared with 11051 candidates in 2016 and 11,341 

in 2015.   

 The cohort entry for Merthyr Tydfil in 2017 was 28.8% which is higher than both the 25.4% entry in 2016 and the entry for 2015 at 23.2%.  

 The overall % of A* - G grades for Merthyr Tydfil was 98.8 % which is higher than 98.1% in 2016 and with previous performance.   The 

Consortium performance is the marginally lower at 98.5%.  The All Wales figure of 97.8% is also slightly lower.  

 The overall % of A* - C grades for Merthyr Tydfil was 65.4% which is lower than the figures of 69.9% in 2016 and of 74.1% in 2015. 

Performance at A* - C of 65.4% in Merthyr Tydfil is below the Consortium figure of 71.5% and the All Wales figure of 68.3%.   

 The overall % of A* - A grades for Merthyr Tydfil was 21.6% which is significantly lower than 33.3% in 2016 and than 30.2% in 2015. It is 

also below the Consortium performance of 27.8% and below the All Wales figure of 24.7%. 

 

P
age 145



 
 
 

Merthyr Tydfil Borough Council SACRE 

Examination Results Analysis 2017 - GCSE Religious Studies Short Course  

  
Merthyr 2015 

 
Merthyr 2016 Merthyr 2017 Consortium 2017 All Wales 2017 

A*- A 22.8% 18.7% 7.2% 7.5% 9.8% 

A* - C 62.5% 52.0% 33.7% 34.3% 39.6% 

A* - G 96.6% 94.1% 90.2% 86.9% 90.2% 
Entry 325 students 

(54.3% of cohort) 
4 schools 

 

358 students 
(58.3% of cohort) 

4 schools 
& EOTAS 

 

306 students 
(53.6% of 

cohort) 
 4 schools 
& EOTAS 

2607students 
(28%) 

9343 students 
(29.8%)  

*EOTAS – Education Other than at School 

Comments 

 

 In 2017 there was a decrease in the number of students sitting the GCSE Religious Studies short course at 306 students from 4 schools 

along with learners in Education Other than at School. In 2016 there had been a significant increase in entry where 358 students were 

entered compared with 325 students entered in 2015.  Across Wales 9343 students were entered in comparison to 11,666 students in 2016 

and 10,098 students in 2015.  

 The overall % of A* - G grades for Merthyr Tydfil in 2017 was 90.2% which is a decrease on the previous two years when it was 94.1% and 

96.6%. Performance at A*-G is, however, higher than the Consortium figure of 86.9% and matches the All Wales figure of 90.2%. 

 The overall % of A* - C grades for Merthyr Tydfil in 2017 was 33.7% which was significantly lower than 2016 at 52.0% and the performance 

of 62.5% in 2015. However the 2017 performance is comparable to the Consortium performance of 34.3% but below the All Wales figure of 

39.6%. 

 The overall % of A* - A grades for Merthyr Tydfil in 2017 is 7.2%. This has decreased significantly from the performances in 2016 at 18.7% 

and 22.8% in 2015. The 2017 performance is comparable to the Consortium performance of 7.5% and marginally lower than the All Wales 

figure of 9.8%.  

 
 
 

P
age 146



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough - SCHOOL INSPECTION REPORTS SACRE SYNOPSIS: Autumn Term 2017  
 

 

 
SACRE Synopsis: Main findings  
 
During the Autumn Term of 2017, one primary school was inspected. No secondary schools were inspected.  
 
Spiritual Development  
Specific comments in relation to spiritual development were not evident in the inspection report. However, opportunities for spiritual development were evident from 
the report, e.g. in the quality of Collective Worship and through links with the community. 
 
Collective Worship  
 
Meeting statutory requirements 
The Estyn Common Inspection Framework notes that inspectors should only report on instances where the school does not comply with statutory requirements. We can 
assume that schools inspected – as Estyn has not noted any instances of non-compliance - meet statutory requirements in relation to collective worship. 
 
 
Quality 
The report of the inspection at Heolgerrig Community School  made comment on the quality of collective worship 
 
Good features 
 

 Assemblies provide worthwhile opportunities for pupils to reflect on their learning and wellbeing. 

 Well-chosen topics [in assemblies] stimulate pupils’ curiosity and encourage them to question the world around them..   

 There are many valuable opportunities for pupils to develop their cultural awareness. 

 Assemblies help to promote high levels of self-esteem and confidence among pupils. 

  
 
Shortcomings 
 
None  
 
 
 

P
age 147



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough - SCHOOL INSPECTION REPORTS SACRE SYNOPSIS: Autumn Term 2017  
 

 

School and date of 
inspection 

Spiritual 
Development 

CW: meeting legal 
requirements 

CW: quality  
 

Other comments / issues / religious education / cultural 
development / community links 

 
 
Heolgerrig 
Community School 
 
November 2017 

There was no direct 
reference to spiritual 
development in the 
inspection report. 

 YES There are worthwhile 
opportunities for pupils to reflect 
on their learning and wellbeing. For 
example, during assemblies, adults 
and pupils discuss the school’s 
value of the month and relate it to 
pupils’ friendships and the best use 
of the ‘buddy bench’. Well-chosen 
topics stimulate pupils’ curiosity 
and encourage them to question 
the world around them. There are 
many valuable opportunities for 
pupils to develop their cultural 
awareness through music and 
performance, including taking part 
in a wide variety of productions, 
assemblies and concerts. These 
help to promote high levels of self-
esteem and confidence among 
pupils. 
 

Standards: Good  
Wellbeing and attitudes to learning: Good  
Teaching and learning experiences: Good  
Care, support and guidance: Good  
Leadership and management: Good 
 
No direct mention of Religious Education in the report.  

 Pupils interact well with new people and adults. 
The pupils in the school council and eco committee 
take an active role in making decisions. These have 
a very positive influence on the school and provide 
the pupils with a sense of responsibility. They work 
closely with the local council, for example, to gain 
additional security railings around the school site. 
This helps them to become ethical and informed 
citizens, who understand their rights and 
responsibilities. 

 Effective partnerships ensure that pupils have the 
knowledge and understanding to develop healthy 
lifestyle choices. For example, through work with a 
children’s charity, pupils have a good 
understanding of the importance of healthy 
relationships and keeping safe. As a result, the 
school has introduced peer mediators, who help 
pupils to resolve any minor squabbles among 
themselves and to play well together. 

 Recently, the school has reinvigorated its 
approaches to promoting good behaviour. For 
example, pupils in the foundation phase respond 
well to praise through the recognition board.  

 

P
age 148



 

1 

 

Cyfarfod Cymdeithas CYSAG au Cymru, yn Siambr y Cyngor, Canolfan Ddinesig 

Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, Stryd yr Angel, CF31 4WB. Dydd Gwener, 10 Tachwedd, 

2017 (10.30am – 3pm) 

Wales Association of SACREs meeting, at the Council Chamber, Bridgend Civic 

Centre, Angel Street, CF31 4WB. Friday, 10
th

 November, 2017  (10.30am – 3pm) 

 

Presenoldeb/Attendance 

Ynys Môn / Anglesey 

Bethan James (BJ) 

Rheinallt Thomas (RhT)  

Blaenau Gwent 

Paula Webber (PW) 

Chris Abbas (CB) 

Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr / 

Bridgend 

Edward Evans (EE) 

Vicky Thomas (VT) 

Jessica Williams (JW)  

Christine Jones (CJ) 

Lowri Florence (LF) 

Cheryl Green BCBC 

John McCarthy BCBC 

 

Caerffili/ Caerphilly 

Vicky Thomas (VT) 

John Taylor (JT) 

 

Caerdydd / Cardiff 

Gill Vaisey (GV) 

 

Sir Gaerfyrddin / 

Carmarthenshire  

Mary Parry (MP) 

Wendy Jones (WJ) 

Ceredigion 

Lyndon Lloyd MBE (LL) 

 

Conwy 

Phil Lord (PL) 

Nicholas Richter (NR) 

Sir Ddinbych / 

Denbighshire 

Phil Lord (PL) 

Emrys Wynne (EW) 

Sir y Fflint / Flintshire 

Phil Lord (PL) 

 

Gwynedd 

Bethan James (BJ) 

 

Merthyr Tudful / Merthyr Tydfil 

Paula Webber (PW) 

Ernie Galsworthy  (EG) 

 

Sir Fynwy / Monmouthshire 

Sir  

Gill Vaisey (GV)  

Sharon Perry-Phillips (SP-P) 

Sue Cave (SC) 

Rhian Davies (RhD)  

 

Castell-nedd Port Talbot / 

Neath and Port Talbot 

Rachel Samuel (RS) 

Hugh James (HJ) 

 

Casnewydd / Newport 

Vicky Thomas (VT) 

Martson Dacey (MD)  

Huw Stephens (HS) 

 

Sir Benfro / 

Pembrokeshire 

Mary Parry (MP) 

 

Powys 

John Mitson (JM) 

 

Rhondda Cynon Taf  

Paula Webber (PW) 

Mathew Maidment (MM) 

 

 

 

Abertawe / Swansea 

Alison Lewis (AL) 

Vicky Thomas (VT) 

Rachel Bendall (RB)  

Heather Hansen (HH)  

Adele Thomas (AT) 

John Meredith (JT)  

Alison Lewis (AL) 

 

Torfaen /Torfaen 

Paula Webber (PW) 

 

Bro Morgannwg / 

Vale of Glamorgan 

Paula Webber (PW)  

 

Wrecsam / Wrexham 

 

Sylwedyddion / 

Observers 

Rheinallt Thomas (RT), 

MAGC/REMW 

Rachel Bendall (RB) Drindod Dewi 

Sant 

John Meredith (JT) Church of Wales 

Manon Jones (MJ), Welsh 

Government 

Lynda Maddock (LM) WJEC 

 

Cyflwynwyr/Presenters 

Kathy Riddick (KR), Wales 

Humanists (WH) 

Lisa James (LJ), Cardiff High/CSC 

Catherine  Rees(CR), Pencoed 

Comprehensive and CSC 

Lynda Maddock (LM) WJEC 

 

Ymwelwyr/Guests  

Matt Vince, Cardiff University 

Alice Parry, NEU Union 

Page 149

Agenda Item 10



 

2 

 

 

Minutes 

1. Cyflwyniad a chroeso / Introduction and welcome 

EE thanked the young people from the Archbishop String Quartet under the direction of Simon Grey, co-

ordinator of Bridgend Music Service, for their musical performances. Members were welcomed to the 

Chamber by the Mayor, Pam Davies, who spoke of the importance of SACREs in monitoring standards in 

Religious Education. She reported that the Bridgend Summer SACRE last year had been held at the local 

Mosque. Schools in the authority had been offered a tour of the mosque. This played a role in supporting 

community cohesion. The Mayor spoke of the importance of WASACRE in acting as a forum for national 

issues. She highlighted the importance of getting the forthcoming changes in the curriculum for 3-16 year olds 

right. She informed WASACRE that Bridgend Local Authority values its work.  

2. Quiet reflection. EE led a quiet reflection for Remembrance Day, including a reading of the John McCrae 

poem In Flanders Fields. He reflected on what we teach our children using a quotation from Pablo Casals.  

3. Ymddiheuriadau / Apologies  

Dafydd Trehearne, Dylan Rees, Paul Rowlinson, Sally Northcott, Libby Jones, Tania ap Sion, Enfys 

Hawthorne, Tudor Thomas, Janet Jones, Laura Lacey, Alwen Roberts, Cllr. Huw George, Marilyn Frazer, 

Andrew Pearce, Cllr. Charles Smith  

 

4. Cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd yn Wrecsam 7 Gorffennaf 2017/ Minutes of meeting held in 

Wrexham 7 July 2017 

It was noted that with the exception of the omission of Dylan Rees and Paul Rawlinson from the attendance 

list, the minutes were accepted as a true record of the meeting.  

Materion yn codi / Matters arising 

P3. Matters arising Item 1 – It was noted that the minutes of WASACRE were received only in English prior 

to SACRE meetings. This was to be discussed in an agenda item.  

P.5. Managing the Right of Withdrawal from RE – the document has been designed, is bilingual and ready to 

go to print. A discussion ensued on whether WASACRE would purchase ISBN numbers in order to sell the 

document. The discussion included how the sales would be managed. The document will be available to all 

schools free of charge and SACRE members. Members raised concerns about enquiries to schools for partial 

withdrawal from RE. PW reported that the Vale of Glamorgan SACRE had also requested this information. 

There was a proposal that WASACRE seek information from SACREs on full or partial withdrawals and 

reasons given in order to build up a picture of the situation across Wales. It is to be made clear that the 

information requested is concerning RE only and not Collective Worship. The role of Estyn in monitoring 

collective worship was also discussed. VT confirmed that this had been discussed with Estyn.  

Action i.  GV is to purchase 10 ISBN numbers at £159 and manage the sale of the document.  

Action ii. GV and PW to compose letter to send to SACREs.   

P. 12  Action iii. Show and tell to be added to future agendas  

5. Cyflwyniad NAPfRE / NAPfRE presentations: (Presentation slides will be made available on the 

WASACRE website). 

i. RE in the Humanities A pioneer perspective - Catherine Rees (Head of RE Pencoed Comprehensive CR  

informed WASACRE that last year Y7 RE was taught in a blended curriculum based on the Humanities 

Page 150



 

3 

 

AoLE. Pupils guided learning. Teachers were facilitators. The aim was to develop resilient learners with 

transferable skills. The department was aware that the locally agreed syllabus is a statutory requirement 

and it informs planning. Y7 explored ultimate questions via dialogue, discussion, P4C, trips and visits and 

learning outside the classroom, CR reported that both staff and pupils enjoyed the learning and creativity. 

Tracking and assessment focused on the Four Purposes rather than levels. Pupils gave very positive 

feedback. They enjoyed the opportunity to look at topics from different aspects rather than just through 

one subject. Pupils were engaged, staff knew pupils well and work was excellent. Concerns about the lack 

of subject specialists were raised by parents. CR expressed concern that real progress wasn’t tracked. The 

pupils are now in Year 8 and taught in separate subjects. Pupil Voice has shown that they now like to be 

taught by different teachers. CR expressed concern that they might not see the value of RS at Key Stage 4 

and that the new GCSE specification did not marry with the Donaldson approach. CR suggested that the 

pupils in pilot had been taught by RE specialists, with a passion for the subject, and that the outcomes 

might have been different had this not been the case.   

Questions following the presentation included:  

 PL raised the issue of tracking assessment and how you ensure good progression of skills as well 

as concerns about planning for non-specialist teachers. CR reported that this had been difficult. 

She said that it may be difficult to get content covered and that might have a consequence for 

Year 9 as GCSE content needed to be covered there. She said that there had been lots of changes 

and new courses which had been a big juggling act for all teachers.  

 Have you seen an attitude change towards RE? CR said Humanities always worked together, but 

it had been good to identify where the crossovers were.  

 CR reported discerning a misconception of what RE is. CA enquired how pupils might be 

withdrawn from RE if they don’t know what the lesson was. CR reported that this year there was 

no request to withdraw. She said this would be difficult, but that when teachers speak to parents 

they are surprised by what they are doing in humanities. The question was raised about whether 

we should be using the term RE? EE said that it is a problem that there is a general 

misconception. VT made the observation that because of the withdrawal clause RE ASF   it might 

be lost in the new humanities curriculum. CR reported that they had not had a chance to 

collaborate with other schools but that it would be good to do so.  

 Is the commonality between subjects a strength? CR agreed that there is as many similar topics 

would be taught in separate subjects, but they are now making the links.  

 AL asked whether the school had been able to cover the agreed syllabus. CR reported that they 

had not been able to cover the same content as they would have usually. An RE day was used to 

cover aspects of the agreed syllabus.  

 What advice would you give trainee teachers? CR raised the question of whether training in 

separate subjects would continue. 

 SP-P noted that, when a humanities approach was used in her school, GCSE uptake became a 

problem. She noted a subject specific skills deficit from Y7 into Y8, and a problem with the 

condensing of KS3 because of the GCSE content. Due to non-specialist teaching, if they didn’t 

have RE skills by year 8, they had to start from scratch. RT raised the issue that this approach had 

been tried many times in the past and had been a failure. 

 MJ said that she found CR’s presentation interesting and said that as they are developing at a 

national level, these concerns were being raised. They are now starting to look at what we should 

know in the disciplines. WASACRE representatives will be attending the Humanities working 

group on Monday 13
th
 November to present the WASACRE Commissioned Paper.  

 GV –Thanked CR. She reiterated that it was good to hear from those doing the job at this time of 

change. GV expressed her concern about the wellbeing of teachers as the work of teachers is 

Page 151



 

4 

 

frustrating and workload is immense. She reiterated that we are supposed to be aware of the 

wellbeing of our pupils, but what about the wellbeing of teachers?  

 

ii. The work of the Lead Practitioners for Religious Studies. - Lisa James (CSC Cardiff High School), 

Catherine  Rees (CCS Pencoed Comprehensive School) and Rhian Davies (EAS King Henry VIII 

Comprehensive School) 

Lisa James and her colleague Alison Hill, led Consortium Inset supporting red and amber schools in 

Cardiff and the Vale, sharing resources, approaches and assessment. They included sessions on what 

makes effective RE lessons; a focus on the Humanist perspective; overlaps between new and old 

specifications; in depth understanding of religions; the sharing teaching and learning strategies; 

assessment, SAMs and model answers. LJ reported that her holiday had been taken up with the changes 

and had an impact upon workload. She prepared resources and shared them via Dropbox. She pointed out 

the frustration of sharing resources when others are unwilling to share. She found it beneficial to work 

collaboratively with CR. Together they held network and development meetings. They met with other 

lead practitioners from across Wales at Llandrindod Wells. Resources will be uploaded onto Hwb. It was 

a good experience to share the immense workload. LJ reported that not all messages were getting through 

to heads of department from the consortium. GV asked how many schools were involved. LJ reported that 

there were 8 schools involved and that they needed to be proactive in publicising the meetings as teachers 

might not check the consortium website. She said that it would have been useful to have had a list of 

names of HODS.  

VT reported that Newport SACRE had written to schools requesting an expression of interest in network 

and development meetings. If these were held from 2-4pm it would overcome the cost implication for 

Inset and supply cover.  

RhD reported that EAS Learning Network gave schools the opportunity to gather teachers together for 

support at a network meeting in June. 18 delegates attended and brought resources. The focus was on 

AFL. The meeting had been publicised via EAS and RS Consultants. They prepared resources for 

different religions, but there was no Buddhism or Sikhism. They had used the BBC Bitesize curriculum 

map. There will be a meeting in January to share materials and for quality assurance. Peer and self 

assessment marking sheets were produced. Resources for Hinduism and Christianity have been shared 

with Lynda Maddock at the WJEC. Eventually resources will go onto Hwb, but they are currently being 

shared via Google Drive.  

VT asked whether resources for all the religions would be covered. RhD confirmed that they were 

currently trying to cover them. Additionally, that BBC Bitesize will be plugging that gap. GV asked 

whether the resources would cover Humanism. RhD confirmed that this would be the case and that they 

would also include Cwricwlwm Cwmreig. They would be publicising the next meeting heavily in order to 

support the schools who haven’t attended. She highlighted the difficulties of getting teachers out of 

schools. RhD is available one day per fortnight to go out to schools to offer support.   EG expressed his 

opinion that RE is one of the most important subjects in the school and asked whether the work would 

have a positive effect on people’s understanding of other religions. RhD said that she is finding that 

students now have a better understanding of the concepts.  RhD confirmed that if there is a specific 

request to translate the resources into Welsh then it would be. GWE paid for translation of some resources 

which teachers throughout Wales will be able to access on Hwb. If a school contacts RhD she will email 

resources.  

6. Cyflwyniad WASACRE/WASACRE presentation: 

i. Lynda Maddock - WJEC GCE and GCSE Religious Studies 

Lynda Maddock gave Andrew Pearce’s apologies to WASACRE.  

Page 152



 

5 

 

Teachers began teaching the new GCSE in September. The aim was to marry the legacy Specification A, 

systematic study, and the Specification B, which was the popular thematic approach. It had been a difficult 

task. Perceptions were that the religions papers were rigorous and gave pupils the opportunity for depth. The 

Spec. B developed awareness of religious and social issues and engaged lots of pupils. The length of the new 

exam paper is longer. In Part A of the paper Christianity is compulsory. Buddhism and Hinduism are popular, 

as are Judaism and Islam.  For Catholic Schools their second religion is Judaism. In Part B, life and death and 

good and evil, pupils must apply what they know from their religions. Non-religious beliefs have to be 

engaged with as it is explicit in the content in one longer question.  Unit 1 is the short course, a foundational 

study and it would be difficult to look at Unit 2 without this. Questions A-C are phenomenological and 

Question d, analysis and evaluation, etc. This is a high order, challenging skill and worth a lot of marks. It is 

the differentiator. The course should be taught in 120 guided learning hours over two years minimum. Some 

schools are not given the time. Lynda has made Qualifications Wales aware of her concerns over this. She 

reported that sometimes teachers have to deliver on 1 hour per week and Lynda expressed her view that ‘that 

is a complete disgrace’. Two religions need to be applied to philosophical issues. This will now be explicit 

within the assessment. In the life and death question they have to include non-religious beliefs thought they 

will be credited in other questions if they have written about it. WJEC CPD will be delivered in December. 

Lynda said that more lines had been added so that there were now 3 lines per mark. There are no expectations 

that the lines will be filled. She emphasised that it is always about quality and not quantity.  

MP – asked a question regarding the section on origin and value of human life. In the Christianity section of 

the Specification it refers to Welsh Law regarding organ donation, but there is no reference to Welsh Law 

with regards to other religions. MP said that Welsh Government had carried out a lot of research on this and 

would be useful to go back to look at it. Lynda said that Welsh Government had accredited the Specification 

but that she would now speak to them. MP also pointed out that the statement in the textbook on organ 

donation is incorrect. She maintained that it is important to get the Welsh Dimension right.  

A teacher representative said that the old syllabus was relevant to the pupils and asked why the decision was 

made to amalgamate the two Specifications. Lynda said that there was a perception that the legacy 

Specification B didn’t have the religious rigor of the legacy Specification A. So there was an attempt to try to 

make the best of both worlds. One member suggested that Religious Studies had been on a high and asked 

what the take up for the new course is. Lynda said that they currently were only aware of preliminary entries 

and that the data was not accurate.   

There was a discussion on Year 10 entry as there is a political feel that early entry isn’t a good thing. Kirsty 

Williams may prevent early entry. One of the Lead Practitioners said that her school were now not entering 

the whole cohort.  

Due to time restrictions it was decided that the A Level presentation to WASACRE would not go ahead in the 

absence of Andrew Pearce, but it will be put on the WJEC website for teachers to access.   

 

ii. Kathy Riddick - Development Officer, Wales Humanists 

KR gave a presentation on why SACREs should accept humanists and why WASACRE should have a 

humanist representative. KR referred to the Westminster Faith Debates document A New Settlement: Religion 

and Belief in Schools (Charles Clarke and Linda Woodhead) which stated that there has been a significant rise 

in a diverse range of religious and non-religious commitments.  KR also made reference to the British 

Attitudes Survey which shows a rise in people with no religion. The Nones aged 18-14 are now over 70%. KR 

said that Humanists UK believe that this is missing from SACRE and that Circular 10/94, written over 20 

years ago, is outdated. Humanists UK has been involved in sharing resources for RE and has worked with 

WJEC. It provides  school speakers and is an active member of the REC.  KR said that a number of SACREs 

in England have admitted humanist representatives as full members of group A, and humanists have served as 

chairs of their SACRE in England, which gives some indication of how valued their contribution is to RE in 

Page 153



 

6 

 

their area. Humanists are represented on the Welsh Government’s strategic steering group for curriculum 

reform and work.  She highlighted that the National Exemplar Framework for Religious Education for 3 – 19 

year-olds in Wales, 2008 states very clearly that ‘RE contributes to Wales, Europe and the World by raising 

challenging questions from religious and non-religious perspectives.’ She argued that, given this, humanist 

representation on SACREs and WASACRE is crucial.  KR raised her concern that some SACREs included 

Humanists in Wales, but there isn’t a consistent approach.  As a result Wales Humanists argue that SACREs 

are not servicing the teaching community. KR said that there is a view Humanists don’t support RE, but the 

opposite is true. It is vital to continue RE. KR proposed that SACREs to have humanist members. She said 

that Wales Humanists have asked Welsh Government that Circular 10/94 be changed as it is discriminative. 

KR reported that Welsh Government have said that it is the responsibility of WASACRE. 

Discussion included the following: 

o A member said that a recent survey on SACREs found that co-opted members are valued. She argued 

that all members bring their own personalities and if you have a good member then they are good 

members no matter what their background. She argued that SACREs aim is supporting RE and, as 

that includes non-religious beliefs, it would be helpful to have Humanist representatives on SACREs.  

o RT said that Circular 10/94 is a document published by the Welsh Office and that this is a matter for 

individual SACREs. However, that it is clear from the document that co-option is the only route for 

humanist membership. EE read an email from Welsh Government to Libby Jones dated 21
st
 June 2017 

stating that “From the Welsh Government perspective, the position is that the wording of section 390 

of the 1996 Act is clear and refers to religion and not beliefs.  Humanism is often regarded as a belief 

system and not a religion. As far as Welsh Government is aware, local authorities have interpreted 

the term “religion” so as to exclude belief systems such as humanism.  However, statutory 

interpretation is a matter for the courts...”  

o An LA faith representative said she had been nominated by her faith group to sit on SACRE and 

asked whether the same arrangements could be made for humanists whereby a body is represented. 

KR said that Wales Humanists is an organisation. They train school speakers and ensure they have an 

in depth knowledge of Humanism.   

o One member, who is a Councillor, found it disturbing that SACREs in England ignore legislation as 

this could have an impact upon local councillors. He suggested the avenue for Wales Humanists is 

through Welsh Government.  

o In discussion members considered the Equalities and Human Rights Act and the United Nations and 

the Rights of the Child.  It was suggested that Circular 10/94 is now a defunct document and should 

be updated. GV said that WASACRE Executive members have offered suggested changes to 

document to Welsh Government officials in the past, but cannot get it updated. Members pointed out 

that SACREs can ask the council for constitutions to be amended so that Humanists can be invited as 

co-opted members. EE pointed out that where two laws conflict only the High Court or the Supreme 

Court can decide. He suggested that the courts need to tell us what to do as currently SACREs are 

restricted. He suggested that WASACRE write to ask WG to take this to the courts.   

o A Member who had been co-opted onto a SACRE for many years, and who is now a full member said 

that being co-opted hadn’t stopped him from contributing and influencing decisions. PL pointed out 

SACREs should be locally determined and membership should reflect the local area.   

o KR said that Humanists are asking for equal treatment and that it is a general issue of respect. She 

said that she had visited a SACRE recently as a member of the public and felt that she had had not 

been treated respectfully. She said that Humanism is about freedom and respect. She said that there 

had been no right to reply due to restrictions on members of the public attending a SACRE meeting. A 

WASACRE member suggested that there should never be a context for not having a right to defend 

yourself. Matthew Vince, a PhD student at Cardiff University, said that non-religious belief systems is 

Page 154



 

7 

 

one of the fastest growing areas of academic research. One member said that she felt really sorry that 

KR felt that she had been deliberately excluded. However, reaffirmed that this is an issue about 

committee A and, therefore, a Welsh Government issue. It is due for review. She said that some 

councils do not have co-opted positions and that if the co-opted places are filled then there is no 

position. KR reported that Wales Humanists has  had quite a few members rejected. But that she 

wants to move forward. She said that they want to help to create ethically informed citizens and one 

way they can do that formally is through involvement in SACREs.  

o GV thanked KR for coming along and for presenting and said that it was good to hear her speak 

supportively of Religious Education.  

o PL said that WASACRE Executive members had a face to face meeting with Welsh Government 

during the Spring where this issue had been very strong in saying that this is not our responsibility. 

o GV proposed WASACRE send a letter to Welsh Government asking them to take this matter to the 

courts to decide. She said that she was alarmed that someone can go to a SACRE and be treated with a 

lack of respect. A discussion followed on protocol of council meetings. It was felt that if someone is 

treated disrespectfully then they should have a right to reply. It was felt by members that SACRE 

meetings should be conducted in the ethos of RE and should be respectful. GV suggested that 

WASACRE should look at a code of conduct for SACREs. She said that people are joining a SACRE 

and not understanding the ethos of RE. Members of WASACRE who also sit as councillors said that 

members of the public have no right to reply in meetings, unless they are to by the chair to do.  

 

ACTION: - WASACRE to send a letter to Welsh Government requesting that Circular 10/94 be 

updated  

ACTION – to set Code of Conduct as an agenda item at next meeting.  

 

7. Darparu Ysgrifennydd Cofnodion/Provision of a Minute Secretary– Phil Lord 

PL presented his research into a clerking service for minutes. He said that the usual cost is £250 per day. He 

suggested that this could cost £1500 per annum plus expenses. Discussion took place on the cost as well as on 

the role of Secretary to WASACRE. It was agreed that this is a considerable role and that it would speed up 

the whole process of minute writing so that minutes could be sent to SACREs quickly. The role of Secretary 

to WASACRE has changed and now it requires a very specific skill set. PL proposed that a clerk is appointed 

who will  invoice WASACRE for the work they have done and for their services, he siad that continuity is 

needed  so the appointee would need to be aware of the specialist language of RE. This was seconded by RT. 

ACTION: Write to SACREs to seek those interested in the role of Minutes Clerk  

 

8. Cyfarfod Cymdeithas CYSAGau Cymru  Cyfansoddiad / Wales Association of SACREs Constitution.  

This item was adjourned to the next meeting.  

 

9. Diweddariadau/Up-dates:  

i. Materion Llywodraeth Cymru / Welsh Government matters – New Curriculum update - RE in 

the Humanities AoLE - Manon Jones  

Welsh Government (has) published changes to the key dates 

(http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/schoolshome/curriculuminwales/curriculum-for-wales-

curriculum-for-life/?lang=en). By April 2018 there will be a draft of the new curriculum and by 

January 2020 the final curriculum and assessment arrangements will be published, to be implemented 

in 2022. Initially it will be taught in Primary and Year 7. There will be an additional four year period 

of studying to new curriculum and new qualification. Currently, Welsh Government is asking how 

humanities supports the new curriculum. How should humanities look and appear? What is the level 

Page 155

http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/schoolshome/curriculuminwales/curriculum-for-wales-curriculum-for-life/?lang=en
http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/schoolshome/curriculuminwales/curriculum-for-wales-curriculum-for-life/?lang=en


 

8 

 

of specificity and consistency between schools? There will be a summary from the Pioneer Schools in 

July.  SACRE meetings in the Autumn term should have discussed the letter from Welsh Government, 

which is very aware that we do not want to lose anything from RE. There has been a concentration 

upon the disciplines and they will make links between them, however some aspects may have to be 

stand alone. Welsh Government has been working with WASACRE and the commissioned a paper. 

Colleagues from WG are aware of the importance of the right to withdraw from RE. Welsh 

Government will feed back to SACRES by January 2018.  Manon Jones was asked when we could 

expect to see ‘meat on the bones’ of the curriculum. The strands will be worked on at the end of next 

month, but by March or April there will be more in depth feedback. Manon sees the importance of 

communication at different levels of the development process, as well as ensuring practitioners in 

Pioneer Schools are informed. She agreed that she also needed to consider those who are not in 

pioneer schools.  

ii. GV informed the meeting that a group of WASACRE members had drawn up a paper on What 

Matters in RE and that this is to be presented at the Humanities Planning Workshops on Monday 13
th
 

November in Swansea.  

10. Adroddiad ar gyfarfod y Pwyllgor Gwaith a gynhaliwyd ar 13 Medi 2017/ Report from the Executive 

Committee held on 13 September 2017 

Item 4.  GV gave an update on the REC who have commissioned a report on RE across England. We have a 

right to respond to it by 4
th

 December. GV sought the views of members on whether Wales could have a 

similar commission. The CoRE in England contains information that is important for us in Wales. GV spoke 

to Rudi Lockhart about a similar review in Wales. Gill asked whether WASACRE is able to support two 

delegates in attending the NASACRE/ARIEAC Conference on the CoRE.  

ACTION: the Executive Committee to communicate via email and respond to the report.  

ACTION: Invite Rudi Lockhart to the next meeting of the WASACRE Executive  

11. Gohebiaeth /Correspondence 

WASACRE received the following correspondence: 

i. Matthew Vince, from the Centre for the Study of Islam in the UK at Cardiff University which 

explores the lives of Muslim communities living in Britain, wrote to WASACRE and was present at 

the meeting. He was invited to speak to members about his research into the experiences of Muslim 

RE teachers in secondary schools.  The Centre has set up a Future Learn course which is free to 

teachers.  The centre offers CPD to RE teachers and will visit schools to facilitate workshops. There 

are also other free events and public lectures available. The Centre is interested in developing 

materials for a course suitable for KS3/4 pupils, which will be accessible to teachers across South 

Wales.  

ii. Dr Wendy Dossett informed WASACRE that the University of Chester will be holding a ‘back to 

university day’ for teachers on Religion and Ethics on Saturday 10
th
 February, 2018.  

iii. The Interfaith Network notified WASACRE that Mr. Jagwan Singh, IFN Vice Chair 2001-2004, has 

sadly passed away.  

12. U.F.A. / A.O.B. 

There was no other business.  

Page 156



 

9 

 

EE closed the meeting and thanked the Mayor Pam Davies; Vicky Thomas; Ellen Franks, Clerk to Bridgend 

SACRE and members of Bridgend SACRE; the Archbishop String Quartet, Simon Grey, and the interpreter, 

Stephen Williams. 

13. Dyddiad y cyfarfod nesaf  Dydd Gwener 10 Tachwedd, 2017 / Date for next meeting:  

i. Spring  2018 – Swansea, Friday 9 March 2018 

ii. Summer 2018 – Anglesey 

iii. Autumn 2019 – Vale of Glamorgan 

Page 157



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



This page is intentionally left blank



             Cadeirydd /Chairman:                    
 Revd Canon Edward J Evans 
       
 Ysgrifennydd/Secretary:                              
 Paula Webber 
              23, Bryngwyn Road, 

 Newbridge, NP11 4GX 
                 
                                                        e-bost/e-mail: Paula.WebberConsultancy@gmail.com  
                                               ffôn/ tel : 07540 172596 
30 January 2018 
 
Dear Clerk to SACRE, 

Following discussions at the recent Wales Association of SACRE’s meeting in November, I have been 

asked to write to SACREs regarding the possible recruitment of a Minutes Clerk for the Association.  

The position of Minutes Clerk has been created to support the work of the Secretary to WASACRE 

at these meetings. It is essential for the candidate to have knowledge of education and in particular 

some knowledge of religious education and SACRE. Previous experience of minute taking is not 

essential; however, the candidate must have a good level of literacy skills and access to email.  The 

requirements of the position would be to attend all main meetings and all Executive meetings each 

year, amounting to 6 in total, and for them to record the minutes and circulate them accordingly. 

Main meetings are held in various venues across the whole of Wales and Executive meetings are 

usually held in Cardiff and Llandrindod Wells.  This position is funded by a modest honorarium of 

£1500.00 (+ expenses) which is paid to the candidate by cheque in one lump sum each year. 

WASACARE is looking for a person who is willing to give up their time to attend the meetings and 

produce the minutes working alongside and liaising with the Secretary as necessary.   Members of 

the Executive would be most grateful if you could share this information with your SACRE, local 

authority, and wider contacts and ask them to consider this request. If you can offer a name for the 

position of Minutes Clerk to the Association, please contact the Secretary of WASACRE via the email 

at the top of this letter with the candidate’s details. 

Thank you for your support, I look forward to hearing from you in due course. 

With best wishes, 
 

 
Paula Webber 
Secretary to WASACRE 

 

Page 163

Agenda Item 11

mailto:Paula.WebberConsultancy@gmail.com


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meetings
	4 Matters Arising
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	6 The Role of SACRE
	8 Curriculum Development Update
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4

	9 Monitoring Collective Worship and RE
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6
	Appendix 7
	Appendix 8
	Appendix 9
	Appendix 10
	Appendix 11

	10 WASACRE
	Appendix 2

	11 Correspondence - WASACRE - Minute Clerk

